
(650) 457- 0943 * jpa@sfcjpa.org * 2100 Geng Road, Suite 210* Palo Alto, CA 94303
SFCJPA.ORG 

Notice of Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Thursday, November 18, 2021 

3:30 P.M. 

Due to the risk of COVID-19 transmission, this meeting will be held remotely via video/teleconference 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) (Assembly Bill 361). Members of the public may observe 
or participate in this meeting by joining the meeting online through the Zoom link provided below or by 
joining the meeting with a telephone by dialing the Zoom teleconference number provided below.    
You may provide public comment during the meeting: (1) by using the chat function and typing your 
question or comment, (2) if you are joining online, by selecting the raise your hand function and speaking 
when called upon, or (3) if you are joining by phone, by pressing*9 to raise your hand and *6 to 
mute/unmute yourself and to speak.  If you experience technical problems with the Zoom meeting, please 
contact the Clerk of the Board at the phone number or email listed at the bottom of this Agenda.   
If you require an accommodation pursuant to the Americans with Disability Act, please contact the Clerk 
of the Board at the phone number or email listed at the bottom of this Agenda by 10:00 am on the day of 
the meeting. 

Join Zoom 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85679572521?pwd=cU1zbkZQWW9MOVhxUlRWWHZsWk

1xQT09 

Meeting ID: 856 7957 2521 

Passcode: 695198 

Dial in: (669) 900-6833,,85679572521#,,,,*695198# 

Agenda 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Changes or additions to the agenda.

3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: October 28, 2021, Regular Meeting

4. PUBLIC COMMENT: Individuals may speak on a non-agendized topic for up to three

minutes.

REGULAR BUSINESS 

*Members of the Public may speak on any agenda item for up to three minutes*

5. CONSENT AGENDA

mailto:jpa@sfcjpa.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85679572521?pwd=cU1zbkZQWW9MOVhxUlRWWHZsWk1xQT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85679572521?pwd=cU1zbkZQWW9MOVhxUlRWWHZsWk1xQT09


 

(650) 457- 0943 * jpa@sfcjpa.org * 2100 Geng Road, Suite 210* Palo Alto, CA 94303 
SFCJPA.ORG 

 

A. Consider adopting a resolution reconsidering the circumstances of the COVID-19 state 
of emergency and making findings to authorize public meetings to be held via 
teleconferencing pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e). 
 

B. Consider acceptance of the addition of OSHA-required COVID-19 workplace safety 
policy to the SFCJPA Employee Handbook. 

 

6. INFORMATION ITEMS 

A. Executive Director's Report 

B. Reach 2 Cost and Funding Scenarios Update 

C. Mid-year Operations Budget status review and preliminary forecast for 21-22 

fiscal year  

7. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Review, discuss, and consider making comments to the Menlo Park BRIC grant MOU. 
 

B. Review and consider acceptance of initial edition of SFCJPA Board Handbook. 
 

C. Review and consider approval of Annual Board regular meeting schedule for calendar 
year 2022. 
 

8. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, INFORMATION ITEMS, REQUESTS and 

ANNOUNCEMENTS (Information only)  

9. ADJOURNMENT 

PLEASE NOTE: Board meeting Agenda and supporting documents related to items on 

the Agenda can be viewed online by 3:30 p.m. by Monday November 15, 2021 at 

sfcjpa.org -- click on the “Meetings” tab near the top. 

mailto:jpa@sfcjpa.org


SFCJPA Regular
Board Meeting

November 18, 2021



Agenda

*Members of the Public may speak on any agenda 
item for up to three minutes*

1. ROLL CALL

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Changes or 
additions to the agenda.

3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: 
October 20, 2021, Regular Board meeting.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT: Individuals may speak 
on a non-agendized topic for up to three 
minutes on a topic within the SFCJPA’s 
jurisdiction.



Agenda Item 5 – Consent 
Agenda

5. Consider adopting a resolution 
reconsidering the circumstances of 
the COVID-19 state of emergency 
and making findings to authorize 
public meetings to be held via 
teleconferencing pursuant to 
Government Code Section 
54953(e).

5.B. Consider a Resolution 
accepting the SFCJPA’s OSHA-
Compliant COVID-19 Workplace 
Safety Policy and Program



Agenda Item 6 –
Information Items

6.A. Executive
Director’s Report



Reach 1 –
Downstream Project

Working to finalize O&M 
Manual

Monitoring and Reporting 
contract in place for 
remainder of 10-year 
reporting period

Continue to make progress 
on interpretive, 
commemorative, and 
legacy signage.



Reach 2 – Upstream 
Project

LEDPA submittal planned 
for late November.  
Consideration of replacing 
existing structures could 
push date back

Comments on the October 
25 USACE CAP 205 NEPA 
Scoping Meeting due 
November 30.



Reach 3 - Evaluating 
detention basins 

Conceptual design is 
anticipated  in 
December.

A Feasibility Technical 
Memorandum 
anticipated by end of 
the calendar year.



SAFER Bay Project

NOP release anticipated 
before December –
January.

City of Menlo Park City 
Council study session on 
11/9 reviewed the BRIC 
grant. Menlo Park’s 
consideration for adoption 
of the MOU is tentatively 
set for January 2022.



Agenda Item 6 – Information 
Items

6.B. Reach 2 Funding Gap Analysis
Regular Update

~ Total Construction Cost Estimate: 
$50,465,900 
~ Total identified funding: 
$43,803,176

Significant uncertainties remain:
~ Potential additional costs 
~ Confirmation and timing of $$ 
~ Potential new/additional funding



Agenda Item 6 –
Information Items

6.C. Mid-year Operations 
Budget status review 



Budget Status Highlights

• No significant deviations from planned expenditures

• Spending at or below target for the year

• Under-spending for this point in the year anticipated
and will change with planned spending in second half
of the fiscal year.



Agenda Item 7.A.

Menlo Park FEMA BRIC grant 
Memorandum of 
Understanding

~ Discussion and comment

Agenda Item 7. Action Items



Agenda Item 7.A.

Board Handbook
First Edition

Agenda Item 7. Action Items



Agenda Item 7.B.

Review and consider 
acceptance of Annual 
Board Calendar for 
calendar year 2022.

Agenda Item 7. Action Items



Draft 2022 Board Meeting 
Schedule

Regular Board of Directors Meetings

Meetings are held monthly on Thursdays, beginning at 3:30 p.m.

January 27, 2022 February 24, 2022

March 24, 2022 April 28, 2022

May 26, 2022 June 23, 2022

July 28, 2022 August 25, 2022 (Board recess. No meeting)

September 22, 2022 October 27, 2022

November 17, 2022 December 15, 2022



Agenda Item 8

BOARD MEMBER 
COMMENTS and 
ANNOUNCEMENTS

Board members may 
share news, updates, and 
announcements and may 
request items for future 
agendas.



Agenda Item 9

Adjournment

Thank you, everyone.



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 
November 18, 2021, Regular Meeting of the Board 

Agenda Item 3 
October 28, 2021, Board Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT  

1 of 4 

Director Abrica called the meeting to order at 3:32 p.m. via streaming video and teleconference call. 
Public input was solicited on each item and all public comments received are noted herein. 

1) ROLL CALL
Members Present: Director Ruben Abrica, City of East Palo Alto 

Director Drew Combs, City of Menlo Park 
Director Gary Kremen, Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) 
Director Pat Burt, City of Palo Alto

Members Absent: Director Dave Pine, San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency 
District 

JPA Staff Present: Margaret Bruce, Executive Director 
Kevin Murray, Staff 
Miyko Harris-Parker, Staff 

Legal Present: Trisha Ortiz 

2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA
ACTION: Motion and second (Kremen/Burt) to approve the agenda passed unanimously 4-0.

Roll call vote:
Director Abrica Aye
Director Combs Aye
Director Burt Aye
Director Kremen Aye

Director Pine not present.

3) APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 23, 2021, REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
ACTION: Motion and second (Burt/Combs) to approve the September 23, 2021, Regular Board
meeting minutes passed unanimously 4-0.

Roll call vote:
Director Abrica Aye
Director Combs Aye
Director Burt Aye
Director Kremen Aye

Director Pine not present.

4) PUBLIC COMMENT
None.



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 
November 18, 2021, Regular Meeting of the Board 

Agenda Item 3 
October 28, 2021, Board Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT  

2 of 4 

5) Executive Director Report
Ms. Bruce presented the Executive Director’s report which included updates related to the
commemorative plaques, monitoring and maintenance for the downstream project; updates on
public outreach to property owners for Reach 2; updates on the design evaluations, cultural survey,
developing of concept design and the estimated time of completion for the feasibility technical
memorandum for Reach 3 and updates on the Measure AA grant application for the SAFER project.
Ms. Bruce and members of the Board acknowledged and congratulated Ms. Harris-Parker for her
sixteenth year of service with the SFCJPA.

Director Abrica asked about the delay in receiving the DWR grant funds. Ms. Bruce explained that
DWR notified SFCJPA staff that a check had been mailed then returned to DWR with a stamp
saying undeliverable. As a result, DWR canceled the check then re-submitted the check through
their accounting process. Ms. Bruce said that DWR anticipates we should have the check in hand
within a few weeks.

6) ACTION ITEMS
Consider resolution authorizing public meetings to be held via teleconferencing pursuant to
Government Code Section 54953(e) and making findings and determinations regarding the same
ACTION: Motion and second (Abrica/Kremen) to approve Resolution NO. 21-10-28 A authorizing
public meetings to be held via teleconferencing pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and
making findings and determinations regarding the same passed unanimously 4-0.

Roll call vote:
Director Abrica Aye
Director Combs Aye
Director Burt Aye
Director Kremen Aye

Director Pine not present.

Trisha Ortiz, Legal representative for the SFCJPA, provided a synopsis of Government Code
Section 54953(e).

Director Combs asked when the Board will have a discussion on determining if/when we will return
to in person meetings and or will we pursue having a hybrid setup whereby attendees will be able to
join in person and online.

Director Abrica suggested we agendize this topic in November.

Director Burt shared that the City of Palo Alto will allow members of the public to attend City Hall
meetings after January 1, 2022.



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 
November 18, 2021, Regular Meeting of the Board 

Agenda Item 3 
October 28, 2021, Board Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT  

3 of 4 

Consider resolution to approve contract with H.T. Harvey to conduct Maintenance, Monitoring and 
Reporting in compliance with Reach 1 permit conditions. 
ACTION: Motion and second (Burt/Combs) to approve Resolution Number 21-10-28 B to approve a 
contract with H.T. Harvey to conduct Maintenance, Monitoring and Reporting in compliance with 
Reach 1 permit conditions passed unanimously 4-0. 

Roll call vote: 
Director Abrica Aye 
Director Combs Aye 
Director Burt Aye 
Director Kremen Aye 

Director Pine not present. 

Consider acceptance of the 2021-2022 Comprehensive Plan Update. 
ACTION: Motion and second (Abrica/Burt) to approve Resolution Number 21-10-28-C accepting the 
2021-2022 Comprehensive Plan Update passed unanimously 4-0. 

Roll call vote: 
Director Abrica Aye 
Director Combs Aye 
Director Burt Aye 
Director Kremen Aye 

Director Pine not present. 

Director Abrica requested adding additional organizations to the stakeholder/different organizations 
section of the plan. Director Abrica would like to add Woodland Park Community and West Bayshore 
Community organizations. 

Review and approve Personnel Committee’s proposed process for Executive Director review, which 
will be integrated into the Board and Employee handbooks. 
ACTION: Motion and second (Burt/Combs) to approve the Personnel Committee’s proposed process 
for Executive Director review passed unanimously 4-0. 

Roll call vote: 
Director Abrica Aye 
Director Combs Aye 
Director Burt Aye 
Director Kremen Aye 

Director Pine not present. 

7) BOARD STUDY SESSION
Discussion of Potential Reach 2 Funding Framework
Ms. Bruce opened the study session providing a summary of the currently known financial outlook
for the Reach 2 project.



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 
November 18, 2021, Regular Meeting of the Board 

Agenda Item 3 
October 28, 2021, Board Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT  

4 of 4 

Director Burt asked for an estimation on knowing when we will have clear indications on the grants. 
Mr. Murray replied that he hopes within six months, but he cannot guarantee that timing. 

Director Burt asked if the numbers presented included the cost of inflation or are they based on 
current 2021 rates. Ms. Bruce replied that these numbers, provided by Valley Water, are based on 
current costs.  

Director Combs commented that there are several factors still waiting to be determined that will 
influence the budget and as a result he does not believe that we can find fix to the funding gap at 
this time. Director Kremen concurred with Director Combs comments. Director Kremen stated that 
members of the Board also need to take this discussion back to their individual Boards/Councils as 
well. 

Director Abrica questioned if there were any potential delays with the Water Board. Director Abrica 
commented that the past delays and conflicts with the Water Board caused delays on our process. 
Director Abrica asked if there was an opportunity to be proactive in communicating with members of 
the Water Board’s Board of Directors to and staff. Director Burt concurred with Director Abrica’s 
comments. Mr. Murray stated that the Reach 2 project is less complex regarding sensitive habitat 
but is more complex with regards to hydraulics. Mr. Murray stated that the fact that we will be 
working with the same senior staff from Reach 1 is advantageous. Director Kremen concurred with 
Director Abrica and Director Burt on having members of the Board with members of the Water 
Board’s Board of Directors. 

Director Burt mentioned that the City of Palo Alto is hoping to be able to use some of the stockpile 
soil for a homeless housing project. 

Director Burt suggested creating a table that lists all of the current funding sources. Director Burt 
asked if staff was aware of any other grant funding sources. Ms. Bruce replied that she believes 
there may be some additional grants available to pursue but that with the new Federal bills in 
Congress right now there will be more grant opportunities in the future. 

8) BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, INFORMATION ITEMS, REQUESTS and ANNOUNCEMENTS
(Information only)
Director Burt shared with the Board that he recently met with representatives from Santa Clara
County who mentioned to him that they had applied for a grant to study impacts of wildfires in the
county. Director Burt mentioned to the group that the SFCJPA is looking into the effects of wildfire in
the watershed and suggested that maybe the two groups can work together. Director Burt also
mentioned that Stanford Academics is also taking a lead role on this. Director Burt suggests the
SFCJPA move forward with a collaboration.

9) ADJOURNMENT
Adjourned at 5:01 pm.
Minutes drafted by Clerk of the Board: Miyko Harris-Parker.



Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Item 5.B.   The SFCJPA’s COVID-19 Policy and Program 

Background 

In June this year, CalOSHA promulgated workplace safety requirements pertaining to 
the prevention of workplace exposures to COVID-19. The SFCJPA’s insurance provider 
(ACWAJPIA), has provided a template for our use in establishing a compliant COVID-19 
workplace safety policy and program and we have developed the SFCJPA’s program 
using this template. 

Discussion 

The COVID-19 pandemic is hopefully waning. However, some experts have asserted 
that COVID-19 may become endemic. It is not known at this time whether the severity 
of the disease will increase or decrease as it becomes endemic. Also, personal and 
workplace health and wellness measures put in place in response to the COVID-19 
health emergency are sensible measures to implement and maintain, as they are 
broadly useful in preventing a variety of transmissible illnesses.  

Once accepted, the SFCJPA’s OSHA-compliant COVID-19 workplace safety policy and 
program will be incorporated into the Employee Handbook.  

Recommendation 

Please review, comment, and consider accepting the SFCJPA’s COVID-19 workplace 
safety policy and program.  



12267-0001\2594894v1.doc 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE  SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY RECONSIDERING THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF THE COVID-19 STATE 

OF EMERGENCY AND MAKING FINDINGS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO 
AUTHORIZE MEETINGS TO BE HELD VIA TELECONFERENCING PURSUANT TO 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e) 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers 
Authority (the “Authority”) is committed to public access and participation in its meetings while 
balancing the need to conduct public meetings in a manner that reduces the likelihood of exposure 
to COVID-19; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Authority are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown 
Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, 
and watch the Board conduct its business; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Assembly Bill 361, signed by Governor Newsom and effective on 
September 16, 2021, legislative bodies of local agencies may hold public meetings via 
teleconferencing pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e), without complying with the 
requirements of Government Code Section 54953(b)(3), if the legislative body complies with 
certain enumerated requirements in any of the following circumstances: 

1. The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or
local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing.

2. The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

3. The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has
determined, by majority vote, that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would
present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency in response to 
the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Emergency”). 

WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention continue to advise that COVID-19 
spreads more easily indoors than outdoors and that people are more likely to be exposed to 
COVID-19 when they are closer than 6 feet apart from others for longer periods of time. 

WHEREAS, due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and the need to promote social distancing 
to reduce the likelihood of exposure to COVID-19, the Authority intends to hold public meetings 
via teleconferencing pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e).  

WHEREAS, to continue meeting remotely pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e), an 
agency must make periodic findings that: (1) the body has reconsidered the circumstances of the 
declared emergency; and (2) the emergency impacts the ability of the body’s members to meet 

https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/3.4.20-Coronavirus-SOE-Proclamation.pdf


-2-
12267-0001\2594894v1.doc 

safely in person, or state or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote 
social distancing.   

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN FRANCISQUITO 
CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Recitals provided above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated by reference.
2. The Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the COVID-19 state of emergency and

hereby finds that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the
members to meet safely in person.

3. The legislative bodies of the Authority may conduct their meetings pursuant to
Government Code section 54953(e).

4. Staff is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent
and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and public meetings in
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the
Brown Act.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Francisquito Creek Joint 
Powers Authority this __th day of ___________, 2021, by the following vote:  



COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) for the San 
Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 

This CPP is designed to control employees’ exposures to the SARS-CoV-2 virus (COVID-
19) that may occur in our workplace.

Date: November10, 2021 

Authority and Responsibility 
Finance and Administration Manager & Clerk of the Board, Miyko Harris-Parker, has 
overall authority and responsibility for implementing the provisions of this CPP in our 
workplace. In addition, all SFCJPA employees are responsible for implementing and 
maintaining the CPP in their assigned work areas and for ensuring they that they request 
answers to questions about the program in a language they understand, if needed. 

All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all directives, 
policies and procedures, and assisting in maintaining a safe work environment. 

Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards 
We implement the following in our workplace: 

• Document the vaccination status of our employees by using Appendix E:
Documentation of Employee COVID-19 Vaccination Status, which is maintained
as a confidential medical record.

• Evaluate employees’ potential workplace exposures to all persons at, or who may
enter, our workplace.

• Develop COVID-19 policies and procedures to respond effectively and immediately
to individuals at the workplace who have tested positive for COVID-19 and are either
presenting symptoms or are asymptomatic to prevent or reduce the risk of
transmission in the workplace. 

• Conduct periodic inspections using the Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections form as
needed to identify and evaluate unhealthy conditions, work practices, and work
procedures related to COVID-19 and to ensure compliance with our COVID-19
policies and procedures.

Correction of COVID-19 Hazards 
Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures are documented on the 
Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections form and will be immediately addressed and 
corrected. Any hazards not correctable by SFCJPA staff will be referred to building 
maintenance. 



Control of COVID-19 Hazards 
Face Coverings 

We provide clean, undamaged face coverings and ensure they are properly worn by 
employees when they are indoors amongst others or in vehicles, and where required by 
orders from the 
California Department of Public Health (CDPH). 

Employees required to wear face coverings in our workplace may remove them under the 
following conditions: 

• When an employee is alone in a room or a vehicle.
• While eating or drinking at the workplace, provided employees are at least six feet

apart and outside air supply to the area, if indoors, has been maximized to the extent
feasible.

• Employees who cannot wear face coverings due to a medical or mental health condition
or disability, or who are hearing-impaired or communicating with a hearing-impaired
person, will wear an effective, non-restrictive alternative, such as a face shield with a
drape on the bottom, if their condition permits it.

• Specific tasks that cannot feasibly be performed with a face covering. This exception is
limited to the      time in which the tasks are being performed.

Any employee not wearing a required face covering or allowed non-restrictive alternative, 
will be at least six feet apart from all other persons unless the unmasked employee is 
either fully vaccinated or tested at least weekly for COVID-19. 

We will not prevent any employee from wearing a face covering when it is not required 
unless it would      create a safety hazard. 

Face coverings will also be provided to any employee or visitor that requests one, 
regardless of their vaccination  status. 

Engineering controls 

Most of the SFCJPA offices are equipped with a controllable thermostat and vents that 
circulate air into the offices. Employees also can keep their doors open. Any engineering 
controls beyond individual office thermostats are handled by maintenance for the building. 

Cleaning and disinfecting 

Each SFCJPA office has been equipped with cleaning and disinfecting supplies. 
Employees are responsible for cleaning and disinfecting the frequently touched surfaces 
and objects in their offices, such as doorknobs, office supplies, equipment, tools, handles, 
controls, phones, headsets, desktop surfaces, bookshelves, and file cabinets. 



Hand sanitizing 

To implement effective hand sanitizing procedures, we: 

• Remind employees to wash their hands frequently and for at least 20 seconds using 
soap and warm water. 

• Provide employees with hand sanitizer in each office. 
 

 
Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases 
In the event that an employee has been exposed to someone with COVID-19 or has 
actually contracted COVID-19 and have been in close contact with other employees or 
have been at the SFCJPA offices after exposure or contraction, all employees will be 
notified via written notice/email of possible exposure. Employees who have been exposed 
to COVID-19 and or any of the variants of COVID-19 must be tested and provide those 
results with SFCJPA Human Resources. 
 
System for Communicating 
Our goal is to ensure that we have effective two-way communication with all employees, 
in a form they can readily understand, and that it includes the following information: 
• Who employees should report COVID-19 symptoms, possible close contacts and 

hazards to, and how. 
All COVID-19 EXPOSURES OR CONFIRMED CONTRACTIONS MUST BE 
REPORTED TO SFCJPA HUMAN RESOURCES AT MHPARKER@SFCJPA.ORG 

• Employees can report symptoms, possible close contacts and hazards without fear of 
reprisal. 

• Employees with medical or other conditions that put them at increased risk of severe 
COVID-19 illness can choose to work from home or other offsite locations where 
employee where employee can be safely quarantined while performing work duties. 

 
Training and Instruction 
• Our COVID-19 policies are aligned to protect employees from COVID-19 hazards, and 

how to participate in the identification and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards. 
• We provide information regarding COVID-19-related benefits (including mandated sick 

and vaccination leave) to which employees may be entitled under applicable federal, 
state, or local laws. 

• We acknowledge specific places where employees are most likely to be exposed to 
COVID-19 or other easily transmissible illnesses such as:  
○ In the common areas of our Regus Offices (hallways, kitchen, meeting rooms, 

foyer, restrooms) 
○ During indoor in-person meetings, including board meetings, council meetings, 

stakeholder workshops and events, small group meetings, riding in shared 
vehicles. 

○ During potentially crowded outdoor events, including creek clean-up events or  
other community events 

• We acknowledge that COVID-19 is an infectious disease that can be spread though 
the air, that COVID-19 may be transmitted when a person touches a contaminated 



object and then touches their eyes, nose, or mouth and that an infectious person may 
have no symptoms. 

• We acknowledge the fact that particles containing the virus can travel more than six
feet, especially indoors, physical distancing, face coverings, increased ventilation
indoors, and respiratory protection decrease the spread of COVID-19 and are most
effective when used in combination.

• We acknowledge the importance of frequent hand washing with soap and water for at
least 20 seconds and using hand sanitizer when employees do not have immediate
access to a sink or hand washing facility, and that hand sanitizer does not work if the
hands are soiled.

• We acknowledge that proper use of face coverings and the fact that face coverings
are not respiratory protective equipment. COVID-19 is an airborne disease, N95s and
more protective respirators protect the users from airborne disease, while face
coverings primarily protect people around the user.

○ The conditions where face coverings musts be worn at the workplace.
○ That face coverings are additionally recommended outdoors for people who are

not fully vaccinated, if six feet of distance cannot be maintained.
○ Employees are provided with medical grade face coverings in their Covid-19 kits

in their offices.
○ Employees can wear face coverings at work regardless of vaccination status and

without fear of retaliation.
• Employees are expected to be aware of COVID-19 symptoms, the importance of

obtaining a COVID-19 test and not coming to work if an employee has COVID-19
symptoms.

Additional resources may be found at https://www.acwajpia.com/covid-19-info/ 

Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster will be used to document this training. 

Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees who had a Close 
Contact 
Any employee who contracts COVID-19 or comes in close contact with someone who has 
COVID-19 in our workplace will be excluded from the workplace until said employee has 
met all of the return-to-work requirements with the following exceptions: 
• Employees who were fully vaccinated before the close contact and who do not

develop COVID-19 symptoms.
• COVID-19 cases who returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have

remained free of COVID-19 symptoms, for 90 days after the initial onset of COVID-19
symptoms, or for COVID-19     cases who never developed COVID-19 symptoms, for 90
days after the first positive test.

• All four SFCJPA employees have full benefits including paid personal time off.
Employees who are excluded from work will continue to maintain their earnings, 
wages, seniority, and all other employees’ rights and benefits will be accomplished as 
permitted by law and when not covered by worker’s compensation.  

• All employees have access to view their benefits by logging into bswift:
https://secure.bswift.com/default.aspx?abbrev=jpia 

https://www.acwajpia.com/covid-19-info/
https://secure.bswift.com/default.aspx?abbrev=jpia


Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access 
It is our policy to: 

• Report information about COVID-19 cases and outbreaks at our workplace to the
local health department whenever required by law, and provide any related
information requested by the local health department as well as our worker’s comp
liability provider.

• Maintain records of the steps taken to implement our written COVID-19 Prevention
Program in accordance with section 3203(b).

• Make our written COVID-19 Prevention Program available at the workplace to
employees, authorized employee representatives, and to representatives of Cal/OSHA
immediately upon request.

• Use the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form to keep a record of and
track all COVID-19 cases.

Return-to-Work Criteria 
• COVID-19 cases with symptoms will not return to work until all the following have

occurred:
○ At least 24 hours have passed since a fever of 100.4 °F. or higher has resolved

without the use of fever-reducing medications, and
○ COVID-19 symptoms have improved, and
○ At least 10 days have passed since COVID-19 symptoms first appeared.

• COVID-19 cases who tested positive but never developed symptoms will not return
to work until a minimum of 10 days have passed since the date of specimen collection
of their first positive COVID-19 test.

• A negative COVID-19 test will not be required for an employee to return to work once
the requirements for “cases with symptoms” or “cases who tested positive but never
developed symptoms” (above) have been met.

• Persons who had a close contact may return to work as follows:
○ Close contact but never developed symptoms: when 10 days have passed since the

last known close contact.
○ Close contact with symptoms: when the “cases with symptoms” criteria (above)

have been met, unless the following are true:
● The person tested negative for COVID-19 using a polymerase chain reaction (PCR)

COVID-19
test with specimen taken after the onset of symptoms; and

● At least 10 days have passed since the last known close contact, and
● The person has been symptom-free for at least 24 hours, without using fever-reducing

medications.
● If an order to isolate, quarantine, or exclude an employee is issued by a local or state

health official, the employee will not return to work until the period of isolation or
quarantine is completed or the order is lifted.



Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards 
All persons, regardless of symptoms or negative COVID-19 test results, will be 
considered potentially infectious. Particular attention will be paid to areas where people 
may congregate or come in contact with one another, regardless of whether employees 
are performing an assigned work task or not. For example: meetings, trainings, entrances, 
bathrooms, hallways, aisles, walkways, elevators, break or eating areas, cool-down 
areas, and waiting areas. 
 
Evaluation of potential workplace exposure will be to all persons at the workplace or who 
may enter the workplace, including coworkers, employees of other entities, members of 
the public, customers or clients, and independent contractors. We will consider how 
employees and other persons enter, leave, and travel through the workplace, in addition 
to addressing stationary work. 
 
Person conducting the evaluation:  

Miyko Harris-Parker 

Date: 

Name(s) of employee(s) that participated:  
 

Interaction, 
area, activity, 
work task, 
process, 
equipment 
and material 
that 
potentially 
exposes 
employees to 
COVID-19 
hazards 

 
 

Places 
and 
times 

 
Potential for 
COVID-19 
exposures and 
employees 
affected, 
including 
members of the 
public and 
employees of 
other 
employers 

 

Existing 
and/or 
additional 
COVID-19 
prevention 
controls 

    

    

    



    

    

    

    



Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections 
 
Date: [enter date] 
 
Name of person conducting the inspection: [enter names] 
 
Work location evaluated: [enter information] 
 
 

Exposure Controls Status Person 
Assigned to 
Correct 

Date 
Corrected 

Engineering 
   

Ventilation* (amount of 
fresh air and 
filtration maximized) 

   

Additional room air 
filtration* 

   

    

Administrative 
   

Surface cleaning and 
disinfection 
(Frequently enough 
and 
adequate 
supplies) 

   

Hand washing facilities 
(Adequate numbers 
and supplies) 

   

Disinfecting and hand 
sanitizing solutions 
being used according 
tomanufacturer 
instructions 

   

    



Exposure 
Controls 

Status Person 
Assigned to 
Correct 

Date 
Corrected 

Face coverings 
(cleaned 
sufficiently often) 

   

Face 
shields/goggles 

   

*Identify and 
evaluate how to 
maximize 
ventilation with 
outdoor air; the 
highest level of 
filtration efficiency 
compatible with 
the existing 
ventilation system; 
and whether the 
use of portable or 
mounted HEPA 
filtration units, or 
other air cleaning 
systems, would 
reduce the risk of 
COVID-19 
transmission. 
Review applicable 
orders and 
guidance from the 
State of California 
and local health 
departments 
related to COVID-
19 hazards and 
prevention have 
been reviewed, 
including the 
CDPH Interim 
Guidance for 
Ventilation, 
Filtrations, 
and Air Quality in 
Indoor 
Environments and 
information 
specific to your 
industry, location, 
and operations. 
We maximize the 
quantity of outside 
air provided to the 
extent feasible, 
except when the 
United States 

   



Environmental 
Protection Agency 
(EPA) Air Quality 
Index is greater 
than 100 for any 
pollutant or if 
opening windows 
or maximizing 
outdoor air by 
other means 
would cause a 
hazard to 
employees, for 
instance from 
excessive heat or 
cold. 



Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases 
All personal identifying information of COVID-19 cases or persons with COVID-19 symptoms, and 
any employee required medical records will be kept confidential unless disclosure is required or 
permitted by law. Un-redacted information on COVID-19 cases will be provided to the local health 
department, CDPH, Cal/ 
OSHA, the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) immediately upon 
request, and when required by law. 
 
Date of exposure of confirmed diagnosis:  

Name of person conducting the investigation: 

Name of COVID-19 case (employee or non-employee*) and contact information:  
 
Occupation (if non-employee*, why they were in the workplace):  
 

*If we are made aware of a non-employee COVID-19 case in our workplace 
 
Names of employees/representatives involved in the investigation:  
 
Date investigation was initiated: 
 
Locations where the COVID-19 case was present in the workplace during the high-risk 
exposure period, and activities being performed:  
 
Date and time the COVID-19 case was last present and excluded from the workplace:  
 
Date of the positive or negative test and/or diagnosis: 
 
Date the case first had one or more COVID-19 symptoms, if any: 
 
Information received regarding COVID-19 test results and onset of symptoms (attach 
documentation): 
 
Summary determination of who may have had a close contact with the COVID-19 case during 
the high- risk exposure period. Attach additional information, including: 
• The names of those found to be in close contact. 
• Their vaccination status. 
• When testing was offered, including the results and the names of those that were exempt 

from        testing because. 
○ They were fully vaccinated before the close contact and do not have symptoms. 
○ They returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained symptom free 

for 90 days or, for those that never developed symptoms, for 90 days after the initial 
positive test. 

• The names of those that were excluded per our Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and 
Employees who had a Close Contact requirement. 

• The names of those exempt from exclusion requirements because: 
○ They were fully vaccinated before the close contact and did not develop COVID-19 

symptoms. 
○ They returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained symptom free 

for 90 days or, for those that never developed symptoms, for 90 days after the initial 
positive test. 

 
 



 
Notice given (within one business day, in a way that does not reveal any personal identifying 
information of the COVID-19 case) of the potential COVID-19 exposure to: 

1. All employees who were in close contact 
2. Their authorized representatives (If applicable, the notice required by Labor Code section 

6409.6(a) 
(2) and (c)) 

 
 
Names of employees 

that were 
notified: 

 
Names of their 

authorized 
representatives: 

 
Date 

   

   

   

   

Independent contractors and other employers present at the workplace during the high-risk 
exposure period. 
 

 
Names of individuals that were 
notified: 

 
Date 

  

  

  

  



What were the workplace conditions that could have contributed to the risk of COVID-19 
exposure? 
 
What could be done to reduce exposure to COVID-19? 
 
Was local health department notified?       Date? 



 
 
Date: 

Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster 

 

Person that conducted the training:  
 
 

 
Employee Name 

 
Signature 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



Appendix E: Documentation of Employee COVID-19 
Vaccination Status - CONFIDENTIAL 

 

Employee Name Fully or Partially 
Vaccinated1 

Method of 
Documentation2 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1Update, accordingly and maintain as confidential medical record 
2Acceptable options include: 

• Employees provide proof of vaccination (vaccine card, image of vaccine card or health care document 
showing vaccination status) and employer maintains a copy. 

• Employees provide proof of vaccination. The employer maintains a record of the employees who 
presented proof, but not the vaccine record itself. 

• Employees self-attest to vaccination status and employer maintains a record of who self-attests. 



COVID-19 Prevention Polices 
 
The SFCJPA is committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for all our employees and 
guests to our offices. To ensure we have a safe and healthy workplace, we have developed the 
following COVID-19 Preparedness Policies in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. All employees 
are responsible for implementing these policies. The goal is to mitigate the potential transmission of 
COVID-19 in our workplace 

and community, and that requires full cooperation from our employees. These policies 
follow guidance developed by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). 
 
a) It is the policy of the SFCJPA to minimize the risk of work-place transmission of COVID-19 and 

other easily transmissible illnesses through effective health and wellness best-practices, including: 
Sanitation, mask-wearing, handwashing, Social Distancing, including - separate, closed-door 
workspaces, utilization of web-based/teleconference meetings in place of in-person meetings, 
support for flexible and remote work arrangements, appropriate periods of isolation in the event of 
potential or actual COVID-19, or other easily transmissible illness exposure.  
 

b) Employees should familiarize themselves with the common symptoms of COVID-19 and screen for 
symptoms. If any symptoms should develop, employees should stay home, notify Human 
Resources at mhparker@sfcjpa.org, and contact their health care provider to seek testing. Check 
your benefits file at https://secure.bswift.com/default.aspx?abbrev=jpia for more information on your 
benefits plan. 

 
c) All employees will use the provided equipment (thermometers provided in each COVID-19 kit in 

each SFCJPA office) to measure their temperature and record it on the provided log once each day 
upon entering the building. Anyone with a temperature greater than 100.4° F should immediately 
leave the building, inform their supervisor of their fever, begin quarantining at home, and contact 
their health care provider to seek testing. 

 
d) The SFCJPA requires all employees to stay at least six feet apart whenever possible, regardless of 

if masks are being worn. If physical distancing is not possible, employees should limit the time of 
the contact and avoid any physical contact. 

 
e) The SFCJPA has created a process for informing employees if they have been exposed to a person 

with COVID-19 in the workplace that requires them to quarantine for 14 days since the last 
exposure. All employees will be notified via written notice/email of possible exposure. 
 

f) If an employee is made aware of an exposure to COVID-19 outside of the 
workplace (either by the positive individual or the Health Department), they must 
inform Human Resources and immediately begin quarantining at home. 

 
g) The SFCJPA supports and understands that employees may be unable to work from 

home and fully promotes workers staying at home when they are sick when household 
members are sick, or when required by a health care provider or the Health Department to isolate 
or quarantine themselves or a member of their household. 

https://secure.bswift.com/default.aspx?abbrev=jpia


San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 
November 18, 2021 Board Meeting  

Agenda Item 6.A.. 
Executive Director’s Report 

1 

Executive Director’s Report, November 18, 2021 

Project Updates  

Reach 2 Project -  

Easement Acquisition - 

Staff have identified all parcels from which additional land easements will be needed to 
construct the project as currently designed. In San Mateo County, the JPA is working with San 
Mateo County and OneShoreline to gain access to two properties over which the County entities 
have existing easements – one at Pope-Chaucer Bridge and another at the Reller restoration 
site. Palo Alto, East Palo Alto and the JPA are in discussions about obtaining easement for the 
parcel beneath the Newell Road Bridge in San Mateo County; OneShoreline holds an existing 
easement over a portion of the parcel, and Palo Alto has prepared a plat and legal description to 
facilitate easement acquisition/transfer for the remainder.  

In Santa Clara County, the JPA has initiated contact with all properties owners from which 
additional easements will be needed to accommodate the current project design. Valley Water 
has initiated formal acquisition processes and will lead this effort on their side of the creek. 

In 2018/2019 Valley Water’s hydraulic modelers and engineering team realized that the current, 
aging structures along sections of the creek channel, which protrude above the top of the 
natural bank, were used as the de-facto ‘top-of-bank’ datum when modeling water surface 
elevations. Refreshing that conversation now, and with a current Valley Water evaluation of the 
integrity of those features, it is very likely that additional work will be needed to reinforce or 
replace these features. We want to be very sure we are not transferring risk to these areas 
downstream of Newell Bridge. The exact scope, cost, timing, FEMA and CEQA implications for 
this work are being evaluated. We will have more information for the Board at the December 
meeting. 

USACE CAP 205 Project/Coordination - 

The virtual NEPA scoping meeting and community project update held on October 25 enjoyed 
robust attendance with over 75 community members joining the webinar. 

The NEPA scoping comment period is open until November 30, 2021. Email address and postal 
address for community members to submit their comments have been widely disseminated to 
the RSVP list and our broader contacts list.  



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority  
November 18, 2021 Board Meeting  

Agenda Item 6.A.. 
Executive Director’s Report 

2 
 

Reach 2 Project Permitting –  

We are working on final information needs for draft permit applications. We are on schedule to 
submit draft 401 and 404 packages for current design, which include the LEDPA analysis and 
Mitigation Monitoring Plan, in November to continue our pace for receiving construction permits 
in November 2022. The addition of reinforcement or replacement of existing top of bank 
features downstream of Newell Road Bridge could push applications out by 2-3 months. 

The SFCJPA and Stanford will be hosting a multi-agency meeting on December 7.  

 

Summary of Reach 2 Project Elements and Status 

Reach 2 
Elements 

Design Permitting Rights of Way Utility 
Relocations 

Construction 
Funding 

Status 50% - 90% Work is 
underway 
on potential 
optimization 
of widening 
sites to 
minimize 
impacts to 
trees, creek 
channel and 
property 
owners 

Coordination 
ongoing 
between 
SFCJPA and 
Valley Water 
re. rights of 
way process, 
roles and 
responsibilities. 

Utility 
mapping 
underway.  
PG&E has 
assigned PM 
for 
coordination 

Construction 
funding gaps 
table is 
current.    

This 
Month’s 
Update 

The SFCJPA 
evaluated 
several new 
alternatives 
to determine 
if it is 
possible to 
further 
reduce 
impacts to 
creek 
channel and 
trees as part 
of LEDPA 
analysis.  
The results 
indicate that 
the proposed 
project is the 
LEDPA.  
 
The Army 

Impacts 
calculations 
completed.  
JPA Staff 
met with 
RWQCB 
staff on 11/9 
to discuss 
cooperative 
process for 
completing 
LEDPA 
analysis. 
. 

Valley Water 
now leading on 
easements for 
channel 
widening in 
Santa Clara 
County.  
 
 
Notice of 
Determination 
to appraise 
property 
owned by San 
Mateo County 
for Reach 2 
easement to 
be brought to 
Board in 
December. 

 
Additional 
funding from 
FEMA is 
being sought 

 
An updated 
Benefit Cost 
Analysis 
(BCA) to 
enable 
additional 
FEMA funding 
for Pope-
Chaucer 
Bridge 
construction 
has been 
completed  



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority  
November 18, 2021 Board Meeting  

Agenda Item 6.A.. 
Executive Director’s Report 

3 
 

Reach 2 
Elements 

Design Permitting Rights of Way Utility 
Relocations 

Construction 
Funding 

Corps of 
Engineers 
will evaluate 
options for 
creating 
creek 
capacity.  
 
 

For Next 
Month 
(Nov/Dec) 

CAP 205 
hydraulic 
modeling to 
support 
design 
development 
to be 
completed.  
Corps to test 
performance 
of JPA 
alternative 
against other 
alternatives. 

Draft 401 
and 404 
packages to 
be 
completed 
and ready 
for 
submission.  
Formal 
consultation 
with 
USFWS and 
NMFS to 
begin in 
November 
or 
December. 

JPA staff and 
legal will begin 
drafting 
documents for 
San Mateo 
County.   
 
VW will 
continue 
easement 
acquisition 
legal process 
for Santa Clara 
County.   
 

Initiate 
coordination 
of utility 
relocation for 
overall 
project with 
PGE, not 
just Pope 
Chaucer 
Bridge.  
Develop cost 
estimates 
with utility 
companies 

Additional $9M 
request from 
CalOES/FEMA 
 
Investigating 
previously 
‘wait listed’ 
HMGP 
channel work 
funding 
application for 
possible 
resuscitation. 
(potential for 
$5M in 
construction 
funding) 

Potential 
Issues 

 
VW and JPA 
are 
evaluating 
top of bank 
structures 
downstream 
of Newell 
Road that 
may need 
reinforcement 
or 
replacement 
to avoid 
transfer of 
flood risk. 

Addition of 
fish 
migration 
elements 
could 
increase 
project 
footprint and 
costs 

Negotiating 
with private 
property 
owners.  

Overhead 
power lines 
– or other 
utilities - 
could impact 
construction 
methods and 
costs.  
Underground 
utilities may 
limit design 
options. 

Not all funding 
sources have 
been secured 
through 
agreements 
and others 
have timelines 
that must be 
met 

 

 

 



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority  
November 18, 2021 Board Meeting  

Agenda Item 6.A.. 
Executive Director’s Report 

4 
 

 

Reach 2 Milestones 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Upstream Detention Evaluation  

 
Our consultants have updated the hydraulic models based on newly gathered information from 
Stanford and their consultants and are now developing the concept design to be reviewed by 
staff and Stanford in December. This concept design will be incorporated into our LEDPA 
analysis for Reach 2, as well as inform potential future conditions based on Stanford’s planned 
modification of Searsville Dam. There are still significant feasibility and logistical challenges for 
potential detention basins in Reach 3. These include not only the need for significant excavation 
and material off-hauling, limited access for construction equipment, protected species, and 
cultural resources, but also the likely need for involvement by the California Division of Safety of 
Dams (DOSD) for above ground embankments.  

 

SAFER Bay  

Funding –  

On November 9, 2021, the City of Menlo Park City Council held a study session on a $50M 
grant opportunity from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Building Resilient 
Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) program for a portion of the SAFER Bay project. At this 
meeting the Menlo Park Council provided the following direction to staff: 

Milestone By 
Jan 
‘22) 
 

By July 
’22) 

By Jan 
’23) 

2023/2024 
Construction/ 
Completion 

Determination of Site 5 action (in 
progress) 

    

USACE FSCA and Feasibility 
Study 

    

Acquire land easements    
Utility relocation to 
accommodate construction 

   

Permits acquired    
Funding agreement      
O&M agreement    
Final Design    
Bid and Award      
Construction of Newell Bridge    2023 
Construction of Widening Sites    2023 
Construction of Pope Chaucer 
Bridge 

   2024 



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority  
November 18, 2021 Board Meeting  

Agenda Item 6.A.. 
Executive Director’s Report 

5 
 

• Confirmed Menlo Park’s role as the grant applicant and project lead; 
• Directed staff to develop a resolution to accept the grant funds and complete a 

memorandum of understanding between the project partners documenting roles, 
responsibilities and obligations; 

• Directed staff to include budget for a provisional, full-time employee for an initial three-
year term to manage project; and 

• Directed staff to return with options during the fiscal year 2022-23 budget process for the 
project to maintain positive cash flow while awaiting receipt of FEMA grant 
reimbursements. 

 

The Draft MOU between the City of Menlo Park, the SFCJPA, Meta (formerly Facebook) and 
PG&E is before you for discussion and possible comment, as Action Item 7.A. 

 

On October 27, as a sub-applicant to MTC/BARC, we applied for a SB 1 Sustainable 
Communities transportation grant to support technical and environmental analysis, community 
outreach and engagement for the Dumbarton Corridor and SR84, in the northern part of East 
Palo Alto, that aligns with the SAFER Bay programmatic EIR.  

 

Project Status –  

Notice of Preparation (NOP) Issuance - We plan to release the NOP for a Programmatic EIR in 
December-January, with public meetings in early 2022.  

 
Reach 1 Project - 
 
At the October 2021 meeting the Board authorized the Executive Director to enter into a Master 
Services Agreement covering a 7-year period for a consultant to provide mitigation monitoring 
and reporting, as well as recommendations for periodic maintenance activities, for the project’s 
mitigation sites (2022 through 2028). The Master Service Agreement for this work has now been 
executed. 
 
Interpretive signs - We are reviewing draft panels; fabrication and installation of the of 
interpretive panels on the Friendship Bridge were to be included in an installation contract held 
by the City of Palo Alto for similar signs within the Palo Alto Baylands.  Installation of Palo Alto’s 
signs have been postponed to September 2022 due to a delay in grant funding. We are 
considering our options to move forward with installation of our signs and a commemorative 
plaque and bench honoring community member Tommie Roberts before the end of the year.  

 

 

 



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority  
November 18, 2021 Board Meeting  

Agenda Item 6.A.. 
Executive Director’s Report 

6 
 

 

Forward View of Board Agendas -  

Please review and provide your input on items that you would like to see on future agendas. 
This forward view is updated for each Board Meeting.  

 
Regular Board meeting  Envisioned Agenda Items 
December In-Person vs. Virtual vs. Hybrid Meetings 

Winter emergency preparedness 
Three-year rolling workplan review and update 
Members Agreement (tentative)  
 

January Election of new board member positions 
February Begin E.D. Review and Budget process 
March Complete E.D. Review 
April Finalize Budget 
May  

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

Agenda Item 6.B. Reach 2 Cost and Funding Scenarios Update 

 

Background 

At the Board’s October 2021 Study Session, a range of project cost projections and 
funding scenarios was presented for the Board’s consideration and discussion. The 
Board determined that there were too many outstanding uncertainties to develop a 
framework for a funding agreement at this time and directed staff to provide regular 
updates on cost and funding information. 

Discussion 

Since the October Board meeting, some additional information has come to light: 

• There is a remainder of approximately $300,000 from the General Investigation 
study which Valley Water can apply to the Reach 2 project. 

• We are probing whether a “wait listed” HMGP grant application for $5M in 
funding for Channel Improvements may be moved to the ‘approved’ column. 
We’ll be submitting an updated NOI per CalOES recommendation.  

• Valley Water, as project applicant, will be submitting a budget increase request 
for the Pope-Chaucer Bridge HMGP grant, increasing the request from $3M to 
$9M. We have completed a Benefit/Cost Analysis for this increase, which meets 
CalOES/FEMA thresholds and will engage with CalOES to confirm acceptance of 
this budget expansion.  

• In 2018/2019 Valley Water’s hydraulic modelers and engineering team realized 
that the current, aging structures along sections of the creek channel, which 
protrude above the top of the natural bank, were used as the de-facto ‘top-of-
bank’ datum when modeling water surface elevations. Refreshing that 
conversation now, and with a current evaluation of the integrity of those features, 
it is very likely that additional work will need to be done to reinforce or replace 
these features. The exact scope, cost, timing, and CEQA implications for this 
work are being evaluated. We will have more information for the Board at the 
December meeting. 

These new pieces of information have been included in the summary totals and 
analyses below. 

Not shown in the tables below are the range of possible funding gap scenarios, which 
will continue to evolve as uncertainties are either identified or resolved.  

At this time, the funding gap scenarios range from less than a $1M gap if ALL potential 
funding sources are realized AND the minimum amount of project work and associated 
construction costs are necessary, to a middle range of $8M-$14M that includes a blend 
of some additional scope of work, and that some potential funding falls through, to a 



Page 2 of 2 
 

worst case scenario of no other funding than Valley Water’s contributions plus additional 
scope of work, for a total estimated gap of $40.6M.  

We will continue to work toward resolving funding uncertainties, identifying additional 
funding opportunities at the State and federal level, and refining the scope and cost of 
the various project elements – including ancillary costs such as utility relocations. We 
will provide the Board monthly updates going forward. 

 

Estimated project construction costs   

Project Elements  Total  

Newell Road Bridge Modification $10,099,600  
Newell Road Bridge Federally Non-Participating Costs $502,550  
Pope/Chaucer Bridge modification $9,762,150  
Channel Improvements $16,232,000  
Replacement or reinforcement of current in-channel and 
top of bank structures  (preliminary conservative cost 
estimate) 

$5,700,000  

Site 5 - W. Bayshore Transition Floodwall $8,169,600  
Total Reach 2 Construction Cost Estimate $50,465,900  

 

Currently Identified and Potential Funding   

Funding Sources 
Total Currently 
Identified and 
Potential Funding  

Valley Water $9,787,000  
Flood District $0  
East Palo Alto $0  
Menlo Park  $0  
Palo Alto  Pending Cal Trans Grant $8,941,176  

Valley Water/ SFCJPA 
Pending FEMA Grants $14,000,000  
Proposition 1 Grant $2,875,000  
USACE CAP 205 $8,200,000  

Total Funding Estimate $43,803,176 
 



1 
 

Agenda Item 6.C. Mid-year budget review 

 

Background 

We are providing this mid-year budget report to provide the Board and community 
insights into the operational budget and spending of the SFCJPA.  

 

Discussion 

We are approximately 40% of the way through the fiscal year. Overall, our spending is 
trending below what was projected. The reduced spending can be attributed in part to 
the continuing COVID-related work adaptations such as less travel and fewer in-person 
meetings. Some of the lower-than-projected spending is due to anticipated expenses 
not yet being incurred. Examples include planned, but not yet executed contracts, and 
the timing of the office lease cost increase.  

The budget exceedances in software/IT, postage, and printing are the result of 
necessary software updates, correspondence related to easements, and unanticipated 
printing costs for the USACE NEPA Scoping Meeting. These exceedances are still well 
within the overall spending projected for the organization.  

The SFCJPA will begin its budget process for the next fiscal year in February of 2022.  

 

Recommendation 

Review and comment on this information item. 



San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority -- FY 2021-22 Operating Budget 

REVENUES:
Member Agency Contr ($337,240 X 5) 1,686,200$     1,348,960$                       
Grant funding: SAFER Bay project 1 (received 11/12/2021) 155,075.67$                     
Upstream of Highway 101 EIR Legal -$                                     
Interest 3,500$            64$                                   
Total Revenues 1,689,700$   1,504,099$                       

 Approved 
Budget 

 7/01/2021 - 11/09/2021 
Actual 

Percent of Budget 
spent to date

EXPENSES
Acct. Description Amount Amount Amount
Personnel
1 Executive Director Salary 155,000$  58,125$              37%
2 E.D. Transportation Allowance 5,000$            1,875$                              38%
3 Finance & Office Manager Salary 106,668$     37,258$                        35%
4 Senior Project Manager 123,480$        48,389$                            39%
5 Senior Project Manager 123,480$        48,389$                            39%
6 COLA 15,913$          -$                                 0%
7 Employee Benefits 254,500$        74,628$                            29%
8 Membership Dues 15,000$          240$                                 2%
9 Payroll Administration/Fees 3,000$            944$                                 31%
10 Employer Taxes 62,000$          20,097$                            32%

Subtotal Personnel 864,041$        289,945$                          34%
Contract Services
11 Legal Counsel 130,000$        22,610$                            17%
12 Auditor 20,000$          -$                                     0%
13 Project Consultants 70,000$          8,288$                              12%

One-Time Upstream of Hwy. 1010 Project Expenses 231,500$        47,635$                            21%
Reach 2 EIR Addendum 50,000$          -$                                     0%
Cap 205 160,000$        70,000$                            44%
O&M 70,000$          -$                                     0%
Subtotal Contract Services 731,500$        148,533$                          20%

Administrative
14 Computers/Software/Support 5,000$            4,392$                              88%
15 Meeting Supplies 2,500$            208$                                 8%
16 Travel/Training 9,000$            122$                                 1%
17 Office Supplies 1,500$            782$                                 52%
18 Telecommunication 2,000$            640$                                 32%
19 IT 4,000$            -$                                     0%
20 Postage 100$               115$                                 115%
21 Printing/Design 1,000$            4,311$                              431%
22 Website 1,500$            478$                                 32%
23 Liability Insurance 15,000$          9,653$                              64%
24 Office Lease 56,000$          19,034$                            34%
25 Utilities -$                                     0%
26 Office furniture/maintenance 800$               -$                                          0%

Subtotal Administrative 98,400$          39,736$                            40%
General Contingency
2027 General Contingency 35,000$          -$                                     0%
Total Expenses 1,728,941$   478,214$                     28%



Page 1 of 1 
 

Agenda Item 7.A. SAFER Bay BRIC DRAFT Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

 

Background 

A grant application to the FEMA “Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities” 
(BRIC) was submitted by Menlo Park as the lead applicant, in partnership with the 
SFCJPA, Meta (formerly Facebook) and PG&E. The application requested the 
maximum amount ($50M) and utilized matching fund commitments totaling $17.8M from 
Meta and PG&E.  

Based on preliminary notifications and a recent request for technical information, we are 
confident that the Menlo Park BRIC SAFER Bay project team will be awarded this grant. 

In preparation for accepting this grant, and for executing the myriad tasks associated 
with the project’s implementation, the project team has collaboratively drafted a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  

On Tuesday, November 9, the Menlo Park City Council held a study session on the 
topic of the Menlo Park SAFER Bay BRIC grant. Menlo Park staff anticipate bringing the 
MOU to City Council for their approval sometime in or shortly after January 2022.  

 

Discussion 

The draft MOU as presented here for discussion represents the collaborative input from 
all four parties. The text has been reviewed by the SFCJPA’s legal counsel and all other 
parties’ legal counsels. The MOU may be updated based upon this discussion and the 
Board’s comments. 

SFCJPA approval of the final MOU will follow Menlo Park City Council’s approval.  

 

Recommendation 

Please review and provide any comments which we will convey to the BRIC team.  



  

 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

AMONG THE CITY OF MENLO PARK, SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY, PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, AND META PLATFORMS, INC. IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE MENLO PARK PORTION OF THE SAFER BAY PROJECT  

 

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (this MOU or Agreement) is dated for 
convenience ____________, 2021, to be effective as of the Effective Date (defined below), 
among the CITY OF MENLO PARK, a municipal corporation (Menlo Park or City), the SAN 
FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, an entity comprised of the cities of East 
Palo Alto, Palo Alto, and Menlo Park, the San Mateo County Flooding and Sea Level Resiliency 
District and the Santa Clara Valley Water District for the purpose of exercising special powers to 
lead projects that mitigate the risk of flooding along the San Francisquito Creek and the Bay 
(SFCJPA or JPA), PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a California corporation (PG&E) 
and META PLATFORMS, INC., a Delaware corporation (Meta) formerly known as Facebook, Inc., 
individually referred to as a Party and collectively referred to as the Parties and is for the purpose 
of collaborating on the Menlo Park portion of the SAFER Bay Project. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS: The SFCJPA has released two Public Draft Feasibility Reports (Feasibility 
Studies) for a Strategy to Advance Flood protection, Ecosystems and Recreation 
along San Francisco Bay, referred to as the SAFER Bay Project; an October 2016 
Feasibility Study with respect to portions of the SAFER Bay Project in East Palo 
Alto and Menlo Park; and a June 2019 Feasibility Study with respect to portions of 
the SAFER Bay Project in Palo Alto; and 

 
WHEREAS: The Menlo Park portion of the SAFER Bay Project is a portion of the overall SAFER 

Bay Project in Menlo Park comprised of 3.7 miles of engineered levees and 
floodwalls that would protect segments of California State Route 84 and PG&E’s 
Ravenswood Substation, which are anchors for power service and transportation 
to the area, and would include construction of new levees surrounding the Meta 
classic campus (formerly referred to as the east campus) (Classic Campus), 
along an alignment known as SAFER Bay Reach 4 and along Bayfront 
Expressway (Reaches 2 and 3) as depicted in the Vicinity Map attached as part of 
Exhibit A. The Menlo Park portion of the SAFER Bay Project will also increase 
recreational access to the Bay shoreline; and, by leveraging nature-based design, 
enable habitat restoration work in sections of the Don Edward San Francisco Bay 
National Wildlife Refuge; and 

 
WHEREAS: The Parties acknowledge and agree that an overall San Francisco Bay flood 

control and sea level rise resiliency project is critical to the long term viability of the 
Parties’ and the region’s operations and facilities.  For example, the networked 
infrastructure located within and serving residents of the City, which contains roads 
and highways, electric substations, and wastewater treatment plants that are 
essential to day-to-day community and economic functions and a complex grid of 



 2 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

services means that sea level rise could adversely affect regional businesses and 
residents. Thus, a flooded highway, wastewater treatment plant or electrical 
substation could temporarily shut-down businesses, close roads and lead to many 
community wide disruptions; and 

 
WHEREAS: The goals of the Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project include protection of the PG&E 

Ravenswood Substation, a critical power supply for over 300,000 people, as well 
as the construction of flood control elements designed to provide a 100-year level 
of coastal flood protection and 3.5 feet of sea level rise adaptation; and 

 
WHEREAS: In planning the SAFER Bay Project, the Parties recognize the importance of both 

“mitigation” and “adaptation” as strategies to reduce overall vulnerability to the 
adverse effects of flooding and sea-level rise; and 

 
WHEREAS: In September 2020, PG&E expressed a desire to plan, design, and construct a 

flood control and sea level rise resiliency project around PG&E’s Ravenswood 
electrical substation located adjacent to 2005 Willow Road in Menlo Park, 
corresponding to a portion of Reach 5 identified in the SFCJPA’s SAFER Bay 
Project Feasibility Studies; and 

 
WHEREAS: Menlo Park agreed to assume the role of applicant for the purpose of submitting 

an application for the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) fiscal year 
2020 Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant opportunity 
on behalf of a project for a portion of the overall SAFER BAY Project within Menlo 
Park (Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project or Project); and 

 
WHEREAS: PG&E offered to contribute $10 million to meet the grant program’s 25% minimum 

local match funding requirement and for flood control and sea level rise resiliency 
facilities around its Ravenswood electrical substation; and 

 
WHEREAS: The SFCJPA, being familiar with the proposed project scope of work due to 

developing the SAFER Bay Project Feasibility Study, agreed to become a project 
partner; and 

 
WHEREAS: Meta offered to contribute an additional $7.808 million of local match funding to 

expand the proposed Project scope of work to include measures regarding its 
approximately 56.9 acre “Classic Campus” (including Buildings 10-19) located at 
1 Hacker Way in Menlo Park; and 

 
WHEREAS: The proposed Project scope of work was expanded to include a portion of Reach 

2, a portion of Reach 5 and all of Reaches 3 and 4, all as described in the Feasibility 
Studies; and 

 
WHEREAS: The Parties worked collaboratively to develop a complete Project grant application 

for submittal to FEMA; and 
 
WHEREAS: On the basis of PG&E and Meta’s assurances of their support for the Project, 

Menlo Park confirmed in the BRIC grant application that it has secured the grant 
program’s 25% minimum local match funding requirement; and 



 3 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

 
WHEREAS: On January 29, 2021, the Parties received notification that the Menlo Park SAFER 

Bay Project application was accepted by FEMA for review and funding 
consideration; and 

 
WHEREAS: On July 2, 2021, the Parties received notification that the Menlo Park SAFER Bay 

Project application was selected by FEMA for further review; and 
 
WHEREAS: In anticipation of FEMA awarding Menlo Park $50 Million in BRIC grant funding for 

the Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project and subject to such award, the Parties wish to 
enter into this MOU to establish a framework for funding, planning, permitting, 
designing, constructing, and operating and maintaining the Project. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
1. Definitions. 

Capitalized terms not defined elsewhere in this MOU shall have the following meanings: 

AHJ’s means all federal, state, regional and local authorities having jurisdiction. 

Applicable Laws mean all applicable federal, state, regional and local statutes, 
ordinances, laws, rules, regulations, orders and other laws, including without limitation all 
BRIC grant and AHJ requirements. 

City is defined in the Preamble. 

Contractor means any contractor, designer, consultant, supplier, vendor, manufacturer, 
or other third party hired by any of the Parties to perform any of the services or work in 
connection with the Project which is paid for, in whole or in part, with any Project funds. 

Council means the City’s City Council. 

Effective Date is defined in Section 3. 

Meta is defined in the Preamble. 

O&M means long-term operations and maintenance of the completed Project. 

Phase is a Project phase more particularly described in Section 5. 

PG&E is defined in the Preamble. 

Project EIR is defined in Section 8. 

Programmatic EIR is defined in Section 8. 

2. Purpose of MOU.  This MOU establishes a framework for funding, planning, permitting, 
designing, constructing, and operating and maintaining the Project, and establishes 
certain contractual obligations concerning, inter alia, commitment to pay promised local 
matching funds between and among the Parties in connection with the Project. 



 4 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

3. Effectiveness.  This MOU is effective (Effective Date) immediately upon mutual 
execution by all Parties.  The obligations of this MOU (with the exception of this 
Effectiveness provision) do not become legally enforceable until the date Menlo Park 
receives assurance adequate to the City Council or its designee and the Parties that an 
adequate level of FEMA grant funding, currently anticipated to be $50 million, has been 
committed to this Project (“Assurance”).  If by October 1, 2024, such Assurance has not 
been received, then at any time thereafter and prior to transmittal of such Assurance, any 
Party may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the other Parties. 

4. General Role of Each Party.   As more specifically described in this MOU, the general 
roles and responsibilities of each Party for the Project are as follows: 

(a) Menlo Park.  

(i) “Applicant” under the BRIC grant. 

(ii) “Lead Agency” for the Project EIR. 

(iii) “Lead” for certain property rights acquisition. 

(iv) “Lead” for Project design and construction, including being the “Owner” 
(i.e., holder) of the Project consulting, design, and construction contracts. 

(v) Subject to Section 12, responsibility for long-term Project O&M. 

(b) SFCJPA. 

(i) Provide technical support to Menlo Park under the BRIC application. 

(ii) “Lead Agency” for the Programmatic EIR. 

(iii) “Lead” for certain property rights acquisition. 

(c) PG&E. 

(i) Funding supporter of $10,000,000 when, as, and subject to applicable 
conditions in this MOU. 

(ii) Provider of review, comment, input and suggestions (as applicable) to 
whatever other aspects of the Project around the Ravenswood substation 
it chooses. 

(iii) Contributor (without additional cost to the Project and subject to California 
Public Utilities Commission approval pursuant to a Public Utilities Code 
Section 851 process,) of all mutually agreed upon, reasonably required and 
operationally feasible rights to Ravenswood electrical substation lands 
required for the Project facilities to be constructed, operated and 
maintained on Ravenswood substation land, so long as the easements and 
rights of access do not adversely impact PG&E’s operations, in PG&E’s 
reasonable discretion.  Land rights are currently anticipated to be mutually 



 5 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

agreed upon easements or rights of entry and/or access for levees – 
contingent / predicated upon environmental review / preliminary designs.  
This clause presumes the existing levee will remain in relatively the same 
position to protect the Ravenswood electrical substation and enable 
restoration.  However, ecotone and t-zone area may be moved off of PG&E 
property at the discretion of Saltpond Project Management Team and 
Refuge, so long as this new location protects the Ravenswood Substation. 

(iv) Following Project completion (i.e., during the O&M phase), having the 
same rights and responsibilities of any other private landowner within the 
Project area, e,.g., in the event a special assessment district is formed, 
PG&E will be treated in the same manner as other property owners within 
the special assessment district. 

(v) The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this 
MOU by PG&E as long as the Project proceeds, except that the obligations 
of this subsection will not survive if this Agreement is terminated pursuant 
to Section 3. 

(d) Meta. 

(i) Funding supporter of $7,808,000 when, as, and subject to applicable 
conditions in this MOU. 

(ii) Provider of review, comment, input and suggestions (as applicable) to 
whatever other aspects of the Project it chooses.  Meta will not, however, 
have any obligation to provide any review, comment, input or suggestions. 

(iii) Contributor (without additional cost to the Project) of incidental easements, 
licenses, and/or rights of access over the Classic Campus that are 
reasonably required for the Project facilities to be constructed, operated 
and maintained, so long as the easements, licenses, and/or rights of 
access do not adversely impact Meta’s operations, in Meta’s reasonable 
discretion. 

(iv) Following Project completion (i.e., during the O&M phase), having the 
same rights and responsibilities of any other private landowner within the 
Project area, e.g., in the event a special assessment district is formed, Meta 
will be treated in the same manner as other property owners within the 
special assessment district. 

(v) The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this 
MOU by Meta, as long as the Project proceeds, except that the obligations 
of this subsection will not survive if this Agreement is terminated pursuant 
to Section 3. 

(e) There remain subjects that the Parties may require further refinement as to their 
respective responsibilities, as provided in more detail in Section 7 below. 



 6 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

(f) Nothing in this MOU or the Project will alter or modify any pre-existing obligations 
of: 

(i) PG&E to maintain the flood gate/wall in front of its Ravenswood electrical 
substation; and 

(ii) Meta for infrastructure on its Classic Campus under its pre-existing 
conditional development permit with Menlo Park; provided, however, that if 
the existing levees protecting Classic Campus are made obsolete by the 
Project, then the City agrees to cooperate with Meta to remove its 
obligation under the conditional development permit for the Classic 
Campus to maintain the existing levees. 

In the event of any conflict between any provision of this Section 4 and any other provision of this 
MOU, the provisions of this Section 4 will control. 

5. Project Description and Phases. 

(a) The current Project description is attached as Exhibit A.  Exhibit A will be revised 
from time to time as provided in this MOU.  The Project may not be revised in a 
manner that adversely impacts Meta’s property without Meta’s prior written 
approval or in a manner that adversely impacts PG&E’s property without PG&E’s 
prior written approval. 

(b) For planning and budgeting purposes, the Project is expected to proceed in the 
following general Phases.  Phases may run concurrently: 

(i) Phase 1. Includes generally: 

(1) CEQA/NEPA. 

(2) Permitting. 

(3) Project budgeting. 

(4) Seeking additional funding sources. 

(5) Pre-design and preliminary design. 

(6) Initial property rights acquisition. 

(7) Initial development of mitigation and monitoring plan. 

(8) Initial development of O&M-related matters. 

(ii) Phase 2.  Includes generally: 

(1) Final property rights acquisition. 

(2) Final design. 



 7 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

(3) Procurement and construction. 

(4) Construction phase mitigation and monitoring activities. 

(5) Final development of O&M-related matters. 

(iii) Phase 3.  Includes generally: 

(1) O&M. 

(2) Post-construction mitigation and monitoring activities. 

6. Funding, Budgeting and Cash Flow. 

(a) Concurrently with its approval of this MOU, the Council has adopted a Resolution 
accepting the BRIC grant funding. 

(b) The current Project funding sources and uses and timeline are attached hereto as 
Exhibit B and Exhibit C, respectively.  The Parties will update Exhibit B and 
Exhibit C in a mutually agreed upon manner as further information becomes 
available. 

(c) The current Project Cash Flow Projections are attached hereto as Exhibit D.  The 
Parties will update Exhibit D in a mutually agreed upon manner as further 
information becomes available. 

(d) PG&E and Meta will contribute their agreed $10,000,000 and $7,808,000, 
respectively, when and as required by the agreed Exhibit B and Exhibit C.  PG&E 
and Meta will contribute 20% of their agreed contributions within thirty days of the 
date Assurance is received, then make pro rata contributions with the City 
throughout the design phase of the Project, then make the balance of their 
respective agreed contributions upon the commencement of Project construction.  
The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this MOU by 
PG&E or Meta, as long as the Project proceeds. 

(e) The City and SFCJPA or other public partners will be responsible for seeking any 
and all grant funding and other funding sources to be used for the Project.  Meta 
and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and provide non-monetary support for 
such efforts.   

(f) Parties to align on engagement and outreach for this portion and future portions of 
the overall SAFER Bay Project. 

(g) The Parties acknowledge and agree that PG&E and Meta are not responsible for 
providing funding above the agreed respective $10,000,000 and $7,808,000 
amounts. 

(h) If final Project costs are less than the amounts raised, the Parties will discuss uses 
of remaining funds for O&M and other costs. 



 8 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

7. Subsequent Agreements.  As the Project progresses, the Parties anticipate developing 
further memoranda of understanding or agreements between some or all of them, 
including: 

(a) Permitting including potential timing and coordination between Programmatic EIR 
and Project EIR (see Section 8); 

(b) Procurement:  In-kind contributions for the Project (such as, for example, surplus 
soil or equipment); 

(c) Real estate acquisition:  Allocation of specific Project property rights acquisition; it 
is presently anticipated that SFCJPA will take the lead on initial outreach, 
communication, collaboration, and stakeholder coordination for property / 
easement / right of entry acquisition and that the City will undertake any eminent 
domain proceedings where necessary;   

(d) Responsibility, oversight and management of design and construction phases; 

(e) Responsibilities for review and approval of Project designs; 

(f) Creation of a special district(s) or other regional solution(s) to perform or pay for 
long-term O&M; 

(g) Ultimate ownership of Project facilities:  Identifying specific owner(s) (public or 
otherwise), e.g., One Shoreline, of actual Project facilities, currently anticipated to 
be City and/or JPA; 

(h) Agreements with other potential Project stakeholders; 

(i) Project Administration; and 

(j) Negotiation cost and design of potential relocation of existing PG&E transmission 
/ distribution facilities (if required by Project).  

Neither Meta nor PG&E will be obligated to participate in or contribute to any of the 
preceding subjects.   

 
8. Environmental Review.  

(a) SFCJPA will serve as the Lead Agency for the CEQA self-mitigating programmatic 
EIR for the entire SAFER Bay Project (Programmatic EIR).  The current timetable 
for the Programmatic EIR is attached as on Exhibit E.  SFCJPA will update 
Exhibit E in a mutually agreed upon manner as further information becomes 
available. 

(b) Menlo Park will serve as the Lead Agency for the CEQA Project-specific (non-
programmatic) EIR (Project EIR).  The current timetable for the Project EIR is 
attached as Exhibit F.  Menlo Park will update Exhibit F in a mutually agreed upon 
manner as further information becomes available 



 9 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

9. Project Definition and Contracts. 

(a) The Parties intend that except for specific CEQA/NEPA or other (if any) matters 
for which SFCJPA is the Lead Agency, Menlo Park will hold all third-party contracts 
to accomplish the Phase 1 and Phase 2 portions of the Project.  As for Phase 3, 
the Parties intend that Menlo Park will hold all third-party contracts, except to the 
extent O&M responsibilities can be assumed by a third party.   Contracting 
responsibility includes responsibility for requiring other parties to maintain 
reasonable and appropriate insurance, any to pay prevailing wages if otherwise 
required by Applicable Law.  However, nothing herein will require Menlo Park or 
SFCJPA to enter into any contract unless it has reasonable assurances of 
available funds. 

(b) Subject to Section 6(g), the City and SFCJPA or other public partners will be 
responsible for seeking any and all grant funding and other funding sources to be 
used for the Project in addition to the funds contributed by Meta and PG&E 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and 
provide non-monetary support for such efforts.   

(c) Until final construction completion of the Project and for three years thereafter, City 
and SFCJPA shall maintain in accordance with their standard record retention 
procedures (and require any Contractor to maintain) all such records concerning 
expenditures of Project funds relating to the funding, planning, permitting, 
designing, constructing, and operating and maintaining the Project.  The preceding 
shall include correspondence, internal memoranda, calculations, books and 
accounts, accounting records, and invoices, payrolls, records and all other data 
related to matters covered by this MOU and as may be required by FEMA or its 
designee(s).  Upon the City’s request, Meta and PG&E shall provide evidence of 
payment of the funds they have contributed to the Project pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

10. Project Permits, Entitlements and Approvals. 

(a) Subject to the specifically agreed “lead” and other responsibilities of Menlo Park 
and the SFCJPA (as applicable), the City and SFCJPA will cooperate to obtain 
and/or provide all mutually agreed upon and reasonably required entitlements, 
permits and approvals for the Project and that do not unreasonably interfere with 
operational requirements.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and 
provide non-monetary support for such efforts. 

11. Project Design and Construction. 

(a) The City and SFCJPA will cooperate to obtain approval of all project designs and 
applicable construction requirements.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to 
collaborate and provide non-monetary support for such efforts.  All Project designs 
for facilities on PG&E or Meta’s properties will be subject to PG&E or Meta’s (as 
applicable) reasonable approval, so long as it is consistent with prior approvals. 

12. Project O&M.   



 10 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

(a) Concurrently with its approval of this MOU, and consistent with the BRIC grant 
documents, the Council has adopted a Resolution undertaking a commitment to 
provide for the Project’s long term operations and maintenance expenses. 

(b) Menlo Park and SFCJPA will, with input from PG&E and Meta, have responsibility 
for developing a long-term O&M plan in compliance with all applicable laws and 
subject to approval of all AHJ’s, ideally before final design is completed and 
construction contracts are let. 

(c) As for O&M funding, Menlo Park and SFCJPA and other regional stakeholders will 
cooperate to develop other, citywide or regional-based solutions, such as a 
potential assessment district.  PG&E and Meta will be encouraged to provide 
meaningful input in developing the solutions.  PG&E and Meta acknowledge that 
any solution may require them to make Project-related payments in addition to 
those described elsewhere in this MOU.  However, provided that the final regional 
solution does not treat PG&E or Meta differently than any other similarly situated 
private property owner within the Project area, and PG&E and Meta have been 
given a reasonable opportunity to provide meaningful input, PG&E and Meta will 
not assert this MOU as a basis for different treatment than any other similarly 
situated private property owner within the Project area. 

(d) Nothing in this MOU or the Project will alter or modify any pre-existing obligations 
of: 

(i) PG&E to maintain the flood gate/wall adjacent to its Ravenswood electrical 
substation [as required or necessary based on design of project]; and 

(ii) Meta for infrastructure under its pre-existing conditional development 
permit for the Classic Campus (except as set forth in Section 4(f)(ii)). 

13. Term and Termination/Withdrawal. 

(a) This MOU will be effective as of the Effective Date, and will unless terminated 
earlier by the Parties or superseded by other agreements will be effective until five 
years after construction of the Project is completed and accepted. 

(b) PG&E and Meta may withdraw from this MOU (subject to Section 13(c)) upon 120 
days written notice to the other Parties. 

(c) The following obligations will survive expiration or termination of this MOU or 
withdrawal by a party:  (i) PG&E and Meta agreements regarding their $10,000,000 
and $7,808,000 contributions, respectively; and (ii) PG&E and Meta obligations 
under Section 4(c)(iii) and Section 4(d)(iii) respectively. Notwithstanding the 
preceding, if this MOU is terminated pursuant to Section 3 then all of PG&E’s and 
Meta’s obligations will also terminate and PG&E and Meta will not be obligated to 
make any further contributions to the Project. 

Author
Add resolution number at time of approval to ease future tracking.



 11 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

14. General Conditions. 

(a) Project Communications and Meetings.  Throughout the Project, the Parties, will 
reasonably communicate with each other in all matters relating to the Project.  The 
Parties will agree on schedule of periodic meetings to apprise the Parties and other 
Project stakeholders regarding overall Project statues, funding, design and 
construction, etc. 

(b) Revisions to Exhibits and Schedules.  All Exhibits and Schedules to this MOU are 
subject to revision and updating from time to time.  The Parties will reasonably 
cooperate in such revisions. 

(c) No Consequential Damages. The Parties hereby agree that, in the event of default, 
any damages awarded or arising under this MOU shall be exclusively limited to 
actual direct damages incurred and which have been demonstrated with 
substantial certainty.  In no instance shall the Parties be entitled to special, 
incidental, indirect, consequential or punitive damages, lost profits or attorney’s 
fees.  By acceptance and execution of this MOU, the Parties hereby agree that the 
only monetary damages contemplated by them as arising from this MOU are actual 
or direct damages.  The Parties specifically agree that damages suffered by Menlo 
Park as a result of PG&E or Meta’s failure to pay their monetary contributions when 
and as required are actual and direct damages. 

15. Representations and Warranties. 

Each Party represents, warrants and covenants to the other parties as follows: 

(a) Authority.  The Party has the legal power and authority to execute and deliver this 
MOU and to perform its obligations under this MOU. 

(b) Due Authorization.  The approval, execution, and delivery of this MOU, and the 
performance by such Party of its obligations under this MOU, have been 
authorized by all requisite actions of the Party. 

(c) Due Execution and Delivery.  The persons executing this MOU on behalf of the 
Party are duly authorized to execute and deliver this MOU on behalf of the Party. 

(d) No Conflict.  The approval, execution, delivery and performance of this MOU does 
not conflict with any other agreement to which the Party is a party and does not 
violate or require any action which has not been taken under any law, statute, rule, 
regulation, ordinance, general plan, tribal law, specific plan or court order or decree 
applicable to the Party. 

16. Miscellaneous.   

(a) Indemnification. Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, Menlo Park and 
SFCJPA agree to fully indemnify, defend, and hold the other Parties (including 
their appointed and elected officials, officers, employees, and agents) harmless 
and free from any damage or liability imposed for injury (as defined by Government 
Code Section 810.8) occurring by reason of the negligent acts or omissions or 



 12 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

willful misconduct of the indemnifying Party, its appointed or elected officials, 
officers, employees, or agents, under or in connection with any work, authority, or 
jurisdiction delegated to such Party under this MOU.  Neither Menlo Park nor 
SFCJPA, nor any appointed or elected official, officer, employee, or agent thereof, 
shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of the negligent 
acts or omissions or willful misconduct of any other Party, its appointed or elected 
officials, officers, employees, or agents, under or in connection, with any work, 
authority, or jurisdiction delegated to such other Party under this MOU. Menlo Park 
and SFCJPA, while conducting their respective activities set forth above in Section 
4 above shall each procure, carry, and maintain, in full force and effect, at all 
applicable times during the term of this MOU, such insurance and bonds to protect 
the Parties, inclusive of causing each Contractor to indemnify and defend the 
Parties and name the Parties as additional insureds in any contracts entered into 
to effectuate this MOU. 

(b) Further Assurances.  The Parties shall cooperate with each other and execute 
such instruments or documents and take such other actions as may reasonably be 
requested from time to time in order to carry out, evidence or confirm their rights 
or obligations under this MOU.  

(c) Amendments. Any mutually agreed changes, modifications, revisions or 
amendments to this MOU shall be incorporated by written instrument, and effective 
when executed and signed by all Parties. 

(d) Severability. If any provision of this MOU shall be held to be invalid, void, or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining portions 
hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

(e) Applicable Law.  The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this MOU 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts 
executed and wholly performed within that state. The courts of the State of 
California shall have jurisdiction over any action arising out of this MOU, with venue 
in San Mateo County. 

(f) Construction of Agreement.  In the event of a dispute between the Parties as to 
the language of this MOU or any amendment to this MOU or the construction or 
meaning of any term contained in this MOU or any amendment to this MOU, this 
MOU or any amendment to this MOU shall be deemed to have been drafted by the 
Parties in equal parts so that no presumptions or inferences concerning its terms 
or interpretation may be construed against, or in favor of, any Party based on the 
preparation or negotiation of this MOU or any amendment to this MOU. 

(g) Notices.  All notices, demands and other formal communications hereunder shall 
be deemed given if: (a) delivered personally or by courier, (b) sent by overnight 
express delivery, (c) mailed by registered or certified mail (return receipt 
requested), postage prepaid, or (d) sent by email in PDF format (Email 
Notification); provided that (i) notice received after 5:00 p.m. on a business day 
or on a non-business day shall be deemed received on the next business day, and 
(ii) any sender of an Email Notification also delivers the notice by one of the 
methods listed in (a)-(c) (Secondary Notice) (provided that if the recipient of the 



 13 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

Email Notification responds with an email acknowledgement of receipt (an 
automatic "read receipt" does not constitute acknowledgement), Secondary Notice 
is not required), to a party at its respective address(es) set forth below (or at such 
other address as shall be specified by the party by like notice given to the other 
party(ies): 

To: 
City of Menlo Park 
Starla Jerome-
Robinson 
City Manager 
City Hall, 2nd Floor 
701 Laurel St 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

To: 
San Francisquito Creek 
Joint Powers Authority 
Margaret Bruce 
Executive Director 
2100 Geng Road, 
Suite 210 
Palo Alto, CA 94303 

To: 
Pacific Gas and 
Electric Company 
Heather Rock 
Chief of Staff for 
Engineering, 
Planning and 
Strategy  
300 Lakeshore Drive 
Oakland, CA 94612 

To: 
Meta Platforms, Inc. 
Lauren Swezey 
Sustainability & 
Landscape Project 
Lead 
1 Hacker Way 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

 
(h) Entirety of Agreement.  This MOU, including Exhibits A through F, represents the 

entire and complete agreement among the Parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and supersedes any prior negotiations, representations and 
agreements, whether written or oral. 

(i) Debt Limitation.  Menlo Park and SFCJPA are subject to laws or policies which 
limit their ability to incur debt in future years. Nothing in this MOU shall constitute 
an obligation of future governing bodies of the Parties to appropriate funds for the 
purpose of this MOU. 

(j) Conflict of Interest.  The Parties shall undertake reasonable efforts to avoid 
conflicts of interest in the performance of this MOU and shall immediately notify 
the other Parties should a conflict of interest arise that would prohibit or impair the 
ability to perform under this MOU. 

(k) Disputes.  The Parties agree that, with regard to all disputes or disagreements 
arising under this MOU that are not resolved informally at the staff level after a 
good faith attempt, the Parties may, at their sole and mutual discretion, agree to 
engage in mediation, and the costs of any such mediation shall be divided equally 
among the Parties involved in the mediation. 

(l) Non-Discrimination.  Each Party shall comply with its own non-discrimination 
policies and practices and laws applicable to it. 

(m) Counterparts.  This MOU may be executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which, when executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original, and all 
of which, taken together, shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. 

(n) Facsimile and Electronic Signatures.  Facsimile or electronic signatures may be 
used in place of original signatures on this MOU.  Each Party intends to be bound 
by the signatures on the facsimile or electronic document, is aware that the other 
Parties will rely on the facsimile or electronic signatures, and hereby waives any 



 14 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

defenses to the enforcement of the terms of this MOU based on the use of a 
facsimile or electronic signature. 

(o) Exhibits and Schedules.  The following Exhibits and Schedules are attached and 
incorporated into this MOU: 

(i) Exhibit A: Project Description and Vicinity Map  

(ii) Exhibit B: Project Funding Sources and Uses 

(iii) Exhibit C: Project Timeline 

(iv) Exhibit D: Cash Flow Projections 

(v) Exhibit E: Programmatic EIR Timetable 

(vi) Exhibit F: Project EIR Timetable 

(p) Signatures. In witness whereof, the Parties, through their respective duly-
authorized representatives, have executed this MOU on the days and dates set 
out below, and certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms 
and conditions of this MOU as set forth herein. 

 
[Signature Blocks Follow on Next Page]  



 15 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, have 
executed this Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

CITY OF MENLO PARK  
 
 
    
Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Manager Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Judi Herren, City Clerk Date 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Nira Doherty, City Attorney Date 
 
 
 
SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
 
    
[Name, Title]  Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
[Name], Agency Clerk Date 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
[Name, Title]  Date 
 
 
 



 16 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

 
 
    
[Name, Title]  Date 
 
 
 
META PLATFORMS, INC. 

 
 
    
[Name, Title]  Date 
 



  

 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

 

EXHIBIT A 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project 
Scope of Work 

The proposed Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project involves preparation of environmental 
documentation, permitting, public outreach, field investigation, design, and construction for 
solutions to tidal and sea-level rise flooding along an approximately 3.7-mile alignment of the 
southeast San Francisco Bay shoreline near the City of Menlo Park (Attachment 1).  The flood 
control elements will be designed to provide a 100-year level of flood protection in addition to 3.5 
feet of sea-level rise adaptation. 

The proposed Project will incorporate nature-based solutions and habitat enhancements.  In total, 
the project will create approximately 31 acres of tidal marsh transition zone on the bayside slopes 
of multiple flood control levees.  By extending the transition zones to elevations that account for 
100-year storm events, in addition to 3.5 feet for sea level rise adaptation, the proposed project 
will create long-term, resilient, high-quality habitat and high tide refuge. The Project also proposes 
to enhance approximately 5 acres of western snowy plover breeding habitat in Pond R3 by placing 
oyster shells or pea gravel to enhance the breeding habitat of endangered bird species. 

A primary focus of the proposed project is flood protection of Pacific Gas and Electric Company’s 
(PG&E) Ravenswood Substation, which is part of critical power supply infrastructure to eight cities 
and nearly 300,000 people. The substation is sited at the margin of San Francisco Bay, and is at 
risk of tidal flooding and sea-level rise. When flooded, the substation must be de-energized until 
flood waters recede, and repair and maintenance activities must be completed before re-powering 
the substation. Hydrologic and infrastructure analysis has shown that flooding of the substation 
would result in an interruption of power supply for between 5 and 15 days to the project impact 
area, negatively impacting many community lifelines that are critical for human health and safety 
and to economic security. 

The Project would be developed in phases. Phase 1 would include procurement of environmental 
and engineering services, public outreach, environmental permitting, and design to the 90% level. 
Phase 2 would include final design, procurement for construction management and contracting 
services, and construction activities. 

The proposed Project is a significant portion of the overall SAFER Bay alignment that, when 
completed, will provide the additional benefit of protecting the communities of Menlo Park, East 
Palo Alto and others from tidal and sea level rise flooding. 

 
 
 
 
 



  

 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  



 

 

 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROJECT FUNDING SOURCES AND USES 
 

 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT C 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT D 
 

CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT E 
 

PROGRAMMATIC EIR TIMETABLE 
 

(Provided by SFCJPA) 
 
 

TASK ANTICIPATED DATE 
Notice of Preparation (NOP) 

Publication 
Dec ’21 

NOP Public Comment Period Dec ’21 – Jan ‘22 

Project Description Mar ’22 – Jun ‘22 

Administrative Draft EIR Jun ’22 – Jan ‘23 

Publish Draft EIR Feb ’23 

Final EIR Certified Aug ’23 

 
*These dates are subject to change as the project evolves 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT F 
 

PROJECT EIR TIMETABLE 
 

(Provided by City of Menlo Park) 
 

 
TASK ANTICIPATED DATE 
Project Description Dec ’21 – Feb. ‘22 

Notice of Preparation / Scoping Feb ’22 – May ‘22 

Draft EIR May ’22 – Feb ‘23 

Final EIR Oct ’22 – Feb ‘23 

Notice of Determination Feb ’23 – Mar ‘23 

 

*These dates are subject to change as the project evolves 

 



Page 1 of 1 
 

Agenda Item 7.B.   Board Handbook 

 

Background 

Many organizations provide their board members with a summary of useful information 
to assist them in their governance roles. The SFCJPA is now emulating this as a best 
practice.  

 

Discussion 

The Board Handbook is intended to be a summary of key information and a handy 
reference for current and future board members.  

 

Recommendation 

Please review, comment, and consider accepting this first edition of the Board 
Handbook. 



1 

SFCJPA Board Handbook 

November 2021 

Version history 

Date of Action Action Detail 
November 18, 2021 Initial version 

Draft



2 
 

Table of Contents 

Introduction 

1. Board Members and Alternates - Roles and Responsibilities…………………………………….4 
1.1 Participation 
1.2 Board roles 
1.3 Oversight 
1.4 Community Engagement / Representation 
1.5 Executive Director Annual Review 

2. Brown Act Compliance and SFCJPA Meetings …………………………………………………………….6  
2.1 Open Meetings  
2.2 Types of Board Meetings 
2.3 Exceptions to Meeting Requirements   

3. Board and Committee Meeting Procedures …………………………………………………………………9  
3.1 Regular meetings of the Board 
3.2 Special meetings of the Board 
3.3 Establishing Committees of the Board 
3.4 The SFCJPA’s Committees of the Board 
3.5 Board meeting dates and times, Annual Calendar 
3.7 Board and committee meeting minutes 
3.8 Meeting venues 
3.9 COVID-19 protocols 

4. Conflicts of Interest …………………………………………………………………………………………………..12 
4.1 Form 700 
4.2 California Code Section 1090  

5. Agency Budget and Finances ………………………………………………………………………………….14 
5.1 Budget Process and Schedule 
5.2 Banking and Investments 

6. Agency Agreements …………………………………………………………………………………………………15 
6.1 Member’s Founding Agreement  
6.2 Current Agency Agreements 

7. Winter Emergency Preparedness …………………………………………………………………………..16 
7.1 The Flood Early Warning System 
7.2 Multi-Agency Coordination (MAC) 

8. Three year rolling work plan ………………………………………………………………………………….18 
9. Contact Information: Board and Staff ……………………………………………………………………20 

 
Appendices 
A. Members’ agreement (current as of November 18, 2021) 
B. Current inter-agency agreements 

 

  



3 
 

Introduction 

The San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority (SFCJPA) works with its members and watershed partners 
to address the interrelated issues of flood protection, ecosystem restoration and creation of recreational 
opportunities along the creek and in the watershed. 

Our overarching goal, working with our member agencies and partners, is to implement a suite of 
interrelated actions, each with independent utility but together comprising a comprehensive approach with 
multiple benefits to all inhabitants of the watershed. The SFCJPA’s action plan to achieve our vision and 
overarching goal is to implement projects that are components of the SFCJPA’s plan to cost effectively 
provide protection to people and infrastructure, while improving habitat and recreational opportunities. 

Handbook Purpose and Objectives 

This Board Handbook is intended to provide a summary of requirements for elected officials summarizing 
and supplementing the more detailed compliance information Board members receive from their agencies. 
This handbook also provides details about specific San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority projects, 
functions, policies, and procedures relevant to Board members and their duties. We hope it provides a brief 
and useful orientation for new board members and a handy reference for existing board members. 

  



4 
 

1.0   Board Member Roles and Responsibilities 

1.1 Board participation 

Board members and alternates are appointed by their respective Boards or Councils. Member agencies are 
expected to have representation at all regular and special Board meetings. In the event a Board member is 
not able to attend a meeting, they should coordinate with their appointed Board Alternate to ensure the 
SFCJPA Board meeting has a quorum.  

Board alternates are appointed by their respective Boards or Councils. Board alternates should familiarize 
themselves with the SFCJPA’s projects, board agendas and materials so that they are ready to participate 
when necessary.  

1.2 Board roles 

Chair – The chair of the board is selected at the first meeting of the calendar year. The previous vice chair is 
often appointed to fill the Board Chair role. The Board Chair serves for two years. The board chair presides 
over each Board meeting, and coordinates agenda items and their order with the Executive Director. The 
Board chair also represents the SFCJPA in events, workshops, and public meetings, and at meetings with 
agency leaders as needed, with staff’s support. 

Vice Chair – The Vice Chair of the Board is selected at the first meeting of the calendar year. The Vice Chair 
stands in for the Chair of the Board if they are unavailable.  

Committee members –  

There are two standing committees of the SFCJPA Board: The Finance Committee and the Personnel 
Committee. As standing committees, all meetings of these standing committees must follow all meeting 
notice requirements of the Brown Act. The two members of each committee are selected at the first meeting 
of the calendar year.  

Ad Hoc committees may be formed from time-to-time. The Board Chair appoints the members of the ad hoc 
committee who perform their function, report their findings or recommendations to the Board, whereupon 
the ad hoc committee is dissolved.  

1.3 Oversight   

The Board of Directors employs and oversees the Executive Director, and legal counsel. The Board shall 
provide the Executive Director with an annual performance evaluation. The Board may choose to evaluate 
legal counsel.  

1.4 Community engagement  

The members of the Board are encouraged to meet with their constituents in their capacity as SFCJPA Board 
members, to hear community input and answer questions. SFCJPA staff are eager to support Board members 
in community engagement opportunities.  

1.5 Executive Director’s Annual Performance Review 

In the first week of March, the Executive Director will provide all board members with a self-evaluation. 



5 
 

In the first week of March, the Personnel Committee may choose to send evaluation surveys to SFCJPA staff 
for upward evaluations, and to external colleagues (for “360” evaluations). This should provide respondents 
at least one week to provide their evaluation.  

All evaluations (internal and external) to be received by the personnel committee (or a person designated by 
the Personnel Committee) no less than two weeks before the March Board meeting. 

The Personnel Committee may choose to send internal and external evaluation surveys annually, or less often, 
as they choose.  

The Personnel Committee identifies the questions to be asked, and the survey method(s) to be used (Google 
forms, SurveyMonkey, email, etc.).  

The Personnel Committee or the Committee’s designee shall aggregate (not interpret) the evaluation 
responses. This information shall be compiled no less than one week prior to the March Board meeting.  

The March Board meeting shall have a closed session where the review information is shared with the full 
board. The Board shall invite the E.D. into the closed session to discuss their findings and recommendations. 
The E.D. shall have the opportunity to discuss and respond to the findings and submit responses to the board 
in writing within one week following the Board’s review. The Board may also have a closed session to discuss 
compensation and other contract details. The Board may choose to designate a contract negotiator or 
negotiators, such as two members of the Board, to negotiate with the E.D regarding the contract terms. The 
Board may meet in closed session to provide direction on compensation issues. The E.D. may not be preset in 
such closed session. 

In April, the result of any changes to the E.D.’s compensation will be included in the organization’s annual 
budget for the board’s review and approval.  

  



6 
 

2.0  Brown Act Compliance 
 
Although all members of the SFCJPA Board of Directors receive Brown Act Compliance instruction from their 
respective agencies, it may be helpful to summarize Brown Act compliance requirements here as well.  

2.1 Open Meetings   

The central provision of the Brown Act requires that all “meetings” of a legislative body be open and public.  
The Brown Act defines the term “meeting” very broadly to encompass almost every gathering of the majority 
of a legislative body’s members: 

Any congregation of a majority of the members of a legislative body at the same time and 
location . . . to hear, discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 

The Brown Act does not prohibit individual conversations between two Board members, or conversations 
between less than a majority of the members of the Board of Directors. 

Serial Meetings: Serial meetings are prohibited and can occur even though a majority of the Board of Directors 
never gather in a room at the same time.  A serial meeting is a series of individual meetings or communications, 
through which ideas are exchanged, or decisions are made, among a majority of the Board. A serial meeting 
typically occurs in one of two ways.  The first is when one person separately contacts a majority of the Board 
Members and shares ideas among them (i.e., “I’ve talked to members A and B and they will vote ‘yes.’ Will 
you?”).  The second is when Board member A calls Board member B, who then calls Board member C. 

Board members are not prohibited from communicating with staff and other Board members for the purpose 
of answering questions or providing information.  

Observing the following guidelines can avoid inadvertent violation of the serial meeting rule.   

Contacts with Staff: Staff briefings of individual Board members for the purpose of answering questions or 
providing information regarding an item of business do not constitute a serial meeting under the Brown Act 
as long as a staff person does not communicate the comments or positions of a member of the Board. To avoid 
having a staff briefing become a serial meeting: 

• Staff briefings of members of the Board should be “unidirectional” when done on an individual basis 
for a majority of the legislative body.  For example, the SFCJPA Executive Director has “one-on-ones” 
with each Board member.  This means that information should flow from staff to the member, and 
the member’s participation should be limited to asking questions and acquiring information.   

• A Board member should not ask staff to describe the views of any other members of the legislative 
body, and staff should not volunteer those views if known. 

• Staff may present their views to a Board member during an individual contact, but staff should not ask 
for that member’s views unless it is absolutely clear that staff is not discussing the matter with a 
majority of the legislative body. 

Contacts with Constituents, Developers and Lobbyists: A constituent can inadvertently become an 
intermediary among a majority of Board members creating a serial meeting. To avoid violations arising from 
contacts with constituents, developers and lobbyists, the Board member should: 



7 
 

• State the ground rules “up front.”  Ask if the person has talked, or intends to talk, with other members 
of the Board about the same subject.  Make it clear that the person should not disclose the views of 
other legislative body member(s) during the conversation. 

• Explain to the person that you will not make a final decision on a matter prior to the Board meeting in 
which the matter is heard 

• Do more listening and asking questions than expressing opinions.  

Contacts with Fellow Members of the Same Legislative Body: Direct contacts concerning local agency business 
with fellow members of the Board – whether through face-to-face or telephonic conversations, notes, letters, 
online exchanges, e-mail with or to staff members – are the most obvious means by which a serial meeting 
can occur.  This is not to say that a member of a legislative body is precluded from discussing items of local 
agency business with another member of that legislative body outside of a meeting; as long as the 
communication does not involve a majority of the legislative body, no “meeting” has occurred. 

These suggested rules of conduct may seem restrictive and may make acquisition of important information 
more difficult or time-consuming.  Nevertheless, following them will help assure that your conduct comports 
with the Brown Act’s goal of achieving open government. If you have questions about compliance with the 
Brown Act, you should seek advice from legal counsel. 

2.2 Types of Board Meetings  

Regular Meetings:  All regular business of the Board should be conducted at the Board’s regular, monthly 
meetings.  Once a regular meeting is adjourned, the Board may not meet again until the next regular 
meeting, unless the Board adjourns to a different time or unless a special meeting is called. Field trips and 
“study sessions” occurring on a date other than a regular meeting date are conducted as adjourned meetings 
or special meetings. 

Adjourned Meetings:  At the conclusion of a regular meeting, the Chair may adjourn the meeting to a specific 
time, place, and date.  This allows for an extension of the regular meeting.  If a regular meeting of the Board 
is adjourned to another time, the Clerk of the Board shall post a notice of the adjourned meeting.   

Special Meetings:  Special meetings may be called by the Chair or a majority of the Board under the following 
guidelines: 

• Written notice must be delivered personally or by any other means to each Board member.  Notices 
must also be posted, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting, at the designated posting place(s). 

• The notice must contain the subjects of the meeting and only those subjects may be considered at the 
special meeting. 

2.3 Exceptions to Meeting Requirements   

There are six types of gatherings that are not subject to the Brown Act. We commonly refer to these 
exceptions as: (1) the individual contact exception; (2) the seminar or conference exception; (3) the 
community meeting exception; (4) the other legislative body exception; (5) the social or ceremonial occasion 
exception; and (6) the standing committee exception.  Unless a gathering of a majority of the members of a 
legislative body falls within one of these exceptions, a majority of members gathering in the same room to 
listen to or be part of a discussion of local agency business would constitute a meeting within the meaning of 



8 
 

the Brown Act. If board members have any questions about these exceptions or how they may apply to a 
specific situation, please contact legal counsel.  

  



9 
 

3.0 Board and Committee Meeting Procedures 

3.1 Regular meetings of the Board  

All regular Board meeting agendas and supporting materials must be posted no less than 72 hours prior to a 
regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. According to the Board’s usual meeting schedule this means that 
materials must be posted on the Monday afternoon prior to the Thursday afternoon meeting. If timing 
allows, SFCJPA staff try to post Board meeting agendas and materials the preceding Friday.  

Board meetings are convened by the Board Chair, or the Vice Chair if the Chair is absent. A sample draft of 
an SFCJPA Board meeting agenda is below: 

 

The regular agenda order begins with a roll call, then action to accept or change the agenda, followed by 
public comment on any topics in the SFCJPA’s purview that are not on the meeting’s agenda. It is the Chair’s 
discretion as to how long members of the public may speak; a three-minute time limit is typical.  

As shown in the sample agenda the remainder of the agenda may include the Executive Director’s report and 
other information items, study session or discussion/non-action items, review and approval of meeting 
minutes, consent items, action items, Board member announcements and adjournment.  

Board meetings may include a closed session where the Board adjourns from regular open session to closed 
session, then reconvenes in open session to report on any reportable actions taken in closed session.  

 

 



10 
 

3.2 Special meetings of the Board  

Special meetings of the Board may be convened and require a 24-hour notice. Special meetings are 
convened to address matters that cannot wait until the next scheduled regular meeting of the Board. 
Examples include budget discussions and consultant contract approval.  

3.3 Establishing Committees of the Board 

The Board may establish committees to provide analysis and recommendations to the full Board. 
Committees may either be Standing Committees or Ad Hoc committees. 

Standing committees are subject to the Brown Act. The Brown Act describes a standing committee as one 
which has "continuing subject matter jurisdiction." This means that a permanent committee that is designed 
to handle an issue or issues on a continual basis will be a standing committee and is subject to the Act's 
notice and posting requirements. Membership of Standing committees is typically less than a quorum of the 
Board. Non-committee members of the Board may attend committee meetings but cannot engage in 
discussion.  

Standing committees don’t need to establish a "regular meeting time and place", but they must meet in 
public and post notices of their meetings. 

Ad hoc or "temporary" committees are treated differently under the Brown Act. The Chair of the Board 
establishes an ad hoc committee by appointing the committee as part of an agendized item at a publicly 
noticed Board meeting.  

Ad hoc committees are not subject to the notice and posting requirements of the Brown Act so long as the 
committee: 

• is only comprised of agency Board members, 
• Is less than a quorum of the Board,  
• has a defined purpose and a time frame to accomplish that purpose; and  
• is advisory, i.e., the committee has not been delegated any decision-making power and will be 

returning to the full Board with its recommendation(s).  

Once that Ad Hoc committee has completed its work, the committee is then disbanded.  

3.4 The SFCJPA’s Committees of the Board 

There are two standing committees of the SFCJPA Board. 

The Personnel Committee – This committee is comprised of the Board Chair and Vice Chair. The purpose of 
this committee is to conduct the annual evaluation of the Executive Director and to make any 
recommendations for Executive compensation. The annual performance review is to be conducted in the 
beginning of March and concluded in April to ensure that any recommendations for changes in 
compensation can be included in the annual budget process.  

In the event of the need to fill the role of Executive Director, the personnel committee may also be engaged 
in Executive search and candidate evaluation tasks.  

The Finance Committee – This committee is convened to review and provide feedback on the SFCJPA’s 
annual proposed operational budget, annual audit, Finance Policy and Procedure updates and SFCJPA 



11 
 

banking and investments. The committee typically convenes in February, March, April and occasionally in the 
fall depending on the financial needs of the agency.    

Proposed: Account signatories will include one member from the Finance Committee and the Board Chair. 
Ad Hoc Committees – According to the Brown Act, Ad Hoc committee members are appointed by the Chair. 
Ad hoc committees are convened to serve a specific purpose for a limited time.  

3.5 Board meeting dates and times, Annual Calendar 
 
The SFCJPA holds its regularly scheduled Board meetings on the fourth Thursday of each month at 3:30 P.M., 
except for the months of November and December in which the meetings will be held on the third Thursday 
to accommodate the winter holidays. 

The Board typically chooses to select a month in the summer for a recess, where no regular meeting of the 
Board occurs. 

The annual calendar is typically set at the November Board meeting for the upcoming year.  

3.6 Board and Committee Meeting Minutes 

On October 22, 2020, by Resolution #20-10-22 C, the SFCJPA Board adopted a policy of summary minutes. 
This style of meeting minutes provides basic information about actions taken and the essentials of public 
input and Board discussion but is not verbatim nor detailed.  Typically, meeting minutes for the previous 
regular meeting and any special meetings are included in the next monthly Board packet.  

3.7 Meeting venues 

Regular in-person meetings are rotated between the City Halls of Palo Alto, East Palo Alto and Menlo Park.  

3.8 COVID-19 Protocols 

For the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and any associated Governor’s declared emergency, the SFCJPA 
is adhering to social distancing and remote meeting protocols by holding web-based video-conference 
meetings.  The SFCJPA will conform to the requirements of AB361 regarding a finding of public health 
requirements when determining its meeting format and location.  

As the pandemic wanes, and as law allows, the SFCJPA may hold “hybrid” meetings that are both in-person 
and online to facilitate public participation and offer attendance alternatives to those who may wish to avoid 
close social contact. Attendance and public engagement opportunities will be equal for both in-person and 
online attendees and public participants.  

 

  



12 
 

4.0 Conflict of Interest 

4.1 Form 700  

The Political Reform Act requires public officials to disclose assets and income that may be materially 
affected by their official actions by filing a “Statement of Economic Interests” (also known as a “Form 700”).  
All Board members and alternates must file a Form 700 with the SFCJPA. Forms should be mailed to the 
SFCJPA office attention Clerk of the Board or sent electronically to the Clerk of the Board to 
mhparker@sfcjpa.org. Please visit the FPPC website for filing information.  

https://www.fppc.ca.gov/Form700.html 

Board members must send their Form 700 to the SFCJPA Clerk of the Board no later than April 1 of each 
year or as posted by the FPPC.  

If a public official fails to timely file his or her Form 700, the case will be referred to the FPPC Enforcement 
Division, and a penalty of up to $5,000 may be imposed. File on time! 

4.2  Conflicts under the Political Reform Act 

In addition to the disclosure requirements, the Political Reform Act requires public officials to disqualify 
themselves from making, participating in making, or in any way attempting to use their official position to 
influence a governmental decision in which they know or have reason to know they have a financial interest.  
An official has a disqualifying financial interest in a decision if the decision will have a reasonably foreseeable 
material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, directly on the official or a 
member of the official’s immediate family, or on certain listed financial interests. The listed financial 
interests are: 

• Any business entity in which the public official has a direct or indirect investment worth $2,000 or 
more. 

• Any real property in which the public official has a direct or indirect interest worth $2,000 or more. 
• Any source of income, including commission income or incentive income, aggregating to at least 

$500 within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made. The $500 must be provided or 
promised to, or received by, the official during the 12 months before the decision. 

• Any business entity (excluding nonprofit corporations) in which the public official is a director, 
officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of management. 

• Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts aggregating $520 or more in 
value provided to, received by, or promised to the public official within 12 months prior to the time 
when the decision is made. 

4.3 Conflicts under California Government Code Section 1090 

Government Code Section 1090 prohibits an officer, employee, or agency from participating in making 
government contracts in which the official or employee within the agency has a financial interest. Section 
1090 applies to virtually all state and local officers, employees, and multimember bodies, whether elected or 
appointed, at both the state and local level. 

“Making” a contract includes final approval of the agreement, as well as involvement in preliminary 
discussion, planning, negation, and solicitation of bids.    

mailto:mhparker@sfcjpa.org
https://www.fppc.ca.gov/Form700.html


13 
 

A broad range of agreements are considered a contract under Section 1090. Generally, there is a contract 
when an offer is made and accepted and there is something of value bargained for and exchanged by each 
party. This includes written contracts, purchase of goods or services, employment agreements, leases, 
development agreements, etc. 

An official can have a “financial interest” in a contract in a variety of ways and it is not limited by the amount 
of the interest or how closely connected the official’s interest is to the contract. 

Several exceptions to Section 1090’s general prohibition also exist and, when applicable, officials may be 
considered to have no financial interest or a “remote” financial interest, so that a contract, or the official’s 
participation in the contracting process, is not prohibited under Section 1090. 

Violations of Section 1090 can result in the voiding of contracts, criminal, civil, and administrative penalties, 
as well as a ban on holding public office.  

The FPPC issues advice letters and opinions to persons subject to Section 1090 and enforces the provisions of 
Section 1090 through administrative and civil actions. More information about the advice letter process is 
available at the FPPC’s Formal Advice webpage. To file a complaint alleging a violation of Section 1090, go to 
the FPPC’s File a Complaint webpage. 

 

  



14 
 

5.  Agency Budget and Finances 

5.1 Budget Process and Schedule 

The SFCJPA agency operational budget covers shared costs of running the organization – including staff 
compensation, employee benefits, office costs, legal, consulting support (examples include IT, Flood Warning 
system maintenance, and other small shared-expense costs). The funding for the organization is comprised 
of member agency contributions which form equal shares of the operating budget. Occasionally, grants may 
modestly augment the budget.  

The annual budget is drafted by the SFCJPA’s Finance Manager in consultation with SFCJPA staff. The Budget 
process begins in February and ends until the budget is approved by the SFCJPA Board, which typically occurs 
in April or May at the latest. The draft budget is presented to the Finance Committee prior to Board 
presentation in February.  

5.2 Banking and Investments 

The SFCJPA has two operational banking accounts, three project accounts and one reserves account. The 
SFCJPA operational and project accounts are held at First Republic Bank. The SFCJPA reserves funds are held 
in a LAIF account. Suggestions of when and where to invest SFCJPA funds are first presented to the Finance 
Committee then to the Board for final approval or determination.  

 

  



15 
 

6. Agency Agreements 

6.1 Member’s Agreement  

The Founding Members’ Agreement between the five SFCJPA members, created in 1999 after the serious 
flood event of 1998, established the Joint Powers Authority. This document remained unchanged until 
2019, when the creation of the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District replaced 
the County of San Mateo itself as the SFCJPA member, necessitating an update to the agreement 
language. At that time, a few additional updates to the agreement language were made.  

The SFCJPA Members’ Agreement, current as of November 18, 2021, is attached for reference as 
Appendix A.  

6.2 Agency Agreements  

The SFCJPA is a signatory to several different inter-agency agreements to facilitate the execution of the 
SFCJPA’s mission and objectives. These agreements define our shared understandings and agreements 
regarding roles, responsibilities, and obligations.  

The following is a list of the current agreements to which the SFCJPA is a party. These documents are 
provided in full in Appendix B. 

1. Between Valley Water and the SFCJPA for funding the initial study and Environmental Impact report 
for flood protection, etc. from Highway 101 to El Camion Real. (Expires 12/31/21. Extension in 
process) 

2. Between Valley Water and the SFCJPA, Cost share agreement for West Bayshore Inlet. 
3. Between Stanford University and the SFCJPA for access to Stanford lands to conduct off-stream 

detention investigations. 
4. Extension of the access agreement between Stanford and the SFCJPA. 
5. Between the US Army Corps of Engineers and the SFCJPA for the CAP 205 Study. 
6. Between the City of Menlo Park, the SFCJPA, Meta (formerly known as Facebook) and PG&E for 

implementation of the FEMA BRIC grant (draft agreement).  

 

  



16 
 

7. Winter Emergency Preparedness 

7.1 The SFCJPA Flood Early Warning System 

The SFCJPA’s Flood Early Warning System was implemented in 2015 to fill multiple needs:  

• Real-time monitoring of rainfall in the upper watershed, 
• Real-time monitoring of stream flow conditions in the San Francisquito Creek and its major 

tributaries, 
• Coordinated communication of streamflow information to emergency management and response 

personnel, 
• A visual representation of streamflow conditions to interested members of the community, 
• An automated flood warning system for members of the community who signed up for text or phone 

alerts. 

The Flood Early Warning System can be accessed on the SFCJPA’s website at this link: San Francisquito Flood 
Early Warning System (sfcjpa.org).  

There are multi-colored circles on the map corresponding to monitoring stations. These circles change color 
depending on streamflow conditions: 

 In the event of Flood WATCH conditions: Areas of this map will appear YELLOW where flooding may occur 
within the next 90 minutes.  

In the event of Flood WARNING conditions: Areas of this map will appear RED where flooding may be 
imminent. 

Green indicates there are low-flow conditions and there is no risk of flooding.  

Until 2021, the SFCJPA operated an automated alert system. However, the technology operating this became 
obsolete, and other organizations associated with San Mateo and Santa Clara Counties operated much more 
sophisticated alert systems. The SFCJPA decommissioned its call and text alert system and pointed 
community members toward the new, comprehensive alert systems in both counties.  

 

7.2 Multi-Agency Coordination (MAC) 

The purpose of the San Francisquito Creek (SFC) Multi-Agency Coordination (MAC) Operational Plan is to 
establish a MAC Group to facilitate:  

1. Pre-incident planning prior to a storm/flood event,  

2. Coordination of the stakeholders' interagency response and recovery operations, and  

3. Collaboration on public messaging. 

The Plan is maintained by the Palo Alto Office of Emergency Services (OES), who’s chief serves as the chair of 
the SFC MAC. Prior to every winter season, OES will review this Plan with the Stakeholders and others, as 
needed. The current SFC MAC Operations Plan can be found here: Microsoft Word - SFC MAC Op Plan Severe 
Storms and Flood (cityofpaloalto.org) 

http://floodwarning.sfcjpa.org/
http://floodwarning.sfcjpa.org/
https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/files/assets/public/oes/plans/sfc-mac-op-plan-severe-storms-and-flood.pdf
https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/files/assets/public/oes/plans/sfc-mac-op-plan-severe-storms-and-flood.pdf


17 
 

There are annual Plan reviews and coordinating meetings of the participants in the MAC, representing the 
SFCJPA, city, county, and Valley Water emergency preparedness and response professionals, public safety 
professionals, public works representatives and other key stakeholders.  



18 
 

8. Three year rolling work plan 

The three year rolling work plan is reviewed and updated at least twice per year, typically in June and 
December.  

 

 

 

 



19 
 

 

 

 

  



20 
 

9. Contact information: Board and Staff  

SFCJPA Board and Alternates: 

City of East Palo Alto Board Member Alternate Board Member 
 Ruben Abrica, Vice Mayor Lisa Yarbrough Gauthier 
 2415 University Ave. 2415 University Ave. 
 East Palo Alto, CA 94303 East Palo Alto, CA 94303 
 650/853-3100 650/853-3100 
 rabrica@cityofepa.org lgauthier@cityofepa.org 
   
City of Menlo Park Drew Combs, Mayor Cecilia Taylor 
 701 Laurel Street 701 Laurel Street 
 Menlo Park, CA 94025 Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 650/330-6610 650/330-6610 
 dcombs@menlopark.org cttaylor@menlopark.org 
   
City of Palo Alto Pat Burt, Vice Mayor Allison Cormack 
 250 Hamilton Ave 250 Hamilton Ave 
 Palo Alto, CA 94303 Palo Alto, CA 94303 
 650/892-0925 650/329-2480 
 Pat.Burt@CityofPaloAlto.org alison.cormack@cityofpaloalto.org 
   
 Dave Pine, County Supervisor Don Horsley, County Supervisor 
 555 County Center  
 Redwood City, CA  
 650 363-4571  
 dpine@smcgov.org  
   
Santa Clara Valley Water 
District (Valley Water) 

Gary Kremen, Director Nai Hsueh, Board Chair 
 

 5750 Almaden Expressway 5750 Almaden Expressway 
 San Jose, CA 95118 San Jose, CA 95118 
 408 265-2600 408 265-2600 
 GKremen@valleywater.org NHsueh@valleywater.org 

 

SFCJPA Offices 

2100 Geng Road, Suite 210 
Palo Alto, CA 94303 
www.sfcjpa.org 

Staff 

Margaret Bruce, Executive Director 
Office Number: 209 

Cell: 408-605-2761 
Office: 650-484-0782 
 

Email: mbruce@sfcjpa.org 

mailto:cttaylor@menlopark.org
mailto:NHsueh@valleywater.org
http://www.sfcjpa.org/


21 
 

Kevin Murray, Sr. Project Manager 
Office Number: 211 

Office: (650) 484-0779 Email: kmurray@sfcjpa.org 

Tess Byler, Sr. Project Manager 
Office Number: 211 

Office: (650) 484-0859 Email: tbyler@sfcjpa.org 

Miyko Harris-Parker, Finance Manager 
and Clerk-of-the-Board 
Office Number: 208 

Office: (650) 457-0943 
 

Email: mhparker@sfcjpa.org 

 

Legal Counsel 

Trisha Ortiz  
RICHARDS WATSON GERSHON 
One Sansome Street, Suite 2850 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
T:  415.421.8484 
D:  415.782.0320 
F:  415.421.8486 
E:  tortiz@rwglaw.com 
W:  rwglaw.com 
 

 

Auditor 

Miranda Beasley 
Partner 
Grant & Smith, LLP 
Phone 510-832-0257 ext. 1004 
Cell 510-703-2385 
Fax 510-272-9757  



22 

APPENDICES 



23 
 

APENDIX A 

SFCJPA MEMBERS’ AGREEMENT 

 

SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

 
This Amended and Restated Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and among the City of Menlo 
Park, the City of Palo Alto, the City of East Palo Alto, the Santa Clara Valley Water District, and the 
San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (“Member Entities”), all of which 
are public entities organized and operating under the laws of the State of California and each of 
which is a public agency as defined in California Government Code section 6500. 
 
RECITALS 
 
A. The Joint Exercise of Powers Act, being Government Code sections 6500 et seq. 
(the “JPA Law”), permits two or more local public entities by agreement to jointly exercise any 
power common to them. 
 
B. Following years of effort to address environmental and flooding concerns related 
to the watershed and floodplain of San Francisquito Creek (encompassing approximately 50 
square miles from the Santa Cruz Mountains to San Francisco Bay), and soon after the flood of 
record in 1998 damaged approximately 1,700 properties, the Member Entities established the 
San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority pursuant to that certain “Joint Exercise 
Agreement Creating the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority,” dated as of May 18, 
1999, to collectively contribute resources and implement policies and projects of mutual interest 
relating to the primary natural features that unite them, including the San Francisquito Creek 
(“Creek”). 
 
C. The governing body of each Member Entity has determined that it is in the 
Member Entity’s best interest and in the public interest that this Amended and Restated 
Agreement be executed to make minor procedural updates, including the change on January 1, 
2020 of the San Mateo County Flood Control District to the San Mateo County Flood and Sea 
Level Rise Resiliency District. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Member Entities, by, between and among themselves, in 
consideration of the mutual benefits, promises, and agreements set forth below, hereby agree as 
follows: 
 
1. CREATION OF THE SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY.  
 
Pursuant to the JPA Law, the Member Entities create a public agency, separate 
and apart from the Member Entities to be known as the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers 
Authority (the “Authority”). Pursuant to Government Code section 6508.1, the debts, liabilities, 
and obligations of the Authority shall not constitute debts, liabilities, or obligations of any party 
to this Agreement. A Member Entity may separately contract for or assume responsibility for 



24 
 

specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of the Authority. For purposes of, and to the extent 
required by, Government Code section 6509, in exercising its powers, the Authority shall be 
subject to the restrictions upon the manner of exercising the powers of the City of Menlo Park, 
except as otherwise authorized or permitted by the JPA Law. 
 
2. PURPOSES. This Agreement is entered into by Member Entities under the JPA 
Law for the following purposes: 
a. To facilitate and perform bank stabilization, channel clearing and other 
Creek maintenance. 
b. To plan flood control measures for the San Francisquito Creek watershed. 
c. To take actions necessary to preserve and enhance environmental values 
and instream uses of San Francisquito Creek. 
d. To coordinate emergency mitigation and response activities relating to San 
Francisquito Creek. 
e. To make recommendations to Member Entities for funding and 
alternatives for long term flood control for Member Entity consideration. 
 
3. PARTIES TO AGREEMENT.  
Each Member Entity certifies that it intends to and does contract with every other Member Entity 
which is a signatory to this Agreement. Each Member Entity also certifies that the deletion of any 
Member Entity from this Agreement does not affect this Agreement nor each Member Entity’s intent 
to contract with the Member Entities then remaining. Pursuant to Assembly Bill 825 (Chapter 292, 
Statutes of 2019), which amended the San Mateo County Flood Control District Act to provide for 
the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District, the Member Entities agree that 
the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District is the entity formerly known as 
the San Mateo County Flood Control District, and as such is subject to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. 
 
4. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  
This Agreement became effective as of May 18, 1999 and continues in full force until terminated in 
accordance with Paragraph 18. (Termination and Distribution). 
 
5. POWERS OF THE AUTHORITY.  
The Authority through its Board of Directors is authorized, in its own name and subject to the 
limitations set forth below, to do all acts necessary to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement referred 
to in Paragraph 2. (Purposes) including, but not limited to, each of the following: 
a. Make and enter into contracts; 
b. Incur debts, liabilities, and obligations, provided that no debt, liability, or obligation of the 
Authority shall be a debt, liability, or obligation of a Member Entity except as separately agreed to 
by a Member Entity; 
c. Receive contributions and donations of property, funds, services, and other 
forms of assistance from any source; 
d. Sue and be sued in its own name; 
e. Contract with independent consultants and/or contractors; 
f. Receive, collect, and disburse monies; 
g. Carry out other duties as required to accomplish other responsibilities as set forth in this 
Agreement; 



25 
 

h. Assign, delegate, or contract with a Member Entity or third party to perform any of the duties of 
the Board including, but not limited to, acting as administrator for the Authority; and 
i. Exercise all other powers necessary and proper to carry out the provisions 
of this Agreement. 
 
These powers shall be exercised in the manner provided by applicable law and as 
expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
 
6. MEMBER ENTITY APPROVALS AND RESPONSIBILITIES.  
Each Member Entity has the approval authority, obligations and responsibilities set forth in this 
Agreement. No action of the Authority shall be effective or binding unless and until such action has 
been approved in accordance with Subparagraph “e.” (Action of the Board) of Paragraph 10. (Board 
Members) by the Board of Directors consistent with a budget approved by independent action of 
each Member Entity’s governing body. 
 
7. PROJECT PARTICIPATION APPROVAL AUTHORITY.  
Member Entities shall have the right to determine independently whether to participate in any capital 
improvement project. No capital improvement project shall be approved by the Authority unless and 
until Member Entities sufficient to fund the project fully have approved the project by 
independent action of each such funding Member Entity’s governing body. 
 
8. MEMBERSHIP.  
New Member Entities may be added to the Authority by amending this Agreement, as described in 
Paragraph 21. (Amendments), and Member Entities may withdraw or be expelled, as described in 
Paragraph 16. (Withdrawal) and Paragraph 17. (Expulsion). 
 
9. BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 
a. Directors. There shall be a Board of Directors (the “Board”) to govern the 
affairs of the Authority. The Board shall be comprised of one director, and one alternate 
director, from each Member Entity. Each director has one vote. An alternate director may cast a 
vote as a member of the Board of Directors only in the absence of the director from that same 
Member Entity. Each director and alternate director shall be a member of the governing body of 
the Member Entity and shall be designated by its governing body; provided, however, that no 
two directors and no two alternate directors shall be from the same governing body of any 
Member Entity. 
b. Compensation. Directors and alternate directors are not entitled to 
compensation by the Authority. The Board may authorize reimbursement of expenses incurred 
by directors or alternate directors. 
c. Powers. The powers of the Board are each of the powers of the Authority 
not specifically reserved to the Member Entities by this Agreement. The Member Entities retain 
the following powers: 
 
(1) The designation of the Board as specified in Subparagraph “a.” of Paragraph 9. (Board of 
Directors); 
 
(2) Approval of an amendment to this Agreement as specified in 
Paragraph 21. (Amendments); 



26 
 

 
(3) Approval of actions pursuant to Paragraph 6. (Member Entity 
Approvals and Responsibilities); 
 
(4) Approval of project participation as specified in paragraph 7. 
(Project Participation Approval Authority); and 
 
(5) Approval of the annual budget of the Authority as specified in 
Paragraph 13. (Budget). 
 
10. BOARD MEMBERS. 
a. Meetings. The Board shall hold at least one regular meeting each year, at 
which time the Board shall elect its officers as appropriate to comply with Paragraph 11. 
(Officers). The Board shall fix the date, hour, and place at which each regular meeting is to be 
held. To the extent practicable, each Board meeting shall be held in Northern Santa Clara 
County or Southern San Mateo County. The Chair presides at all meetings. A special meeting 
may be called upon written request by the Chair or at least two directors. 
b. Brown Act. Each regular, adjourned regular, or special meeting of the 
Board shall be called, noticed, held, and conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act 
(Sections 54950, et seq., of the Government Code). 
c. Minutes. The Clerk of the Board shall draft minutes of each regular and 
special meeting of the Board, which shall be considered for approval by the Board at a 
subsequent regular meeting. 
d. Quorum. No business may be transacted by the Board without a quorum 
of members of the Board being present except that less than a quorum may adjourn from time to 
time. A quorum consists of a majority of the members of the Board. 
e. Action of the Board. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any 
action of the Board shall require a vote of a majority of the Board. 
 
11. OFFICERS. 
a. Officers. The officers of the Authority are the Chair, Vice-Chair, and 
Secretary. 
b. Election/Term/Duties. The officers shall be elected or appointed by the 
Board at its first meeting of the calendar year unless that is delayed by an action of the Board. 
The term of office for Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary is one year. The officers shall assume 
the duties of their offices upon being elected or appointed, as appropriate. If any of the Chair, 
Vice-Chair, or Secretary ceases to be a member of the Board, the Board shall elect or appoint a 
new officer at the next regular meeting of the Board held after the vacancy occurs. 
c. Compensation. Officers are not entitled to compensation by the Authority. 
The Board may authorize reimbursement of expenses incurred by officers. 
d. Appointment/Contract. The Board may appoint such officers and may 
hire or contract with such persons or firms as it considers necessary to carry out the purposes of 
this Agreement. 
 
12. FISCAL YEAR. The first fiscal year of the Authority is July 1, 1999 through 
June 30, 2000. Each subsequent fiscal year of the Authority shall begin on July 1st and end on 
June 30th. 



27 
 

 
13. BUDGET. The Board shall adopt an annual operating budget, which shall be 
separate from the Authority’s capital projects budget. The operating budget shall include the 
proposed contribution from each Member Entity for the fiscal year and other sources of income. 
The operating budget shall not be effective unless and until the governing body of each Member 
Entity has approved that Member Entity’s contribution to the budget. Member Entity 
contributions shall become immediately due and payable to the Authority upon adoption of the 
budget, unless expressly provided otherwise in the budget. 
 
14. ANNUAL AUDIT AND AUDIT REPORTS. The Board shall cause an annual 
financial audit to be made by an independent certified public accountant with respect to all 
Authority receipts, disbursements, other transactions, and entries into the books. A report of the 
financial audit shall be filed as a public record with each Member Entity. The audit shall be filed 
no later than as required by State law. The Authority shall pay the cost of the financial audit 
from its annual operating budget in the same manner as other administrative costs. 
 
15. ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF FUNDS. 
a. Accountability. The Authority is responsible for the strict accountability 
of all funds and reports of all receipts and disbursements. It shall comply with every provision of 
law relating to the establishment and administration of funds, particularly Section 6505 of the 
California Government Code. The funds shall be accounted for on a full accrual basis. 
b. Investment/Disbursement. The Authority shall receive and disburse funds 
only in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board and in conformity with 
applicable law. 
c. Insurance/Bond. The Authority shall procure, carry and maintain, in full 
force and effect, at all times during the term of this Agreement, such insurance and bonds to 
protect the Authority and its members of the Board, officers, employees, agents and Member 
Entities, as deemed appropriate by the Board. 
d. Depository and Auditor Controller. The Board shall designate one of its 
officers, employees or a third party to perform all acts required by Government Code Sections 
6505 (regarding an annual audit), 6505.1 (regarding charge of and access to property), 6505.5 
(regarding the depository and custodian of money), and 6505.6 (regarding independent audit 
where an officer or employee acts as treasurer, auditor or both), as such laws are amended from 
time to time. 
 
16. WITHDRAWAL. Member Entities may withdraw from the Authority for 
subsequent fiscal years by providing written notice to the Authority and each Member Entity on 
or before May 1 of any fiscal year. Withdrawal shall be effective on July 1 of the next fiscal 
year. This shall be the exclusive means by which a Member Entity may withdraw from the 
Authority. Any Member Entity that withdraws shall remain liable for any budget contributions 
or capital improvement project participation approved before withdrawal. Any Member Entity 
that withdraws shall remain liable for any and all demands, claims, or liabilities of any nature, 
including death or injury to any person, property damage, or any other loss caused by or arising 
out of that party’s performance or failure to perform the obligations assumed before the Member 
Entity withdraws from this Agreement. Any Member Entity that withdraws shall remain subject 
to the provisions of Paragraph 23. (Liability of the Authority; Release and Indemnity) with 
respect to any event or occurrence taking place before the Member Entity withdraws. 



28 
 

 
17. EXPULSION. The Authority may expel a Member Entity from the Authority by 
a four-fifths (4/5) vote of the Board for a breach of this Agreement determined by the Board to 
be a material breach. Any Member Entity that has been expelled pursuant to this paragraph shall 
have no further liability or obligation pursuant to this Agreement after the effective date of such 
expulsion; except such Member Entity shall remain liable for any and all demands, claims, or 
liabilities of any nature, including death or injury to any person, property damage, or any other 
loss caused by or arising out of that party’s performance or failure to perform the obligations 
assumed before the Member Entity was expelled, including any budget contributions or capital 
improvement project participation approved before expulsion. Any Member Entity that has been 
expelled shall remain subject to the provisions of Paragraph 23. (Liability of the Authority; 
Release and Indemnity) with respect to any event or occurrence taking place before the Member 
Entity was expelled. 
 
18. TERMINATION AND DISTRIBUTION. 
a. Termination. This Agreement shall continue until terminated. This 
Agreement may be terminated by the written consent of four-fifths (4/5) of the Member Entities; 
provided, however, this Agreement and the Authority shall continue to exist after termination for 
the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution of assets, and all other functions necessary to 
conclude the obligation and affairs of the Authority. 
b. Surplus. In the event that the Authority is terminated, any surplus money 
on deposit in any fund or account of the Authority shall be returned in proportion to the 
contributions made as required by Section 6512 of the California Government Code. The Board 
is vested with all powers of the Authority for the purpose of concluding and dissolving the 
business affairs of the Authority, including for the disposition, division, or distribution of any 
property acquired as a result of the joint exercise of powers. 
 
19. NOTICES. Notices to each Member Entity under this Agreement are sufficient if 
mailed to its respective address on file with the Authority. 
 
20. PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT. No Member Entity may assign a 
right, claim, or interest it may have under this Agreement, and any such assignment shall be 
void. No creditor, assignee, or third-party beneficiary of a Member Entity has a right, claim, or 
title to any part, share, interest, fund, or asset of the Authority. 
 
21. AMENDMENTS. This Agreement may be amended by approval by the 
governing body for each and every Member Entity. A proposed amendment must be submitted 
to each Member Entity at least thirty (30) days in advance of the date when the Member Entity 
considers it. An amendment is to be effective immediately unless otherwise designated. 
 
22. SEVERABILITY. If a portion, term, condition, or provision of this Agreement is 
determined by a court to be illegal or in conflict with the law of the State of California, or is 
otherwise rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining portions, terms, 
conditions, and provisions is not affected. 
 
23. LIABILITY OF THE AUTHORITY; RELEASE AND INDEMNITY. Funds of 
the Authority may be used to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Authority, any Member 



29 
 

Entity, any member of the Board, and each officer, employee and agent of the Authority for their 
actions taken within the scope of their duties while acting on behalf of the Authority. The parties 
to this Agreement release each other and agree to hold each other harmless, as well as their 
officers and employees, for any loss or liability arising from their respective activities pursuant 
to this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided herein, each party agrees to indemnity, defend 
and hold harmless the other parties, their officers, agents, and employees from any and all 
demands, claims, or liabilities of any nature, including death or injury to any person, property 
damage, or any other loss caused by or arising out of that party’s performance or failure to 
perform the obligations assumed under this Agreement. Each Member Entity agrees that legal 
counsel for any Member Entity may be designated by the Board to represent the Authority by 
performing legal services, including litigation, and that any potential conflict of interest arising 
from such representation shall be deemed waived by the Authority and Member Entity, unless an 
actual adverse relationship exists between the Member Entity and the Authority with respect to 
the particular matter. The designation of legal counsel from a Member Entity shall be with the 
approval of that Member Entity. 
 
24. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
25. COUNTERPART. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 
which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one instrument. 
 
26. AGREEMENT COMPLETE. The foregoing constitutes the full and complete 
Agreement of the Member Entities. There are no oral understandings or agreements not set forth 
in writing herein. 
 
27. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Nothing in this Agreement, whether 
express or implied, shall be construed to give any person or entity, other than the parties hereto, 
any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of this Agreement or any 
covenants, conditions, or provisions contained herein. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the dates 
set forth below. 
[SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON SEPARATE PAGES] 
04/02/20 9 
DATED: , 2020 CITY OF MENLO PARK 
By: ___________________________ 
Cecilia Taylor, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
By: ___________________________ 
Judi Herren, City Clerk 
APPROVE AS TO FORM: 
___________________________ 
Cara E. Silver 
Interim City Attorney 
04/02/20 10 
DATED:____________________, 2020 CITY OF PALO ALTO 
By: ________________________________ 



30 
 

Adrian Fine, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
By: ________________________________ 
Beth Minor, City Clerk 
APPROVE AS TO FORM: 
___________________________ 
Cassie Coleman 
Assistant City Attorney 
04/02/20 11 
DATED: _____________________, 2020 CITY OF EAST PALO ALTO 
By: __________________________ 
Regina Wallace-Jones, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
By: __________________________ 
Walfred Solorzano, City Clerk 
APPROVE AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________ 
Rafael Alvarado 
City Attorney 
04/02/20 12 
DATED: ____________________, 2020 SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER 
DISTRICT 
By: _____________________________ 
Nai Hsueh, Chair 
ATTEST: 
By: _____________________________ 
Michele L. King, CMC, Board Clerk 
APPROVE AS TO FORM: 
____________________________ 
District Counsel By 
Leslie Orta 
Senior Assistant District Counsel 
04/02/20 13 

 

  



31 
 

APENDIX B 

CURRENT INTERAGENCY AGREEMENTS 

 

1. Between Valley Water and the SFCJPA for funding the initial study and 
Environmental Impact report for flood protection, etc. from Highway 101 to El 
Camion Real. (Expires 12/31/21. Extension in process) 

2. Between Valley Water and the SFCJPA, Cost share agreement for West 
Bayshore Inlet. 

3. Between Stanford University and the SFCJPA for access to Stanford lands to 
conduct off-stream detention investigations. 

4. Extension of the access agreement between Stanford and the SFCJPA. 
5. Between the US Army Corps of Engineers and the SFCJPA for the CAP 205 

Study. 
6. Between the City of Menlo Park, the SFCJPA, Meta (formerly known as 

Facebook) and PG&E for implementation of the FEMA BRIC grant (draft 
agreement).  

 

 



32 
 

  



33 
 

SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 1 
Cost Share Agreement 
Between the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority and 
the Santa Clara Valley Water District 
For Funding Design Modifications to the West Bayshore Road Inlet Structure 
This agreement (Agreement) effective once fully executed (Effective Date), by and between the 
SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (Authority), a California joint 
powers authority and the SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (Water District), a special 
district of the State of California, collectively referred to as Parties, or individually as Party. 
R E C I T A L S 
A. San Francisquito Creek has a history of flooding the communities in and around East 
Palo Alto, Menlo Park and Palo Alto. The most damaging flood occurred in 1998. 
B. Following the flood of 1998, the cities of East Palo Alto, Menlo Park, and Palo 
Alto, along with the San Mateo County Flood Control District and the Santa Clara Valley Water 
District (Water District), formed the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority (Authority) 
on May 18, 1999. These entities are full members of the Authority. 
C. Authority and Water District are implementing a comprehensive Flood Protection, 
Ecosystem Restoration, and Recreation Project (Project) on San Francisquito Creek (Creek). 
D. The flood protection features of Phase 1 of the Project, which includes channel 
widening, floodwall installation, construction of improved levees, marsh habitat improvements, 
and trail access improvements along the Creek downstream of Highway 101, were completed on 
January 31, 2019 and the entire Project was accepted as complete by the District on May 14, 
2019. 
E. At the request of Authority, the California Department of Transportation 
(CalTrans) modified the U.S. Highway 101, East Bayshore Road and West Bayshore Road 
bridges over the Creek to accommodate stream flows consistent with the capacity of the 
improved creek channel downstream. A primary feature of this modification to allow for greater 
flow to pass underneath these structures was the addition of a fourth culvert. 
F. In order to allow upstream flows to enter the fourth culvert underneath the 
Caltrans structures, the Creek must be widened along the south bank to conform with both the 
Caltrans structures and the existing sacked-concrete wall and floodwall upstream. 
G. Authority and Water District have entered in to a funding agreement to complete 
environmental documentation for this channel widening (Inlet) along with other Project elements 
upstream of Highway 101, to be implemented as Phase 2 of the Project. Authority has secured 
the services of an environmental consultant and a Draft Environmental Impact Report has been 
prepared and released for public review. 
H. Water District has completed design plans for the Inlet and wishes to secure the 
services of a professional design engineer to modify those plans (Plan Modifications) for 
consistency with downstream improvements and to reduce construction costs. 
SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 2 
I. Water District has determined that the design engineer consultant (Consultant) 
that prepared the plans and specifications for the Phase 1 improvements is best suited to 
conduct the desired design modifications for the channel widening. 
J. The Consultant contract for the design of Phase 1 was awarded by Authority (the 
Phase 1 Design Contract). The Phase 1 Design Contract has a provision that allows for 
amendments to be made to the Contract to add, subtract, or modify the scope of work to be 
performed by the Consultant. 
K. Water District wishes to provide funding to Authority to support an amendment to 
the Phase 1 Design Contract so that the Plan Modifications can be prepared by Consultant. 



34 
 

Water District and Authority have determined that the Consultant is uniquely qualified to provide 
the desired services at the lowest cost to Water District and Authority. 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and the covenants and 
conditions in the sections contained herein below, the Parties agree as follows: 
P R O V I S I O N S 
1. Project Purpose and Work Products 
A. The purpose of this Agreement is to fund the Plan Modifications to be prepared by the 
Consultant. The Inlet will increase flow conveyance and provide flood protection to homes, 
businesses, and other facilities in East Palo Alto and Palo Alto. As a key component of 
Authority’s and Water District’s comprehensive Project for flood protection and other benefits 
along the Creek, construction of the Inlet will provide necessary flow capacity such that 
other conveyance improvements can be made upstream. 
B. The final work products to be funded in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be Final Design, Specifications, and Cost Estimate for the Inlet. 
2. Responsibilities of the Parties 
A. Authority shall prepare and execute an amendment (Amendment) to the Phase 1 Design 
Contract to add the Plan Modifications to the Scope of Work. The Amendment shall also 
provide that the Consultant will be the engineer-of-record for such design deliverables and 
the Phase 1 Design Contract shall remain in effect until the Inlet is accepted by the Water 
District as complete, unless it is terminated earlier pursuant to its terms. 
B. Upon the Authority’s approval of the Amendment, the Water District shall make available an 
amount not to exceed $150,000 to pay to the Authority for the costs of the Plan 
Modifications. 
C. Water District shall provide technical assistance to Authority during the term of this Agreement 
for review of the Plan Modifications work as it progresses and approval upon completion. 
3. Payments and invoices 
A. After review and approval by the Executive Director, or the Executive Director’s designee, 
Authority shall submit invoices to the Water District for its review and payment to Authority. 
SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 3 
B. Invoices from the Authority to the Water District will include: 
1. Copies of Consultant invoices, which have been reviewed and approved by 
the Authority; 
2. Detail of the Consultant’s services performed and products delivered during 
the invoice period; 
3. Itemized cost schedule and update of the current and total expenditures on 
each Contract task. 
C. The Water District shall pay all invoices from the Authority, which it has approved, within 20 
calendar days after receipt from the Authority. 
4. Payment to Consultant 
Authority shall be responsible for review and payment of all requests for payment 
submitted by the Consultant. Consultant’s invoices and work products are subject to review and 
approval by Water District prior to Water District issuing payment to Authority for Consultant’s 
services. 
5. Management of the Project 
A. Authority shall manage the Consultant Phase 1 Design Contract and Consultant’s 
performance in preparing the required work products. Such management shall include 
consultation with the Authority member agencies as deemed appropriate by the Executive 
Director. 
B. Water District and other Authority member agencies shall provide technical support to the 
Authority regarding the Consultant’s work and participate in Project team meetings with 



35 
 

Consultant as required. 
C. The Authority shall not approve the Final Design, Specifications, and Cost Estimate for the Inlet 
unless and until approved by the Water District. 
6. Mutual Hold Harmless and Indemnification Obligations 
A. In lieu of and notwithstanding the pro rata risk allocation, which might otherwise be imposed 
between the Parties pursuant to Government Code Section 895.6, the Parties agree that all 
losses or liabilities incurred by a Party shall not be shared pro rata but, instead, the Parties 
agree that, pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, each of the Parties hereto shall 
fully indemnify and hold the other party, their officers, board members, employees, and 
agents, harmless from any claim, expense or cost, damage or liability imposed for injury (as 
defined in Government Code Section 810.8) occurring by reason of the negligent acts or 
omissions or willful misconduct solely of the indemnifying Party, its officers, employees, or 
agents, under or in connection with or arising out of any work, authority, or jurisdiction 
delegated to such Party under this Agreement. No Party, nor any officer, board member, or 
agent thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of the 
negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the other Party hereto, its officers, board 
members, employees, or agents, under or in connection with or arising out of any work, 
authority or jurisdiction delegated to such other Party under this Agreement. The obligations 
set forth in this paragraph will survive termination and expiration of this Agreement. 
SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 4 
B. In the event of concurrent intentional or unintentional misconduct, negligent acts or omissions 
by any one of the Parties (or each of their respective officers, directors and/or employees), 
then the liability for any and all claims for injuries or damages to persons and/or property 
which arise out of each and any of their performance of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be apportioned according to the California law of comparative negligence. 
The Parties hereto are not jointly and severally liable on any liability, claim, or lawsuit. 
C. The duties and obligations of this Section shall survive and continue in full force and effect 
after the termination, expiration, suspension, and completion of this Agreement. 
7. Insurance 
Authority will require its Consultant to secure and maintain in full force and effect all times 
during the term of the Phase 1 Design Contract, and during an appropriate period of extension, 
general liability and property damage insurance, business automobile insurance, 
Professional/Errors and Omissions Liability, and such other insurance as the Parties deem 
appropriate, in forms and limits of liability acceptable to both Parties, naming the District and the 
Authority, and their respective directors, officials, officers, employees and agents as additional 
insureds from and against all damages and claims, loss, liability, cost or expense relating to, arising 
out of, or pertaining to, the Consultant’s actual or alleged negligent, reckless, or willful conduct. 
8. Retention of Records, Right to Monitor and Audit 
Unless a longer period of time is required by law or federal or state grant funding 
agreements, Authority and Water District shall maintain all records for five (5) years after the 
Project is terminated or completed. The records shall be subject to the examination and audit of 
all Authority member agencies. 
9. Termination of Agreement 
A. The term of this Agreement will expire once the Inlet is accepted by the Water District as 
complete, unless terminated earlier pursuant to this Section 8. 
B. If either Party fails to perform any of its material obligations under this Agreement, in addition 
to all other remedies provided by law, the other Party may terminate this Agreement 
immediately upon written notice. This notice of termination, however, may be given only after 
the defaulting Party has been provided written notice of its failure to perform and has been 
given thirty (30) days to cure the nonperformance to the satisfaction of the other Party. 



36 
 

C. Chief Executive Officer of the Water District and Executive Director of the Authority are 
empowered to terminate this Agreement on behalf of their respective agencies. 
D. In the event of termination, each Party shall deliver to the other Party, upon request, copies 
of reports, documents, and other work performed by either Party or consultant to either Party 
under this Agreement. The cost of work performed under this Agreement to the date of 
termination shall be due and payable in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 
10. Refund of Undisbursed Funds 
Undisbursed funds shall be returned to the Water District within ninety (90) days of the 
completion of the Scope of Work or from the termination of this Agreement. 
SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 5 
11. Notices 
A. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall not be 
effective unless it is given in writing and shall be delivered (a) in person, (b) by certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, (c) by email, or (d) by a commercial overnight 
courier that guarantees next day delivery and provides a receipt, and addressed to the 
Parties at the addresses stated below, or at such other address as either Party may hereafter 
notify the other Party in writing: 
Authority: San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 
615-B Menlo Avenue 
Menlo Park, California 94025 
Attention: Len Materman, Executive Director 
Email address: len@sfcjpa.org 
Water District: Santa Clara Valley Water District 
5750 Almaden Expressway 
San Jose, California 95118-3614 
Attention: Melanie Richardson, Deputy Operating Officer 
Email address: mrichardson@valleywater.org 
B. Service of any such notice or other communications so made shall be deemed effective on the 
day of actual delivery (whether accepted or refused) as evidenced by: a) confirmed reply if by 
email, b) as shown by the addressee’s return receipt if by certified mail, or c) as confirmed by the 
courier service if by courier; provided, however, that if such actual delivery occurs after 5:00 p.m. 
(local time where received) or on a non- business day, then such notice or demand so made shall 
be deemed effective on the first business day immediately following the day of actual delivery. 
12. Severability 
In the event any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such portion shall be severed from this 
Agreement and the remaining parts hereof shall remain in full force and effect as fully as though 
such invalid, illegal or unenforceable portion had never been part of this Agreement. 
13. Governing Law and Compliance with Laws 
The parties agree that California law shall govern this Agreement. In the performance of 
this Agreement each party shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and 
regulations of the federal, state, and applicable local government. 
14. Venue 
In the event that suit shall be brought by either Party to this Agreement, the Parties agree 
that venue shall be exclusively vested in the state courts of either the County of Santa Clara, or 
the County of San Mateo or where otherwise appropriate, exclusively in the United States Court, 
Northern District of California. 
15. Assignability and Subcontracting 
Parties shall not assign this Agreement or any portion thereof to a third party or 
subcontract with a third party to provide services required under this Agreement without the 



37 
 

prior written consent of the other Party. 
SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 6 
16. Ownership of Materials 
All reports, documents, or other materials developed or discovered by either Party or any 
other person engaged directly or indirectly by any Party to perform the services required 
hereunder shall be and remain the mutual property of Authority and Authority Member Agencies 
without restriction or limitation upon their use. 
17. Entire Agreement 
This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between Authority and Water District 
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior offers and negotiations, oral 
and written. This Agreement may not be amended or modified in any respect whatsoever except 
by an instrument in writing signed by authorized representatives of Authority and Water District. 
18. Further Actions 
Authority and Water District agree to execute all instruments and documents, and to take 
all actions, as may be reasonably required to consummate the transaction contemplated by this 
Agreement. 
19. Counterparts 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when 
executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which, taken together, 
shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. 
20. Waiver 
A Party’s waiver of any term, condition, or breach of any term, condition or covenant will 
not be construed as a waiver of any other term, condition or covenant. 
21. Third Parties 
This Agreement is entered into only for the benefit of the Parties executing this 
Agreement and not for the benefit of any other individual, entity, or person. 
22. Equal Opportunity Employer 
A. The Santa Clara Valley Water District is an equal opportunity employer and requires the parties it 
contracts with to have and adhere to a policy of equal opportunity and non-discrimination. In the 
performance of the Agreement, the Authority will comply with all applicable federal, state, local 
laws and regulations, and will not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee, or applicant 
for employment, in the recruitment, hiring, employment, utilization, promotion, classification or 
reclassification, transfer, recruitment advertising, evaluation, treatment, demotion, layoff, 
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for professional 
development training (including apprenticeship), or against any other person, on the basis of sex 
(which includes pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding and medical conditions related to 
pregnancy, childbirth or breastfeeding), race, religion, color, national origin (including language 
use restrictions), ancestry, religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices), 
political affiliation, disability (mental and physical, including HIV or AIDS), medical condition 
(cancer and genetic characteristics), genetic information, marital status, parental status, gender, 
age (40 and over), pregnancy, military and veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity and 
gender expression, the exercise of family and medical care leave, the exercise of pregnancy 
disability leave, or the request, exercise, or need for reasonable accommodation. 
SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 7 
B. Compliance with Applicable Equal Opportunity Laws. 
The Authority’s policy must conform with applicable state and federal guidelines including 
the Federal Equal Opportunity Clause, “Section 60-1.4 of Title 41, Part 60 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations,” Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; the American’s 
with Disabilities Act of 1990; the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Sections 503 and 504); the Age 



38 
 

Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. sec. 6101 et seq.); the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act (Government Code Section 12900 et. seq.); and California Labor Code 
Sections 1101 and 1102. 
C. Investigation of Claims. 
The Authority must designate a specific position within its organization to be responsible for 
assuring nondiscrimination and non-harassment as provided in this Agreement. The 
Authority must investigate all complaints directed to it by District. District will refer complaints 
in writing and the Authority will advise District in writing when such investigations are 
concluded. The scope of such investigations must include all appropriate officers, 
employees, and agents of the Authority as well as all consultants, subcontractors, 
Subconsultants, and material suppliers of the Authority. In cases where such investigation 
results in a finding of discrimination, harassment, or hostile work environment, the Authority 
must take prompt, effective disciplinary action against the offender. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Authority and Water District have executed this Agreement as 
of the date indicated on the following signature pages. 
Separate Signature pages were implemented individually for each Party as follows. 
(remainder of page intentionally left blank) 
SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 8 
Cost Share Agreement 
Between the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority and 
the Santa Clara Valley Water District 
For Funding Design Modifications to the West Bayshore Road Inlet Structure 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Authority has executed this Agreement as of the date and 
year indicated above. 
Each Party has executed a separate signature page. 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY, a California joint powers authority 
_______________________ By: ____________________________ 
Assistant General Counsel Len Materman 
Trisha Ortiz Executive Director 
Date: July 2, 2019 
SFCJPA/SCVWD 
Cost Sharing Agreement Upstream Inlet 
v.4, 062119 9 
Cost Share Agreement 
Between the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority and 
the Santa Clara Valley Water District 
For Funding the Design Modifications to the West Bayshore Road Inlet Structure 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Water District has executed this Agreement as of the date and year 
indicated below. 
Each Party has executed a separate signature page. 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
_________________________ By:___________________________ 
Water District Counsel Name 
Name Title 
Title 
Date:__________________________ 
 

 



39 
 

 

  



40 
 

 

 

II. ACCESS AGREEMENT 

 

This ACCESS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of October 29, 2020 (the 
“Effective Date”) by and between THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE LELAND STANFORD JUNIOR 
UNIVERSITY, a body having corporate powers under the laws of the State of California (“Owner”) 
and SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (“Licensee”), 

and, in the following factual context: 

 

A. Owner is the owner of that certain real property commonly known as Webb Ranch and 
the former Boething plant nursery, located in San Mateo County, California, and more 
particularly described on the attached Exhibit A (the “Property”). 

 

B. Licensee has requested authorization to access portions of the Property to investigate 
the feasibility, constraints, and environmental impacts and benefits of potential upstream detention 
basins. A project to develop these basins was discussed at a program level in a Final Environmental Impact 
Report certified by Licensee on September 26, 2019 (the “2019 EIR”). For the basin locations upstream 
(west) of Highway 280 discussed in the 2019 EIR, Licensee is now considering preparation of a more 
detailed project-level environmental impact report (the “Project-Level EIR”). 

 

C. Licensee desires to enter upon portions of the Property for the purpose of conducting 
investigations of the Property in connection with the potential Project-Level EIR, first with an on-site 
reconnaissance visit, for the limited purpose of meeting, gathering and assessment of information/data 
requested by Licensee and provided by Owner, and the scoping of additional activities (“Part 1”), second 
for the identification and definition of the area of potential effect (“APE”) and preliminary basin 
feasibility assessment of the detention basin alternatives (“Part 2a”), and lastly to conduct the 
environmental and resource studies necessary for a CEQA evaluation of the identified APE and to 
accomplish project planning and design so that the Project- Level EIR can be prepared (“Part 2b”), as more 
particularly described on the attached Exhibit B (the “Scope of Work”). 

 

D. Owner is willing to provide Licensee with certain data and information and to allow 
Licensee a limited license to conduct such investigations, but only in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

 

In this factual context, Owner and Licensee (each, a “Party” and collectively, the 
“Parties”), intending to be legally bound, agree as follows: 



41 
 

 

1. Limited License. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Owner hereby 
grants to Licensee a limited and revocable license (the “License”) for Licensee and its employees, 
authorized agents, consultants, contractors, and representatives (with Licensee, the “Licensee’s 
Representatives”) to enter portions of the Property for the sole purpose of conducting the Part 1, Part 
2a and Part 2b investigations as set forth on the Scope of Work and as modified in accordance with Section 
3 (collectively, the “Investigation”). Owner has provided written notice of the Part 1 Investigation to 
the lessees, tenants and occupants (collectively, “Tenants”) of the Property and upon receipt will 
provide to Licensee copies of such notices counter-signed by the applicable Tenants. Owner hereby 
certifies that Owner has the right to access the Property, including the portions of the Property subject 
to leases or other occupancy agreements with the Tenants, and has obtained all necessary consents 
needed to grant this License based upon the scope provided by Licensee for the applicable part of the 
Investigation 

 

1 

 

147284715.9 

 

pursuant to the Scope of Work. All activities conducted by Licensee’s Representatives in 
connection with the Investigation shall be at Licensee’s sole cost and expense. This Agreement 
does not allow activities other than those described in the Scope of Work and Section 3. 

 

2. Term. The term of the License and of this Agreement shall continue until eighteen 

(18) months after the Effective Date. Owner, at its sole option, may require Licensee to 
immediately terminate its access to the Property or may otherwise terminate this License upon 
written notice, if, in Licensor’s reasonable opinion, Licensee is (a) causing physical damage to the 
Property; (b) causing a safety hazard; (c) violating any applicable law; or (d) unreasonably 
interfering with other occupants of the Property and/or the Property’s neighbors. Licensee may 
immediately terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Owner in the event that Licensee 
deems, in the Licensee’s sole and absolute discretion, that the Owner has unreasonably interfered 
with or prevented Licensee from conducting the Investigation. 

 

3. Conduct of Investigation. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to 
conduct its Investigation, Licensee’s Representatives shall have the right of access to the 
Property as needed during the term of this Agreement during reasonable business hours and at 
such other times mutually agreed upon by the Parties and upon reasonable notice (at least five 



42 
 

(5) business days prior notice) to Owner, subject to seasonal restrictions related to flora, fauna and 
water resources. Such access shall be coordinated through Owner’s authorized representative, Mimi 
Dunkle at (650) 724-4715 or mimiledu@stanford.edu, and Owner may require all such access to be 
supervised by Owner’s authorized representative or designated environmental manager. Owner’s 
authorized representative will coordinate all such access with any lessee, tenant or other occupant of the 
Property, taking into account the privacy and business operations of such Tenants. Owner and Licensee 
shall plan all visits to ensure Tenants will not have their normal activities disrupted. This right of entry 
shall be subject to the following conditions: 

 

(a) The Investigation shall be conducted in compliance with each law, zoning 
restriction, ordinance, rule, regulation or requirement of any governmental or quasi- governmental agency 
with jurisdiction over the Property. Licensee shall make every reasonable effort to accommodate 
the requests of Owner regarding conduct of the Investigation so as to minimize interference with 
operations at the Property, and use of the Property by Owner’s Tenants of the Property. The Investigation 
shall be conducted in a manner that (i) will not endanger the health, safety or welfare of Owner’s 
employees, agents, invitees or others present on the Property and 
(ii) minimizes any impacts on the natural environment, native flora and fauna and archaeological 
resources. 

 

(b) Prior to accessing the Property for the Part 1 Investigation, Licensee may 
request that Owner provide certain information/data in connection with the Investigation. 
Owner and Licensee shall meet and discuss what information/data is available from Owner to 
share with Licensee. Where information/data sharing is contingent upon Licensee having 
retained a qualified archaeological consultant, Licensee shall provide contact information of 
the qualified archaeologist. Licensee understands that Licensee or its archaeologist, as 
applicable, may be required to execute a confidentiality agreement to receive this 
information/data. Owner makes no representation or warranty relating to the accuracy or 
completeness of any information/data that Owner or its agents or representatives may provide 
to Licensee during Part 1, Part 2a or Part 2b. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that Licensee 
is responsible for verifying the accuracy of any such information/data and is not relying on 
the information/data in connection with its Investigation. Additionally, Owner makes no 
representation or warranty relating to any information/data regarding the Tenants that is 
delivered to Owner by the Tenants and provided to Licensee during Part 1, Part 2a or Part 2b. 

 

2 

 

147284715.9 

 

 

mailto:mimiledu@stanford.edu


43 
 

(c) For the Part 1 Investigation, Licensee shall have a one-time right to enter each 
Part 1 Investigation Area as designated on Exhibit B-1 or pursuant to the Scope of Work to conduct the 
Part 1 activities set forth in the Scope of Work. Part 1 shall not include any invasive or ground-disturbing 
activities. Owner’s staff may attend any on-site Part 1 Investigations, to facilitate and share additional 
information during the site visit. 

 

(d) Part 2a shall not commence unless and until Licensee has completed its Part 1 
Investigations and reviewed the data collected during Part 1. Prior to proceeding to Part 2a, Licensee 
shall develop and deliver to Owner concept level designs for potential detention basins, a revised map of 
potential detention basin project sites to be field investigated, and a proposed scope for Part 2a 
Investigations based on its Part 1 Investigations. Licensee and Owner shall meet and confer on Licensee’s 
proposals for Part 2a as contemplated in the Scope of Work. Once Owner and Licensee have agreed upon 
Part 2a Investigation Areas (as defined in the Scope of Work) and the coordinated communication plan 
with the Tenants has been completed for Part 2a, Licensee may enter the Part 2a Investigation Areas 
subject to the Scope of Work. Owner’s staff may attend any on-site Part 2a Investigations, to coordinate 
with the Tenants and to facilitate and share additional information during the site visit. 

 

(e) Part 2b shall not commence unless and until Licensee has completed its Part 2b 
Investigations and reviewed the data collected during Part 2b. Prior to proceeding to Part 2b, Licensee 
shall develop and deliver to Owner the parameters of proposed environmental and resource studies 
necessary for a CEQA evaluation of the proposed APE, for preparation of the Project-Level EIR, and to 
accomplish project planning and design, and any additional proposed scope for Part 2b Investigations 
based on its Part 2a Investigations. Licensee and Owner shall meet and confer on Licensee’s proposals 
for Part 2b as contemplated in the Scope of Work. Once Owner and Licensee have agreed upon Part 2b 
Investigation Areas (as defined in the Scope of Work) and the coordinated communication plan with 
the Tenants has been completed for Part 2b and Licensee has confirmed land and resource protections 
are in place, Licensee may enter the Part 2b Investigation Areas subject to the Scope of Work. Owner’s 
staff may attend any on-site Part 2b Investigations, to coordinate with the Tenants and to facilitate and 
share additional information during the site visit. 

 

(f) When applicable, Licensee shall provide any supplemental cultural resource 
and biological information appropriate to the revised layouts and scope. Licensee shall not proceed with 
additional Investigation without Owner’s review of the proposed project-level site investigation for 
archaeological and biological resources. Upon Owner’s reasonable written consent, Licensee may 
proceed with site visits in addition to the Scope of Work to conduct additional Investigation within 
an agreed-upon scope. 

 

(g) Prior to entering the Property to perform its Investigation, Licensee shall 
provide to Owner a certificate of insurance showing that Licensee maintains in full force and effect a policy 
of comprehensive general liability insurance (i) covering the activities of the Licensee’s Representatives 
in connection with the Investigation, (ii) in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for 
Part 1 and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) for Part 2a and Part 2b combined single limit per 
occurrence from a carrier reasonably acceptable to Owner, (iii) naming Owner and its trustees, officers, 
and directors as additional insureds, and (iv) requiring at least thirty (30) days’ written notice to Owner 
prior to cancellation or reduction in coverage, provided that Owner may reduce the amount of minimum 



44 
 

insurance coverage to not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) based upon the scope of the 
activities that are proposed for Part 2a or Part 2b. 

 

3 

 

147284715.9 

 

(h) Any investigation involving soil borings, subsoil, soil vapor, ground water, soil 
load bearing tests or other tests involving physical invasion of the surface of the Property or physical 
sampling are to be made by Licensee only after consultation with Owner. Owner’s environmental 
consultant may attend any test or investigation at the Property and shall be entitled, without cost, to 
duplicates of any samples taken by Licensee (or, if duplicates are not reasonably attainable, Licensee may 
elect to deliver the actual samples after testing) and to copies of all written reports and data prepared 
by or on behalf of Licensee. Any proposal for physical invasion of the Property must be delivered to 
Owner and its environmental consultant, together with a reasonably detailed investigation plan 
sufficient for Owner to determine the scope and logistics of the proposed investigation, at least three 
(3) business days before the desired test. Any invasive sampling or testing permitted by Owner shall 
be performed in compliance with all environmental laws and other requirements of governmental 
authorities. Depending on the nature of the invasive testing or sampling, Owner may require an increase 
in the amount of insurance specified in Section 3(c). If in the course of its investigation, Licensee 
discovers any environmental condition that Licensee or its consultants or contractors believes 
should be reported to any governmental agency, Licensee shall provide to Owner full information 
regarding the discovery and Owner shall assume any and all reporting obligations. 

 

(i) Promptly after any physical inspection of the Property, Licensee, at Licensee’s 
sole cost, shall restore the Property to the condition that existed immediately prior to such inspection, 
provided that in the event that Licensee fails to restore the Property within fourteen (14) days of a 
written demand for restoration from Owner, Owner may elect to restore the Property itself and to charge 
the cost thereof to Licensee. At Owner’s request, Licensee shall deliver to Owner copies of all documents, 
reports, analyses, surveys, test results and other items prepared by or on behalf of Licensee during the 
Investigation. 

 

(j) Nothing in the Agreement shall permit Licensee to construct any 
improvements on the Property. 

 

4. Conditions of Access. In addition to the foregoing, access to the Property pursuant 
to this Agreement may be denied or terminated by Owner, if the following working conditions are 
not met: 

 

(a) Licensee and Licensee’s Representatives shall take all reasonable and 
necessary safety and security precautions in connection with the Investigation. 



45 
 

 

(b) In order to prevent the spread of Sudden Oak Death and other plant 
pathogens into the watershed, and to prevent the spread of chythrid fungus and non-native plants and 
animals. the following precautions must be followed: 

 

(i) To avoid the introduction of Sudden Oak Death or other pathogens not 
currently in the watershed, clean all equipment, boots, tools and other supplies, with disinfectant 
and triple rinse before entry and exiting the creek. 

 

(ii)    Do not collect any plant material including leaves, flowers, acorns, 

twigs, wood and bark. 

 

(iii)   Avoid muddy areas when parking your vehicle. Spores may 
collect in mud on your tires and spread to other areas. 

 

4 

 

147284715.9 

 

(iv) To avoid spreading aquatic species that are potentially pathogenic or 
invasive, all equipment, boots and tools are to be triple rinsed before entry and exiting any creek or 
wetland. 

 

(v) To avoid spreading terrestrial species that are potentially pathogenic or 
invasive, all equipment and clothing brought on site needs to be cleaned off prior to coming on the 
Property. 

 

(c) Licensee shall engage a professional archaeologist, at Licensee’s sole cost and 
expense, to perform a site visit and surface reconnaissance survey of the Property. Licensee shall submit 
documentation demonstrating that Licensee’s archaeologist meets the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Professional Qualification Standards. No subsurface investigation is allowed under this Agreement 
except as contemplated in the Scope of Work for Part 2a and/or Part 2b. Should subsurface investigation 
be necessary to assess potential impacts to archaeological resources a formal written proposal is 
required for review by Stanford University’s Archaeologist and compliance with Section 3(d) of this 
Agreement. Owner, at its sole cost and expense, shall be entitled to have an on-site Owner- designated 
consultant during any Investigation, which consultant may be an independent contractor approved 
by the Campus University Archaeologist in the Land Use and Environmental Planning department or an 



46 
 

employee of Owner. When such consultant deems it necessary to investigate the possible presence of, 
or to protect, historic or archaeological artifacts, such consultant shall have the authority to temporarily 
halt the Investigation in the area subject to such reasonable investigation. Licensee and Licensee’s 
Representatives shall comply, at the Licensee’s sole cost and expense, with the consultant’s requests, 
with Stanford University policy regarding archeological resources protection, and with state law 
regarding the protection, removal or reburial of human remains and archaeological artifacts. Any artifacts 
discovered on the Property shall belong to Owner. In the event that human remains or other 
archaeological materials are discovered, Licensee shall be responsible for actual costs directly related 
to Licensee’s discovery, including the costs of mitigation and of standard archaeological staff. Owner 
and its consultant shall not be liable for any damages or  other  liability that  may result  from temporary 
cessation of  excavation or construction, or other compliance with the provisions of these requirements. 

 

(d) Owner, at its sole cost and expense, shall be entitled to have an on-site Owner-
designated consultant during any Investigation, which consultant may be an independent contractor 
approved by the Associate Director for Conservation Planning in the Stanford University Land Use and 
Environmental Planning Office or an employee of Owner. When such consultant deems it necessary to 
investigate the possible presence of, or to protect the habitat, such consultant shall have the authority 
to temporarily halt the Investigation in the area subject to such reasonable investigation. Licensee and 
Licensee’s Representatives shall comply, at Licensee’s sole cost and expense, with the consultant’s 
requests, and with Stanford University policy regarding biological protection. Owner and its consultant 
shall not be liable for any damages or other liability that may result from temporary cessation of excavation 
or construction, or other compliance with the provisions of these requirements. Licensee shall provide a 
specific daily field schedule for performing biological and habitat surveys, so that Owner can schedule 
biologists to participate in the field work. Any changes in time or date of field activities shall be 
transmitted to Owner at least three (3) business days prior to the change in schedule. 

 

5. Liens. Licensee shall not permit any mechanics’ or other liens to be filed against the 
Property as a result of Licensee’s Investigation, and Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, shall cause 
any liens so filed to be removed within five (5) business days after receipt of notice thereof, by 
bond or otherwise. 

 

5 

 

147284715.9 

 

6. Waiver of Claims; Release. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that Owner and its Tenants 
shall not be liable to Licensee or Licensee’s Representatives for any injury, loss, damage, liability, claim, 
cause of action or expense incurred or suffered by Licensee or Licensee’s Representatives, or any of them, 
directly or indirectly arising out of or in any way relating to entry upon the Property and/or the 
performance of the Investigation by Licensee or Licensee’s Representatives from any cause whatsoever. 
Owner hereby informs Licensee that detectable amounts of hazardous substances may be located 
on, beneath and/or in the vicinity of the Property (the “Pre-Existing Condition”). Licensee hereby 



47 
 

releases Owner and Owner’s officers, directors, trustees, agents and employees from any and all claims, 
demands, debts, liabilities, and causes of action of whatever kind or nature, whether known or 
unknown or suspected or unsuspected which Licensee or any of Licensee’s Representatives may have, 
claim to have, or which may hereafter accrue against the released parties or any of them, arising out of 
or relating to or in any way connected with hazardous substances presently in, on or under, or now 
or hereafter emanating from or migrating onto the Property, including without limitation the Pre- 
Existing Condition. In connection with such release, Licensee hereby waives any and all rights conferred 
upon it by the provisions of Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads as follows: 

 

“A general release does not extend to claims that the creditor or releasing 
party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of 
executing the release and that, if known by him or her, would have 
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released 
party.” 

 

7. Indemnity. Licensee hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold Owner and its trustees, 
officers, directors, faculty, employees, staff, students, lessees, tenants, occupants, consultants, agents, 
successors, and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, liens, demands, losses, damages, 
liabilities, fines, penalties, charges, administrative and judicial proceedings and orders, judgments, and all 
costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith (including, without limitation, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, reasonable costs of defense, and reasonable costs and expenses of all experts and 
consultants) (generally, “Damages”), arising directly, in whole or in part, out of Licensee’s Investigation, 
including, but not limited to: (a) any injury to persons or property (including injury to Licensee’s 
Representatives) arising or resulting from the Investigation; (b) any damage to the Property resulting 
from the Investigation, or from the entry of Licensee’s Representatives onto the Property; (c) any liens 
filed against the Property in connection with the Investigation; and (d) any exacerbation of the Pre-
Existing Condition due to the negligence or willful misconduct of Licensee and/or Licensee’s 
Representatives; provided that Licensee’s indemnity hereunder shall not include any Damages resulting 
from the mere discovery of any Pre-Existing Condition, except to the extent, and only to the extent, 
such Pre- Existing Condition is exacerbated by any negligence or willful misconduct of Licensee or 
a Licensee’s Representative. For the purposes of this Agreement, “exacerbation” means any direct, 
material adverse impact on a Pre-Existing Condition. Exacerbation includes, without limitation, actions 
which speed, redirect or enhance the migration of groundwater contamination at the Property in a 
fashion that causes a material adverse impact (for example, by causing hazardous substances to migrate 
to deeper aquifers), actions which cause damage to or limit the effectiveness of any existing remediation 
systems or equipment, and actions which give rise to liability under applicable environmental laws. 

 

8. Survival. Licensee’s obligations under this Agreement shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement. 

 

6 

 



48 
 

147284715.9 

 

9. Attorneys’ Fees. If either Party reasonably engages legal counsel with respect to a dispute 
regarding the proper interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement, the Party receiving substantially the 
result such Party sought or defended in any legal action or other proceeding (the “Prevailing Party”), 
whether by award, judgment, stipulation, settlement, workout, or otherwise and whether or not any 
such legal action or other proceeding may have been voluntarily dismissed, shall be entitled to 
recover from the adverse Party all reasonable fees and costs actually incurred by the Prevailing Party 
in connection with such legal services (“Legal Fees”). Legal Fees include, without limitation, (a) fees, costs, 
and expenses of any attorneys, paralegals, engineers, accountants, appraisers, consultants, brokers, and 
other professionals or experts retained or consulted by the Prevailing Party, and other costs and 
expenses of investigation or analysis incurred by the Prevailing Party, in support of the Prevailing Party’s 
position, and (b) all such fees, costs, and expenses incurred in any aspect of the legal process, whether 
out-of- court negotiations, mediation, arbitration, commencement of suit, discovery, law and motion, trial, 
appellate proceedings, or any action or participation in, or in connection with, any case or 
proceeding under Chapter 7, 11, or 13 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq., or any 
successor statutes. 

 

10. Waiver or Amendment. No amendment of or waiver of any obligation under this 
Agreement will be enforceable unless set forth in writing signed by the Party against which 
enforcement is sought. 

 

11. Notices. All notices, demands, approvals, and other communications provided for in this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective (a) upon receipt when personally delivered to 
the recipient’s address set forth below; (b) when received by United States mail, postage prepaid, by 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the recipient as set forth below, 
or when such receipt is rejected; (c) one (1) business day after deposit with a recognized overnight courier 
or delivery service; or (d) when received by electronic mail; provided that the Party delivering notice 
electronically concurrently delivers the same notice by one of the methods set forth in clauses (a), (b) or 
(c) above. 

 

The addresses for notice are: 

 
To Licensee: San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 

2100 Geng Road, Suite 210 
Palo Alto, CA 94303 
Attn: Margaret Bruce, Executive 
Email: mbruce@sfcjpa.org 

with copy to: Kevin Murray (kmurray@sfcjpa.org) 
Tess Byler (tbyler@sfcjpa.org) 

mailto:mbruce@sfcjpa.org
mailto:kmurray@sfcjpa.org
mailto:tbyler@sfcjpa.org


49 
 

 
and copy to: Richards Watson Gershon 

One Sansome Street, Suite 2850 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
Attention: Trisha Ortiz 
Email: TOrtiz@rwglaw.com 

 

7 

 

147284715.9 

 

To Owner: Stanford Real Estate Office 
415 Broadway 3rd Floor, Mail Code 8873 
Redwood City, CA 94063 
Attn: Director, Property Services 

with copy to: Ramsey F. Shuayto (rshuayto@stanford.edu) 
Mimi Dunkle (mimiledu@stanford.edu) 
Jean McCown (jmccown@stanford.edu) 
Tom W Zigterman (twz@stanford.edu) 
Lesley Lowe (llowe@stanford.edu) 
Karla Traynor Smith (karlat@stanford.edu) 

and copy to: Perkins Coie LLP 
505 Howard Street Suite 1000 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
Attention: Camarin Madigan 
Email: cmadigan@perkinscoie.com 

 

Either Party may change its address by written notice to the other given in the manner set forth 
above. 

 

12. Injunctive Relief. Licensee agrees that money damages may not be a sufficient remedy 
for Licensee’s breach of this Agreement and that Owner would be entitled to injunctive relief, specific 
performance, and/or other appropriate equitable remedies with respect to any such breach upon a 
showing that money damages would not be a sufficient remedy therefor. These remedies are not the 
exclusive remedy for Licensee’s breach of this Agreement, but are in addition to all other remedies available 
at law or in equity. 

 

13. No Waiver. No failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege granted in this 
Agreement will operate as a waiver thereof, nor will any single or partial exercise preclude any other or 
further exercise of any right, power, or privilege. 

mailto:TOrtiz@rwglaw.com
mailto:karlat@stanford.edu
mailto:cmadigan@perkinscoie.com


50 
 

 

14. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California applicable to agreements made and to be performed entirely 
therein. 

15. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is binding upon, and inures to the benefit of, 
the Parties and their respective successors and assigns. 

 

16. References. Unless otherwise indicated, (a) all section and schedule references are to the 
sections and schedules of this Agreement, and (b) all references to days are to calendar days. All schedules 
attached hereto are incorporated herein by this reference. Whenever under the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement the time for performance of a covenant or condition falls upon a Saturday, Sunday, or 
California state holiday, such time for performance shall be extended to the next business day. The 
headings used in this Agreement are provided for convenience only and this Agreement shall be 
interpreted without reference to any headings. The masculine, feminine or neuter gender and the 
singular or plural number shall be deemed to include the others whenever the context so indicates or 
requires. 

 

8 

 

147284715.9 

 

17. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original, and counterpart signature pages may he assembled to form 
a single original document. Facsimile, documents executed, scanned and transmitted 
electronically and digital signatures shall be deemed original signatures for purposes of this 
Amendment, with such facsimile, scanned and digital signatures having the same legal effect as 
original signatures. Owner and Licensee agree that this Agreement may be accepted, executed 
or agreed to through the use of an digital signature in accordance with the Electronic Signatures 
in Global and National Commerce Act, Title 15, United States Code, Sections 7001 et seq., the 
Uniform Electronic Transaction Act and California Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (Cal. Civ. 
Code §§ 1633.1 to 1633.17), as such laws may be amended from time to time. Any document 
accepted, executed or agreed to in conformity with such laws will be binding on both Owner and 
Licensee the same as if it were physically executed. 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

9 



51 
 

 

147284715.9 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this License Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 

 

OWNER: 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE LELAND 
STANFORD JUNIOR UNIVERSITY 

 
 

 

By:                                                                     Pr           
Name:           Catherine          Palter Print Titl  
Associate Vice President, LUEP            

 
LICENSEE: 

SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY 

 

 
By:                                                                     Pr        
Name:       Margaret       V.       Bruce Print Titl  
Executive Director, SFCJPA                   

 

147284715.9 

 



52 
 

III. EXHIBIT A 

 

A. Description of the Property 

 

Webb Ranch APN 134-291-510 

 

 

Former Boething Plant Nursery APN 074-480-300 



53 
 

 

 

147284715.9 

 

IV. EXHIBIT B 

 

A. Scope of Work 

 

Part 1 Investigation  

 

 

To be conducted within the Part 1 Investigation Areas as designated on Exhibit B-1, or as 
mutually agreed upon by Owner and Licensee. 

 

Prior to Licensee’s entry on to the Property for Part 1, Owner and Licensee shall meet to discuss 
initial thoughts about project description and resources. 

 



54 
 

Part 1 activities will include the following: 

• Initial site reconnaissance, 
• Investigation and due diligence to understand the site characteristics, 
• Gathering of sufficient on-site and document data to evaluate potential detention basin 

locations, and 
• Coordination with Owner to ensure the Tenants will not have their normal activities 

disrupted. 
 

Part 1 shall not include any ground-disturbing activities. 

 

B. Part 2a Investigation 

 

 

To be conducted with the Part 2a Investigation Areas as determined by Owner and Licensee as 
set forth below. 

 

Prior to Licensee’s entry on to the Property for Part 2a, Owner and Licensee shall meet to discuss 
the following: 

• Licensee’s conceptual design concepts, 
• Any additional data/information needs and assess what information may – or may not – 

already exist, 
• How to meet Licensee’s analysis needs and Owner’s needs for land and resource 

protection, 
• Licensee’s proposed scope and schedule for Part 2a (based upon and as a result of its Part 1 

Investigations), and 
• Any details or additional knowledge that Owner can provide or requests from Licensee. 

 

Owner and Licensee shall mutually designate the portion of the Property that Licensee will need 
to access for the Part 2a Investigation (the “Part 2a Investigation Areas”) and shall mutually 
develop a plan to ensure the Tenants will not have their normal activities disrupted. Once the Part 
2a scope and Part 2a Investigation Areas are determined, Owner and License shall plan and 
coordinate communications with the Tenants regarding Part 2a. Licensee acknowledges that 
Owner may need to obtain consent from its Tenants prior to Licensee’s entry on to portions of the 
Property for Part 2a. In the event one or more Tenants raise objection or dispute in connection 
with access or the proposed scope of Part 2a Investigations, Owner and Licensee shall reconvene, 
confer and mutually develop alternatives for Part 2a. 



55 
 

 

147284715.9 

 

Part 2a activities may include the following: 

• On-site investigations to delineate the project APE, and 
• Survey, geotechnical, groundwater, or other investigations pursuant to the Part 2a scope 

reviewed by Owner. 
 

C. Part 2b Investigation 

 

To be conducted within the Part 2b Investigation Areas as determined by Owner and Licensee as 
set forth below. 

 

Prior to Licensee’s entry on to the Property for Part 2b, Owner and Licensee shall meet to discuss 
the following: 

• Licensee’s proposed scope and schedule for Part 2b (based upon and as a result of its Part 2a 
Investigations), 

• Project planning and design for preparation of the Project-Level EIR, 
• Any details or additional knowledge that Owner can provide or requests from Licensee, and 
• How to meet Licensee’s analysis needs and Owner’s needs for land and resource protection as 

implicated by the scope proposed by Licensee and communicated by Owner to Licensee. 
 

Owner and Licensee shall mutually designate the portion of the Property that Licensee will need 
to access for the Part 2b Investigation (the “Part 2b Investigation Areas”) and shall mutually 
develop a plan to ensure the Tenants will not have their normal activities disrupted. Once the Part 
2b scope and Part 2b Investigation Areas are determined, Owner and License shall plan and 
coordinate communications with the Tenants regarding Part 2b. Licensee acknowledges that 
Owner may need to obtain consent from its Tenants prior to Licensee’s entry on to portions of the 
Property for Part 2b. In the event one or more Tenants raise objection or dispute in connection 
with access or the proposed scope of Part 2b Investigations, Owner and Licensee shall reconvene, 
confer and mutually develop alternatives for Part 2b. 

 

Part 2b activities may include the following: 



56 
 

• Once Owner and Licensee mutually confirm land and resource protections are in place, CEQA 
and/or design purposes, pursuant to Part 2b scope reviewed by Owner, and 

• Biological surveys, archaeological research, traffic counts, and other environmental 
investigations pursuant to Part 2b scope reviewed by Owner, as needed to determine the 
potential environmental impacts of the detention basin project alternatives. 

 

147284715.9 



57 
 

 

V. EXHIBIT B-1 

A. Part 1 Investigation Areas 

 

 

 

“Part 1 Investigation Areas” are the areas shown in green and red on the above map, and locations 
along San Francisquito Creek within 350 feet (and up to1,000 feet, if determined necessary in the 
field and acceptable to accompanying Owner field representatives) from the areas shown in green 
and red. 

 

147284715.9 

  



58 
 

 

VI. AMENDMENT TO ACCESS AGREEMENT 

 

This Amendment to Access Agreement (this “Amendment”) dated as of October 28, 2021 
(the “Effective Date”), is entered into by and between THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
LELAND STANFORD JUNIOR UNIVERSITY, a body having corporate powers under the laws of the 
State of California (“Owner”), and SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
(“Licensee”) in the following factual context: 

 

E. Owner and Licensee entered into that certain Access Agreement dated as of October 
29, 2020 (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which Owner granted Licensee a limited license to conduct certain 
investigations at the Property, more particularly described in the Agreement. Capitalized terms used in 
this Amendment that are not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall have the meanings given such 
terms in the Agreement. 

 

F. Owner and Licensee mutually desire to amend the Agreement on the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Amendment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Term. The end of the term of the License and of the Agreement is extended from 
“eighteen (18) months after the Effective Date” to December 31, 2022. 

 

2. Effect of Amendment. Except as expressly modified hereby, the Agreement shall remain 
unmodified and in full force and effect. The parties ratify and affirm the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement, as further amended by this Amendment. To the extent any of the provisions of this 
Amendment are inconsistent with any of the provisions set forth in the Agreement, the provisions of this 
Amendment shall govern and control. 

 

3. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, and counterpart signature pages may be assembled to form a single original 
document. Facsimile, documents executed, scanned and transmitted electronically and digital 
signatures shall be deemed original signatures for purposes of this Amendment, with such facsimile, 
scanned and digital signatures having the same legal effect as original signatures. Owner and Licensee 
agree that this Amendment may be accepted, executed or agreed to through the use of an digital signature 
in accordance with the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, Title 15, United States 
Code, Sections 7001 et seq., the Uniform Electronic Transaction Act and California Uniform Electronic 
Transactions Act (Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1633.1 to 1633.17), as such laws may be amended from time to time. 



59 
 

Any document accepted, executed or agreed to in conformity with such laws will be binding on both 
Owner and Licensee the same as if it were physically executed. 

 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

1 

 

 

154409627.1 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment to Access 
Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 

VII. OWNER:                                                                     LICENSEE: 

 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE LELAND STANFORD JUNIOR UNIVERSITY 

erin efner         
 

SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

By: erin efner (Oct 28, 2021 13:46 PDT)                                                

 

By:                                                                         

 

 

https://secure.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAsUC_nBKESYuwlMML6aA7Qm50CXNhebIY
https://secure.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAsUC_nBKESYuwlMML6aA7Qm50CXNhebIY
https://na1.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAsUC_nBKESYuwlMML6aA7Qm50CXNhebIY


60 
 

Name: Erin Efner                                                        Name: Margaret Bruce Its:    
Associate Vice President, LUEP                       Its:   Executive Director 

 

 

154409627.1 



 

  
 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

 

JPA Access Agreement Extension 
Final Audit Report                                                                                                     2021-10-28 

 

"JPA Access Agreement Extension" History 
Document created by Jasmine Dolar (jdolar@stanford.edu) 

2021-10-28 - 8:36:25 PM GMT- IP address: 67.161.77.228 

 

Document emailed to erin efner (etefner@stanford.edu) for signature 

2021-10-28 - 8:39:18 PM GMT 

 

Email viewed by erin efner (etefner@stanford.edu) 

2021-10-28 - 8:45:53 PM GMT- IP address: 24.130.35.180 

 

Document e-signed by erin efner (etefner@stanford.edu) 

Signature Date: 2021-10-28 - 8:46:46 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 24.130.35.180 

 

Document emailed to Margaret Bruce (mbruce@sfcjpa.org) for signature 

2021-10-28 - 8:46:47 PM GMT 

 

Email viewed by Margaret Bruce (mbruce@sfcjpa.org) 

2021-10-28 - 9:34:40 PM GMT- IP address: 50.216.169.6 

 

Document e-signed by Margaret Bruce (mbruce@sfcjpa.org) 

Signature Date: 2021-10-28 - 9:35:30 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 50.216.169.6 

 

 



 

 2 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

 
 AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  
THE DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY  
AND  
SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY  
FOR THE  
SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK, CA, SECTION 205, FEASIBILITY STUDY  
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this ________ day of ________, ____, by and between the 
Department of the Army (hereinafter the “Government”), represented by the District Commander for 
San Francisco District (hereinafter the “District Commander”) and the San Francisquito Creek Joint 
Powers Authority (hereinafter the “Non-Federal Sponsor”), represented by the Margaret Bruce, 
Executive Director.  
WITNESSETH, THAT:  
WHEREAS, Section 205 of the Flood Control Act of 1948 (P.L. 80-858), as amended, also referred 
to as Section 205 under the Continuing Authorities Program, authorizes the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers to study, design, and construct small flood risk management projects in partnership with 
non-Federal government agencies, such as cities, counties, special authorities, or units of state 
government.  
WHEREAS, Section 105(a) of the Water Resources Development Act of 1986, Public Law 99-662, 
as amended (33 U.S.C. 2215(a)), specifies the cost-sharing requirements;  
WHEREAS, the Government and Non-Federal Sponsor have decided to terminate the study initiated 
under a feasibility cost sharing agreement, executed November 17, 2005, amended, November 12, 
2008, and funded under the Investigations Program, and to execute a new feasibility cost sharing 
agreement and initiate a new Study funded under the Continuing Authorities Program (hereinafter the 
“Agreement”); and  
WHEREAS, the Government and the Non-Federal Sponsor have the full authority and capability to 
perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  
ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS  
A. The term “Study” means the activities and tasks after the effective date of this Agreement that are 
required to identify and evaluate alternatives and the preparation of a decision document that, as 
appropriate, recommends a coordinated and implementable solution for flood risk management at 
San Francisquito Creek, CA.  



 

 3 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

2  
B. The term “shared study costs” means all costs incurred by the Government and Non-Federal 
Sponsor after the effective date of this Agreement that are directly related to performance of the 
Study and cost shared in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The term includes, but is not 
necessarily limited to: the Government’s costs for updating the PMP; for plan formulation and 
evaluation, including costs for economic, engineering, real estate, and environmental analyses; for 
preparation of a floodplain management plan if undertaken as part of the Study; for preparing and 
processing the decision document; for supervision and administration; for Agency Technical Review 
and other review processes required by the Government; and for response to any required 
Independent External Peer Review; and the Non-Federal Sponsor’s creditable costs for in-kind 
contributions, if any. The term does not include any costs for dispute resolution; participation by the 
Government and Non-Federal Sponsor in the Study Coordination Team to discuss significant issues 
and actions; audits; an Independent External Peer Review panel, if required; or negotiating this 
Agreement.  
C. The term “PMP” means the project management plan, and any modifications thereto, developed in 
consultation with the Non-Federal Sponsor, that specifies the scope, cost, and schedule for Study 
activities and tasks, including the Non-Federal Sponsor’s in-kind contributions, and that guides the 
performance of the Study.  
D. The term “in-kind contributions” means those planning activities (including data collection and 
other services) that are integral to the Study and would otherwise have been undertaken by the 
Government for the Study and that are identified in the PMP and performed or provided by the Non-
Federal Sponsor after the effective date of this Agreement and in accordance with the PMP.  
E. The term “maximum Federal study cost” means the $1,500,000 Federal cost limit for the Study 
unless the Government has approved a higher amount.  
F. The term “fiscal year” means one year beginning on October 1st and ending on September 30th of 
the following year.  
ARTICLE II - OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES  
A. In accordance with Federal laws, regulations, and policies, the Government shall conduct the 
Study using funds appropriated by the Congress and funds provided by the Non-Federal Sponsor. In 
carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, the Non-Federal Sponsor shall comply with all the 
requirements of applicable Federal laws and implementing regulations.  
B. The Non-Federal Sponsor shall contribute 50 percent of shared study costs in accordance with the 
provisions of this paragraph and provide required funds in accordance with Article III.  



 

 4 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

3  
1. After considering the estimated amount of credit for in-kind contributions, if any, that will be 
afforded in accordance with paragraph C. of this Article, the Government shall provide the Non-
Federal Sponsor with a written estimate of the amount of funds required from the Non-Federal 
Sponsor to meet its share of shared study costs for the remainder of the initial fiscal year of the 
Study. No later than 15 calendar days after such notification, the Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide 
the full amount of such funds to the Government.  
2. No later than August 1st prior to each subsequent fiscal year of the Study, the Government shall 
provide the Non-Federal Sponsor with a written estimate of the amount of funds required from the 
Non-Federal Sponsor during that fiscal year to meet its cost share. No later than September 1st prior 
to that fiscal year, the Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide the full amount of such required funds to 
the Government.  
C. The Government shall include in shared study costs and credit towards the Non-Federal Sponsor’s 
share of such costs, the costs, documented to the satisfaction of the Government, that the Non-
Federal Sponsor incurs in providing or performing in-kind contributions, including associated 
supervision and administration, after the effective date of this Agreement. Such costs shall be subject 
to audit in accordance with Article VI to determine reasonableness, allocability, and allowability, and 
crediting shall be in accordance with the following procedures, requirements, and limitations:  
1. As in-kind contributions are completed and no later than 60 calendar day after such completion, 
the Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide the Government appropriate documentation, including 
invoices and certification of specific payments to contractors, suppliers, and the Non-Federal 
Sponsor’s employees. Failure to provide such documentation in a timely manner may result in denial 
of credit. The amount of credit afforded for in-kind contributions shall not exceed the Non-Federal 
Sponsor’s share of shared study costs.  
2. No credit shall be afforded for interest charges, or any adjustment to reflect changes in price levels 
between the time the in-kind contributions are completed and credit is afforded; for the value of in-
kind contributions obtained at no cost to the Non-Federal Sponsor; for any items provided or 
performed prior to completion of the PMP; or for costs that exceed the Government’s estimate of the 
cost for such item if it had been performed by the Government.  
D. To the extent practicable and in accordance with Federal laws, regulations, and policies, the 
Government shall afford the Non-Federal Sponsor the opportunity to review and comment on 
solicitations for contracts prior to the Government’s issuance of such solicitations; proposed contract 
modifications, including change orders; and contract claims prior to resolution thereof. Ultimately, 
the contents of solicitations, award of contracts, execution of contract modifications, and resolution 
of contract claims shall be exclusively within the control of the Government.  
E. The Non-Federal Sponsor shall not use Federal program funds to meet any of its obligations under 
this Agreement unless the Federal agency providing the funds verifies in writing that the funds are 
authorized to be used for the Study. Federal program funds are those  



 

 5 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

4  
funds provided by a Federal agency, plus any non-Federal contribution required as a matching share 
therefor.  
F. Except as provided in paragraph C. of this Article, the Non-Federal Sponsor shall not be entitled to 
any credit or reimbursement for costs it incurs in performing its responsibilities under this 
Agreement.  
G. If Independent External Peer Review (IEPR) is required for the Study, the Government shall 
conduct such review in accordance with Federal laws, regulations, and policies. The Government’s 
costs for an IEPR panel shall not be included in shared study costs or the maximum Federal study 
cost.  
H. In addition to the ongoing, regular discussions of the parties in the delivery of the Study, the 
Government and the Non-Federal Sponsor may establish a Study Coordination Team to discuss 
significant issues or actions. The Government’s costs for participation on the Study Coordination 
Team shall not be included in the shared study costs, but shall be included in calculating the 
maximum Federal study cost. The Non-Federal Sponsor’s costs for participation on the Study 
Coordination Team shall not be included in shared study costs and shall be paid solely by the Non-
Federal Sponsor without reimbursement or credit by the Government.  
ARTICLE III - PAYMENT OF FUNDS  
A. As of the effective date of this Agreement, shared study costs are projected to be $1,030,000, with 
the Government’s share of such costs projected to be $515,000 and the Non-Federal Sponsor’s share 
of such costs projected to be $515,000. These amounts are estimates only that are subject to 
adjustment by the Government and are not to be construed as the total financial responsibilities of the 
Government and the Non-Federal Sponsor.  
B. The Government shall provide the Non-Federal Sponsor with monthly reports setting forth the 
estimated shared study costs and the Government’s and Non-Federal Sponsor’s estimated shares of 
such costs; costs incurred by the Government, using both Federal and Non-Federal Sponsor funds, to 
date; the amount of funds provided by the Non-Federal Sponsor to date; the estimated amount of any 
creditable in-kind contributions; and the estimated remaining cost of the Study.  
C. The Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide to the Government required funds by delivering a check 
payable to “FAO, USAED, San Francisco District (L3)” to the District Commander, or verifying to 
the satisfaction of the Government that the Non-Federal Sponsor has deposited such required funds 
in an escrow or other account acceptable to the Government, with interest accruing to the Non-
Federal Sponsor, or by providing an Electronic Funds Transfer of such required funds in accordance 
with procedures established by the Government.  
D. The Government shall draw from the funds provided by the Non-Federal Sponsor to cover the 
non-Federal share of shared study costs as those costs are incurred. If the Government determines at 
any time that additional funds are needed from the Non-Federal Sponsor to cover  



 

 6 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

5  
the Non-Federal Sponsor’s required share of shared study costs, the Government shall provide the 
Non-Federal Sponsor with written notice of the amount of additional funds required. Within 60 
calendar days of such notice, the Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide the Government with the full 
amount of such additional funds.  
E. Upon completion of the Study and resolution of all relevant claims and appeals, the Government 
shall conduct a final accounting and furnish the Non-Federal Sponsor with the written results of such 
final accounting. Should the final accounting determine that additional funds are required from the 
Non-Federal Sponsor, the Non-Federal Sponsor, within 60 calendar days of written notice from the 
Government, shall provide the Government with the full amount of such additional funds. Should the 
final accounting determine that the Non-Federal Sponsor has provided funds in excess of its required 
amount, the Government shall refund the excess amount, subject to the availability of funds. Such 
final accounting does not limit the Non-Federal Sponsor's responsibility to pay its share of shared 
study costs, including contract claims or any other liability that may become known after the final 
accounting.  
ARTICLE IV - TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION  
A. Upon 30 calendar days written notice to the other party, either party may elect at any time, 
without penalty, to suspend or terminate future performance of the Study. Furthermore, unless an 
extension is approved by the Assistant Secretary of the Army (Civil Works), the Study may be 
terminated if an Integrated Feasibility Report is not completed for the Study within 3 years after the 
effective date of this Agreement.  
B. In the event of termination, the parties shall conclude their activities relating to the Study. To 
provide for this eventuality, the Government may reserve a percentage of available funds as a 
contingency to pay the costs of termination, including any costs of resolution of contract claims, and 
resolution of contract modifications.  
C. Any suspension or termination shall not relieve the parties of liability for any obligation incurred. 
Any delinquent payment owed by the Non-Federal Sponsor pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
charged interest at a rate, to be determined by the Secretary of the Treasury, equal to 150 per centum 
of the average bond equivalent rate of the 13 week Treasury bills auctioned immediately prior to the 
date on which such payment became delinquent, or auctioned immediately prior to the beginning of 
each additional 3 month period if the period of delinquency exceeds 3 months.  
ARTICLE V - DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
As a condition precedent to a party bringing any suit for breach of this Agreement, that party must 
first notify the other party in writing of the nature of the purported breach and seek in good faith to 
resolve the dispute through negotiation. If the parties cannot resolve the dispute through negotiation, 
they may agree to a mutually acceptable method of non-binding alternative dispute resolution with a 
qualified third party acceptable to the parties. Each party shall pay an  



 

 7 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

6  
equal share of any costs for the services provided by such a third party as such costs are incurred. 
The existence of a dispute shall not excuse the parties from performance pursuant to this Agreement.  
ARTICLE VI - MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS AND AUDIT  
A. The parties shall develop procedures for the maintenance by the Non-Federal Sponsor of books, 
records, documents, or other evidence pertaining to costs and expenses for a minimum of three years 
after the final accounting. The Non-Federal Sponsor shall assure that such materials are reasonably 
available for examination, audit, or reproduction by the Government.  
B. The Government may conduct, or arrange for the conduct of, audits of the Study. Government 
audits shall be conducted in accordance with applicable Government cost principles and regulations. 
The Government’s costs of audits for the Study shall not be included in shared study costs, but shall 
be included in calculating the maximum Federal study cost.  
C. To the extent permitted under applicable Federal laws and regulations, the Government shall 
allow the Non-Federal Sponsor to inspect books, records, documents, or other evidence pertaining to 
costs and expenses maintained by the Government, or at the request of the Non-Federal Sponsor, 
provide to the Non-Federal Sponsor or independent auditors any such information necessary to 
enable an audit of the Non-Federal Sponsor’s activities under this Agreement. The costs of non-
Federal audits shall be paid solely by the Non-Federal Sponsor without reimbursement or credit by 
the Government.  
ARTICLE VII - RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES  
In the exercise of their respective rights and obligations under this Agreement, the Government and 
the Non-Federal Sponsor each act in an independent capacity, and neither is to be considered the 
officer, agent, or employee of the other. Neither party shall provide, without the consent of the other 
party, any contractor with a release that waives or purports to waive any rights a party may have to 
seek relief or redress against that contractor.  
ARTICLE VIII - NOTICES  
A. Any notice, request, demand, or other communication required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be deemed to have been duly given if in writing and delivered personally or mailed 
by certified mail, with return receipt, as follows:  
If to the Non-Federal Sponsor:  
Margaret Bruce  
Executive Director  
San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority  
2100 Geng Road, Suite 210  
Palo Alto, CA 94303  



 

 8 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

7  
If to the Government:  
Lieutenant Colonel John D. Cunningham  
District Commander and Engineer  
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, San Francisco District  
450 Golden Gate Avenue  
San Francisco, CA  
B. A party may change the recipient or address for such communications by giving written notice to 
the other party in the manner provided in this Article.  
ARTICLE IX - CONFIDENTIALITY  
To the extent permitted by the laws governing each party, the parties agree to maintain the 
confidentiality of exchanged information when requested to do so by the providing party.  
ARTICLE X - THIRD PARTY RIGHTS, BENEFITS, OR LIABILITIES  
Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor may be construed, to create any rights, confer any 
benefits, or relieve any liability, of any kind whatsoever in any third person not a party to this 
Agreement.  
ARTICLE XI - OBLIGATIONS OF FUTURE APPROPRIATIONS  
The Non-Federal Sponsor intends to fulfill fully its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing herein 
shall constitute, nor be deemed to constitute, an obligation of future appropriations by the San 
Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority Board of Directors, where creating such an obligation 
would be inconsistent with Section 18 of Article XVI of the California Constitution. If the Non-
Federal Sponsor is unable to, or does not, fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, the 
Government may exercise any legal rights it has to protect the Government’s interests.  



 

 9 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

8  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, which shall become 
effective upon the date it is signed by the District Commander.  
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY  
BY: __________________________  
John D. Cunningham  
Lieutenant Colonel, U.S. Army District Commander  
DATE: ________________________  
SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK  
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY  
BY: __________________________  
Margaret Bruce  
Executive Director  
DATE: _____________________  
 
  



 

 10 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

AMONG THE CITY OF MENLO PARK, SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, PACIFIC 
GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, AND META PLATFORMS, INC. IN CONNECTION WITH THE MENLO PARK 

PORTION OF THE SAFER BAY PROJECT  

 

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (this MOU or Agreement) is dated for convenience 
____________, 2021, to be effective as of the Effective Date (defined below), among the CITY OF 
MENLO PARK, a municipal corporation (Menlo Park or City), the SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT 
POWERS AUTHORITY, an entity comprised of the cities of East Palo Alto, Palo Alto, and Menlo Park, the 
San Mateo County Flooding and Sea Level Resiliency District and the Santa Clara Valley Water District for 
the purpose of exercising special powers to lead projects that mitigate the risk of flooding along the San 
Francisquito Creek and the Bay (SFCJPA or JPA), PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a California 
corporation (PG&E) and META PLATFORMS, INC., a Delaware corporation (Meta) formerly known as 
Facebook, Inc., individually referred to as a Party and collectively referred to as the Parties and is for the 
purpose of collaborating on the Menlo Park portion of the SAFER Bay Project. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS: The SFCJPA has released two Public Draft Feasibility Reports (Feasibility Studies) 
for a Strategy to Advance Flood protection, Ecosystems and Recreation along San 
Francisco Bay, referred to as the SAFER Bay Project; an October 2016 Feasibility 
Study with respect to portions of the SAFER Bay Project in East Palo Alto and 
Menlo Park; and a June 2019 Feasibility Study with respect to portions of the 
SAFER Bay Project in Palo Alto; and 

 
WHEREAS: The Menlo Park portion of the SAFER Bay Project is a portion of the overall SAFER 

Bay Project in Menlo Park comprised of 3.7 miles of engineered levees and 
floodwalls that would protect segments of California State Route 84 and PG&E’s 
Ravenswood Substation, which are anchors for power service and transportation 
to the area, and would include construction of new levees surrounding the Meta 
classic campus (formerly referred to as the east campus) (Classic Campus), along 
an alignment known as SAFER Bay Reach 4 and along Bayfront Expressway 
(Reaches 2 and 3) as depicted in the Vicinity Map attached as part of Exhibit A. 
The Menlo Park portion of the SAFER Bay Project will also increase recreational 
access to the Bay shoreline; and, by leveraging nature-based design, enable 
habitat restoration work in sections of the Don Edward San Francisco Bay National 
Wildlife Refuge; and 

 
WHEREAS: The Parties acknowledge and agree that an overall San Francisco Bay flood control 

and sea level rise resiliency project is critical to the long term viability of the 
Parties’ and the region’s operations and facilities.  For example, the networked 
infrastructure located within and serving residents of the City, which contains 
roads and highways, electric substations, and wastewater treatment plants that 



 

 11 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

are essential to day-to-day community and economic functions and a complex grid 
of services means that sea level rise could adversely affect regional businesses and 
residents. Thus, a flooded highway, wastewater treatment plant or electrical 
substation could temporarily shut-down businesses, close roads and lead to many 
community wide disruptions; and 

 
WHEREAS: The goals of the Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project include protection of the PG&E 

Ravenswood Substation, a critical power supply for over 300,000 people, as well 
as the construction of flood control elements designed to provide a 100-year level 
of coastal flood protection and 3.5 feet of sea level rise adaptation; and 

 
WHEREAS: In planning the SAFER Bay Project, the Parties recognize the importance of both 

“mitigation” and “adaptation” as strategies to reduce overall vulnerability to the 
adverse effects of flooding and sea-level rise; and 

 
WHEREAS: In September 2020, PG&E expressed a desire to plan, design, and construct a flood 

control and sea level rise resiliency project around PG&E’s Ravenswood electrical 
substation located adjacent to 2005 Willow Road in Menlo Park, corresponding to 
a portion of Reach 5 identified in the SFCJPA’s SAFER Bay Project Feasibility 
Studies; and 

 
WHEREAS: Menlo Park agreed to assume the role of applicant for the purpose of submitting 

an application for the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) fiscal year 
2020 Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant opportunity 
on behalf of a project for a portion of the overall SAFER BAY Project within Menlo 
Park (Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project or Project); and 

 
WHEREAS: PG&E offered to contribute $10 million to meet the grant program’s 25% 

minimum local match funding requirement and for flood control and sea level rise 
resiliency facilities around its Ravenswood electrical substation; and 

 
WHEREAS: The SFCJPA, being familiar with the proposed project scope of work due to 

developing the SAFER Bay Project Feasibility Study, agreed to become a project 
partner; and 

 
WHEREAS: Meta offered to contribute an additional $7.808 million of local match funding to 

expand the proposed Project scope of work to include measures regarding its 
approximately 56.9 acre “Classic Campus” (including Buildings 10-19) located at 1 
Hacker Way in Menlo Park; and 

 
WHEREAS: The proposed Project scope of work was expanded to include a portion of Reach 

2, a portion of Reach 5 and all of Reaches 3 and 4, all as described in the Feasibility 
Studies; and 

 



 

 12 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

WHEREAS: The Parties worked collaboratively to develop a complete Project grant 
application for submittal to FEMA; and 

 
WHEREAS: On the basis of PG&E and Meta’s assurances of their support for the Project, 

Menlo Park confirmed in the BRIC grant application that it has secured the grant 
program’s 25% minimum local match funding requirement; and 

 
WHEREAS: On January 29, 2021, the Parties received notification that the Menlo Park SAFER 

Bay Project application was accepted by FEMA for review and funding 
consideration; and 

 
WHEREAS: On July 2, 2021, the Parties received notification that the Menlo Park SAFER Bay 

Project application was selected by FEMA for further review; and 
 
WHEREAS: In anticipation of FEMA awarding Menlo Park $50 Million in BRIC grant funding for 

the Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project and subject to such award, the Parties wish to 
enter into this MOU to establish a framework for funding, planning, permitting, 
designing, constructing, and operating and maintaining the Project. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Definitions. 

Capitalized terms not defined elsewhere in this MOU shall have the following meanings: 

AHJ’s means all federal, state, regional and local authorities having jurisdiction. 

Applicable Laws mean all applicable federal, state, regional and local statutes, ordinances, laws, 
rules, regulations, orders and other laws, including without limitation all BRIC grant and AHJ 
requirements. 

City is defined in the Preamble. 

Contractor means any contractor, designer, consultant, supplier, vendor, manufacturer, or other 
third party hired by any of the Parties to perform any of the services or work in connection with 
the Project which is paid for, in whole or in part, with any Project funds. 

Council means the City’s City Council. 

Effective Date is defined in Section 3. 

Meta is defined in the Preamble. 

O&M means long-term operations and maintenance of the completed Project. 

Phase is a Project phase more particularly described in Section 5. 

PG&E is defined in the Preamble. 



 

 13 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

Project EIR is defined in Section 8. 

Programmatic EIR is defined in Section 8. 

2. Purpose of MOU.  This MOU establishes a framework for funding, planning, permitting, 
designing, constructing, and operating and maintaining the Project, and establishes 
certain contractual obligations concerning, inter alia, commitment to pay promised local 
matching funds between and among the Parties in connection with the Project. 

3. Effectiveness.  This MOU is effective (Effective Date) immediately upon mutual 
execution by all Parties.  The obligations of this MOU (with the exception of this 
Effectiveness provision) do not become legally enforceable until the date Menlo Park 
receives assurance adequate to the City Council or its designee and the Parties that an 
adequate level of FEMA grant funding, currently anticipated to be $50 million, has been 
committed to this Project (“Assurance”).  If by October 1, 2024, such Assurance has not 
been received, then at any time thereafter and prior to transmittal of such Assurance, any 
Party may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the other Parties. 

4. General Role of Each Party.   As more specifically described in this MOU, the general 
roles and responsibilities of each Party for the Project are as follows: 

(a) Menlo Park.  

(i) “Applicant” under the BRIC grant. 

(ii) “Lead Agency” for the Project EIR. 

(iii) “Lead” for certain property rights acquisition. 

(iv) “Lead” for Project design and construction, including being the “Owner” 
(i.e., holder) of the Project consulting, design, and construction contracts. 

(v) Subject to Section 12, responsibility for long-term Project O&M. 

(b) SFCJPA. 

(i) Provide technical support to Menlo Park under the BRIC application. 

(ii) “Lead Agency” for the Programmatic EIR. 

(iii) “Lead” for certain property rights acquisition. 

(c) PG&E. 

(i) Funding supporter of $10,000,000 when, as, and subject to applicable 
conditions in this MOU. 

(ii) Provider of review, comment, input and suggestions (as applicable) to 
whatever other aspects of the Project around the Ravenswood substation 
it chooses. 



 

 14 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

(iii) Contributor (without additional cost to the Project and subject to California 
Public Utilities Commission approval pursuant to a Public Utilities Code 
Section 851 process,) of all mutually agreed upon, reasonably required and 
operationally feasible rights to Ravenswood electrical substation lands 
required for the Project facilities to be constructed, operated and 
maintained on Ravenswood substation land, so long as the easements and 
rights of access do not adversely impact PG&E’s operations, in PG&E’s 
reasonable discretion.  Land rights are currently anticipated to be mutually 
agreed upon easements or rights of entry and/or access for levees – 
contingent / predicated upon environmental review / preliminary designs.  
This clause presumes the existing levee will remain in relatively the same 
position to protect the Ravenswood electrical substation and enable 
restoration.  However, ecotone and t-zone area may be moved off of PG&E 
property at the discretion of Saltpond Project Management Team and 
Refuge, so long as this new location protects the Ravenswood Substation. 

(iv) Following Project completion (i.e., during the O&M phase), having the 
same rights and responsibilities of any other private landowner within the 
Project area, e,.g., in the event a special assessment district is formed, 
PG&E will be treated in the same manner as other property owners within 
the special assessment district. 

(v) The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this 
MOU by PG&E as long as the Project proceeds, except that the obligations 
of this subsection will not survive if this Agreement is terminated pursuant 
to Section 3. 

(d) Meta. 

(i) Funding supporter of $7,808,000 when, as, and subject to applicable 
conditions in this MOU. 

(ii) Provider of review, comment, input and suggestions (as applicable) to 
whatever other aspects of the Project it chooses.  Meta will not, however, 
have any obligation to provide any review, comment, input or suggestions. 

(iii) Contributor (without additional cost to the Project) of incidental easements, 
licenses, and/or rights of access over the Classic Campus that are 
reasonably required for the Project facilities to be constructed, operated 
and maintained, so long as the easements, licenses, and/or rights of 
access do not adversely impact Meta’s operations, in Meta’s reasonable 
discretion. 

(iv) Following Project completion (i.e., during the O&M phase), having the 
same rights and responsibilities of any other private landowner within the 
Project area, e.g., in the event a special assessment district is formed, Meta 
will be treated in the same manner as other property owners within the 
special assessment district. 

(v) The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this 
MOU by Meta, as long as the Project proceeds, except that the obligations 



 

 15 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

of this subsection will not survive if this Agreement is terminated pursuant 
to Section 3. 

(e) There remain subjects that the Parties may require further refinement as to their 
respective responsibilities, as provided in more detail in Section 7 below. 

(f) Nothing in this MOU or the Project will alter or modify any pre-existing obligations 
of: 

(i) PG&E to maintain the flood gate/wall in front of its Ravenswood electrical 
substation; and 

(ii) Meta for infrastructure on its Classic Campus under its pre-existing 
conditional development permit with Menlo Park; provided, however, that if 
the existing levees protecting Classic Campus are made obsolete by the 
Project, then the City agrees to cooperate with Meta to remove its 
obligation under the conditional development permit for the Classic 
Campus to maintain the existing levees. 

In the event of any conflict between any provision of this Section 4 and any other provision of 
this MOU, the provisions of this Section 4 will control. 

5. Project Description and Phases. 

(a) The current Project description is attached as Exhibit A.  Exhibit A will be revised 
from time to time as provided in this MOU.  The Project may not be revised in a 
manner that adversely impacts Meta’s property without Meta’s prior written 
approval or in a manner that adversely impacts PG&E’s property without PG&E’s 
prior written approval. 

(b) For planning and budgeting purposes, the Project is expected to proceed in the 
following general Phases.  Phases may run concurrently: 

(i) Phase 1. Includes generally: 

(1) CEQA/NEPA. 

(2) Permitting. 

(3) Project budgeting. 

(4) Seeking additional funding sources. 

(5) Pre-design and preliminary design. 

(6) Initial property rights acquisition. 

(7) Initial development of mitigation and monitoring plan. 

(8) Initial development of O&M-related matters. 



 

 16 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

(ii) Phase 2.  Includes generally: 

(1) Final property rights acquisition. 

(2) Final design. 

(3) Procurement and construction. 

(4) Construction phase mitigation and monitoring activities. 

(5) Final development of O&M-related matters. 

(iii) Phase 3.  Includes generally: 

(1) O&M. 

(2) Post-construction mitigation and monitoring activities. 

6. Funding, Budgeting and Cash Flow. 

(a) Concurrently with its approval of this MOU, the Council has adopted a Resolution 
accepting the BRIC grant funding. 

(b) The current Project funding sources and uses and timeline are attached hereto as 
Exhibit B and Exhibit C, respectively.  The Parties will update Exhibit B and 
Exhibit C in a mutually agreed upon manner as further information becomes 
available. 

(c) The current Project Cash Flow Projections are attached hereto as Exhibit D.  The 
Parties will update Exhibit D in a mutually agreed upon manner as further 
information becomes available. 

(d) PG&E and Meta will contribute their agreed $10,000,000 and $7,808,000, 
respectively, when and as required by the agreed Exhibit B and Exhibit C.  PG&E 
and Meta will contribute 20% of their agreed contributions within thirty days of the 
date Assurance is received, then make pro rata contributions with the City 
throughout the design phase of the Project, then make the balance of their 
respective agreed contributions upon the commencement of Project construction.  
The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this MOU by 
PG&E or Meta, as long as the Project proceeds. 

(e) The City and SFCJPA or other public partners will be responsible for seeking any 
and all grant funding and other funding sources to be used for the Project.  Meta 
and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and provide non-monetary support for 
such efforts.   

(f) Parties to align on engagement and outreach for this portion and future portions of 
the overall SAFER Bay Project. 

(g) The Parties acknowledge and agree that PG&E and Meta are not responsible for 
providing funding above the agreed respective $10,000,000 and $7,808,000 
amounts. 



 

 17 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

(h) If final Project costs are less than the amounts raised, the Parties will discuss uses 
of remaining funds for O&M and other costs. 

7. Subsequent Agreements.  As the Project progresses, the Parties anticipate developing 
further memoranda of understanding or agreements between some or all of them, 
including: 

(a) Permitting including potential timing and coordination between Programmatic EIR 
and Project EIR (see Section 8); 

(b) Procurement:  In-kind contributions for the Project (such as, for example, surplus 
soil or equipment); 

(c) Real estate acquisition:  Allocation of specific Project property rights acquisition; it 
is presently anticipated that SFCJPA will take the lead on initial outreach, 
communication, collaboration, and stakeholder coordination for property / 
easement / right of entry acquisition and that the City will undertake any eminent 
domain proceedings where necessary;   

(d) Responsibility, oversight and management of design and construction phases; 

(e) Responsibilities for review and approval of Project designs; 

(f) Creation of a special district(s) or other regional solution(s) to perform or pay for 
long-term O&M; 

(g) Ultimate ownership of Project facilities:  Identifying specific owner(s) (public or 
otherwise), e.g., One Shoreline, of actual Project facilities, currently anticipated to 
be City and/or JPA; 

(h) Agreements with other potential Project stakeholders; 

(i) Project Administration; and 

(j) Negotiation cost and design of potential relocation of existing PG&E transmission 
/ distribution facilities (if required by Project).  

Neither Meta nor PG&E will be obligated to participate in or contribute to any of the 
preceding subjects.   

 

8. Environmental Review.  

(a) SFCJPA will serve as the Lead Agency for the CEQA self-mitigating programmatic 
EIR for the entire SAFER Bay Project (Programmatic EIR).  The current timetable 
for the Programmatic EIR is attached as on Exhibit E.  SFCJPA will update 
Exhibit E in a mutually agreed upon manner as further information becomes 
available. 



 

 18 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

(b) Menlo Park will serve as the Lead Agency for the CEQA Project-specific (non-
programmatic) EIR (Project EIR).  The current timetable for the Project EIR is 
attached as Exhibit F.  Menlo Park will update Exhibit F in a mutually agreed upon 
manner as further information becomes available 

9. Project Definition and Contracts. 

(a) The Parties intend that except for specific CEQA/NEPA or other (if any) matters 
for which SFCJPA is the Lead Agency, Menlo Park will hold all third-party contracts 
to accomplish the Phase 1 and Phase 2 portions of the Project.  As for Phase 3, 
the Parties intend that Menlo Park will hold all third-party contracts, except to the 
extent O&M responsibilities can be assumed by a third party.   Contracting 
responsibility includes responsibility for requiring other parties to maintain 
reasonable and appropriate insurance, any to pay prevailing wages if otherwise 
required by Applicable Law.  However, nothing herein will require Menlo Park or 
SFCJPA to enter into any contract unless it has reasonable assurances of 
available funds. 

(b) Subject to Section 6(g), the City and SFCJPA or other public partners will be 
responsible for seeking any and all grant funding and other funding sources to be 
used for the Project in addition to the funds contributed by Meta and PG&E 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and 
provide non-monetary support for such efforts.   

(c) Until final construction completion of the Project and for three years thereafter, City 
and SFCJPA shall maintain in accordance with their standard record retention 
procedures (and require any Contractor to maintain) all such records concerning 
expenditures of Project funds relating to the funding, planning, permitting, 
designing, constructing, and operating and maintaining the Project.  The preceding 
shall include correspondence, internal memoranda, calculations, books and 
accounts, accounting records, and invoices, payrolls, records and all other data 
related to matters covered by this MOU and as may be required by FEMA or its 
designee(s).  Upon the City’s request, Meta and PG&E shall provide evidence of 
payment of the funds they have contributed to the Project pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

10. Project Permits, Entitlements and Approvals. 

(a) Subject to the specifically agreed “lead” and other responsibilities of Menlo Park 
and the SFCJPA (as applicable), the City and SFCJPA will cooperate to obtain 
and/or provide all mutually agreed upon and reasonably required entitlements, 
permits and approvals for the Project and that do not unreasonably interfere with 
operational requirements.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and 
provide non-monetary support for such efforts. 

11. Project Design and Construction. 

(a) The City and SFCJPA will cooperate to obtain approval of all project designs and 
applicable construction requirements.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to 
collaborate and provide non-monetary support for such efforts.  All Project designs 



 

 19 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

for facilities on PG&E or Meta’s properties will be subject to PG&E or Meta’s (as 
applicable) reasonable approval, so long as it is consistent with prior approvals. 

12. Project O&M.   

(a) Concurrently with its approval of this MOU, and consistent with the BRIC grant 
documents, the Council has adopted a Resolution undertaking a commitment to 
provide for the Project’s long term operations and maintenance expenses. 

(b) Menlo Park and SFCJPA will, with input from PG&E and Meta, have responsibility 
for developing a long-term O&M plan in compliance with all applicable laws and 
subject to approval of all AHJ’s, ideally before final design is completed and 
construction contracts are let. 

(c) As for O&M funding, Menlo Park and SFCJPA and other regional stakeholders will 
cooperate to develop other, citywide or regional-based solutions, such as a 
potential assessment district.  PG&E and Meta will be encouraged to provide 
meaningful input in developing the solutions.  PG&E and Meta acknowledge that 
any solution may require them to make Project-related payments in addition to 
those described elsewhere in this MOU.  However, provided that the final regional 
solution does not treat PG&E or Meta differently than any other similarly situated 
private property owner within the Project area, and PG&E and Meta have been 
given a reasonable opportunity to provide meaningful input, PG&E and Meta will 
not assert this MOU as a basis for different treatment than any other similarly 
situated private property owner within the Project area. 

(d) Nothing in this MOU or the Project will alter or modify any pre-existing obligations 
of: 

(i) PG&E to maintain the flood gate/wall adjacent to its Ravenswood electrical 
substation [as required or necessary based on design of project]; and 

(ii) Meta for infrastructure under its pre-existing conditional development 
permit for the Classic Campus (except as set forth in Section 4(f)(ii)). 

13. Term and Termination/Withdrawal. 

(a) This MOU will be effective as of the Effective Date, and will unless terminated 
earlier by the Parties or superseded by other agreements will be effective until five 
years after construction of the Project is completed and accepted. 

(b) PG&E and Meta may withdraw from this MOU (subject to Section 13(c)) upon 120 
days written notice to the other Parties. 

(c) The following obligations will survive expiration or termination of this MOU or 
withdrawal by a party:  (i) PG&E and Meta agreements regarding their $10,000,000 
and $7,808,000 contributions, respectively; and (ii) PG&E and Meta obligations 
under Section 4(c)(iii) and Section 4(d)(iii) respectively. Notwithstanding the 
preceding, if this MOU is terminated pursuant to Section 3 then all of PG&E’s and 
Meta’s obligations will also terminate and PG&E and Meta will not be obligated to 
make any further contributions to the Project. 

Author
Add resolution number at time of approval to ease future tracking.



 

 20 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

14. General Conditions. 

(a) Project Communications and Meetings.  Throughout the Project, the Parties, will 
reasonably communicate with each other in all matters relating to the Project.  The 
Parties will agree on schedule of periodic meetings to apprise the Parties and other 
Project stakeholders regarding overall Project statues, funding, design and 
construction, etc. 

(b) Revisions to Exhibits and Schedules.  All Exhibits and Schedules to this MOU are 
subject to revision and updating from time to time.  The Parties will reasonably 
cooperate in such revisions. 

(c) No Consequential Damages. The Parties hereby agree that, in the event of default, 
any damages awarded or arising under this MOU shall be exclusively limited to 
actual direct damages incurred and which have been demonstrated with 
substantial certainty.  In no instance shall the Parties be entitled to special, 
incidental, indirect, consequential or punitive damages, lost profits or attorney’s 
fees.  By acceptance and execution of this MOU, the Parties hereby agree that the 
only monetary damages contemplated by them as arising from this MOU are actual 
or direct damages.  The Parties specifically agree that damages suffered by Menlo 
Park as a result of PG&E or Meta’s failure to pay their monetary contributions when 
and as required are actual and direct damages. 

15. Representations and Warranties. 

Each Party represents, warrants and covenants to the other parties as follows: 

(a) Authority.  The Party has the legal power and authority to execute and deliver this 
MOU and to perform its obligations under this MOU. 

(b) Due Authorization.  The approval, execution, and delivery of this MOU, and the 
performance by such Party of its obligations under this MOU, have been 
authorized by all requisite actions of the Party. 

(c) Due Execution and Delivery.  The persons executing this MOU on behalf of the 
Party are duly authorized to execute and deliver this MOU on behalf of the Party. 

(d) No Conflict.  The approval, execution, delivery and performance of this MOU does 
not conflict with any other agreement to which the Party is a party and does not 
violate or require any action which has not been taken under any law, statute, rule, 
regulation, ordinance, general plan, tribal law, specific plan or court order or decree 
applicable to the Party. 

16. Miscellaneous.   

(a) Indemnification. Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, Menlo Park and 
SFCJPA agree to fully indemnify, defend, and hold the other Parties (including 
their appointed and elected officials, officers, employees, and agents) harmless 
and free from any damage or liability imposed for injury (as defined by Government 
Code Section 810.8) occurring by reason of the negligent acts or omissions or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying Party, its appointed or elected officials, 



 

 21 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

officers, employees, or agents, under or in connection with any work, authority, or 
jurisdiction delegated to such Party under this MOU.  Neither Menlo Park nor 
SFCJPA, nor any appointed or elected official, officer, employee, or agent thereof, 
shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of the negligent 
acts or omissions or willful misconduct of any other Party, its appointed or elected 
officials, officers, employees, or agents, under or in connection, with any work, 
authority, or jurisdiction delegated to such other Party under this MOU. Menlo Park 
and SFCJPA, while conducting their respective activities set forth above in Section 
4 above shall each procure, carry, and maintain, in full force and effect, at all 
applicable times during the term of this MOU, such insurance and bonds to protect 
the Parties, inclusive of causing each Contractor to indemnify and defend the 
Parties and name the Parties as additional insureds in any contracts entered into 
to effectuate this MOU. 

(b) Further Assurances.  The Parties shall cooperate with each other and execute 
such instruments or documents and take such other actions as may reasonably be 
requested from time to time in order to carry out, evidence or confirm their rights 
or obligations under this MOU.  

(c) Amendments. Any mutually agreed changes, modifications, revisions or 
amendments to this MOU shall be incorporated by written instrument, and effective 
when executed and signed by all Parties. 

(d) Severability. If any provision of this MOU shall be held to be invalid, void, or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining portions 
hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

(e) Applicable Law.  The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this MOU 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts 
executed and wholly performed within that state. The courts of the State of 
California shall have jurisdiction over any action arising out of this MOU, with venue 
in San Mateo County. 

(f) Construction of Agreement.  In the event of a dispute between the Parties as to 
the language of this MOU or any amendment to this MOU or the construction or 
meaning of any term contained in this MOU or any amendment to this MOU, this 
MOU or any amendment to this MOU shall be deemed to have been drafted by the 
Parties in equal parts so that no presumptions or inferences concerning its terms 
or interpretation may be construed against, or in favor of, any Party based on the 
preparation or negotiation of this MOU or any amendment to this MOU. 

(g) Notices.  All notices, demands and other formal communications hereunder shall 
be deemed given if: (a) delivered personally or by courier, (b) sent by overnight 
express delivery, (c) mailed by registered or certified mail (return receipt 
requested), postage prepaid, or (d) sent by email in PDF format (Email 
Notification); provided that (i) notice received after 5:00 p.m. on a business day 
or on a non-business day shall be deemed received on the next business day, and 
(ii) any sender of an Email Notification also delivers the notice by one of the 
methods listed in (a)-(c) (Secondary Notice) (provided that if the recipient of the 
Email Notification responds with an email acknowledgement of receipt (an 
automatic "read receipt" does not constitute acknowledgement), Secondary Notice 



 

 22 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

is not required), to a party at its respective address(es) set forth below (or at such 
other address as shall be specified by the party by like notice given to the other 
party(ies): 

To: 
City of Menlo Park 
Starla Jerome-
Robinson 
City Manager 
City Hall, 2nd Floor 
701 Laurel St 
Menlo Park, CA 
94025 

To: 
San Francisquito 
Creek Joint Powers 
Authority 
Margaret Bruce 
Executive Director 
2100 Geng Road, 
Suite 210 
Palo Alto, CA 94303 

To: 
Pacific Gas and 
Electric Company 
Heather Rock 
Chief of Staff for 
Engineering, 
Planning and 
Strategy  
300 Lakeshore 
Drive 
Oakland, CA 
94612 

To: 
Meta Platforms, Inc. 
Lauren Swezey 
Sustainability & 
Landscape Project 
Lead 
1 Hacker Way 
Menlo Park, CA 
94025 

 

(h) Entirety of Agreement.  This MOU, including Exhibits A through F, represents the 
entire and complete agreement among the Parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and supersedes any prior negotiations, representations and 
agreements, whether written or oral. 

(i) Debt Limitation.  Menlo Park and SFCJPA are subject to laws or policies which 
limit their ability to incur debt in future years. Nothing in this MOU shall constitute 
an obligation of future governing bodies of the Parties to appropriate funds for the 
purpose of this MOU. 

(j) Conflict of Interest.  The Parties shall undertake reasonable efforts to avoid 
conflicts of interest in the performance of this MOU and shall immediately notify 
the other Parties should a conflict of interest arise that would prohibit or impair the 
ability to perform under this MOU. 

(k) Disputes.  The Parties agree that, with regard to all disputes or disagreements 
arising under this MOU that are not resolved informally at the staff level after a 
good faith attempt, the Parties may, at their sole and mutual discretion, agree to 
engage in mediation, and the costs of any such mediation shall be divided equally 
among the Parties involved in the mediation. 

(l) Non-Discrimination.  Each Party shall comply with its own non-discrimination 
policies and practices and laws applicable to it. 

(m) Counterparts.  This MOU may be executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which, when executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original, and all 
of which, taken together, shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. 

(n) Facsimile and Electronic Signatures.  Facsimile or electronic signatures may be 
used in place of original signatures on this MOU.  Each Party intends to be bound 
by the signatures on the facsimile or electronic document, is aware that the other 
Parties will rely on the facsimile or electronic signatures, and hereby waives any 



 

 23 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

defenses to the enforcement of the terms of this MOU based on the use of a 
facsimile or electronic signature. 

(o) Exhibits and Schedules.  The following Exhibits and Schedules are attached and 
incorporated into this MOU: 

(i) Exhibit A: Project Description and Vicinity Map  

(ii) Exhibit B: Project Funding Sources and Uses 

(iii) Exhibit C: Project Timeline 

(iv) Exhibit D: Cash Flow Projections 

(v) Exhibit E: Programmatic EIR Timetable 

(vi) Exhibit F: Project EIR Timetable 

(p) Signatures. In witness whereof, the Parties, through their respective duly-
authorized representatives, have executed this MOU on the days and dates set 
out below, and certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms 
and conditions of this MOU as set forth herein. 

 

[Signature Blocks Follow on Next Page]  



 

 24 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, have 
executed this Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

CITY OF MENLO PARK  
 
 
    
Starla Jerome-Robinson, City Manager Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Judi Herren, City Clerk Date 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Nira Doherty, City Attorney Date 
 
 
 



 

 25 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

SAN FRANCISQUITO CREEK JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
 
    
[Name, Title]  Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
[Name], Agency Clerk Date 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
[Name, Title]  Date 
 
 
 
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

 
 
    
[Name, Title]  Date 
 
 
 
META PLATFORMS, INC. 

 
 
    
[Name, Title]  Date 
 



 

  
 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

 

EXHIBIT A 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project 
Scope of Work 

The proposed Menlo Park SAFER Bay Project involves preparation of environmental documentation, 
permitting, public outreach, field investigation, design, and construction for solutions to tidal and sea-
level rise flooding along an approximately 3.7-mile alignment of the southeast San Francisco Bay 
shoreline near the City of Menlo Park (Attachment 1).  The flood control elements will be designed to 
provide a 100-year level of flood protection in addition to 3.5 feet of sea-level rise adaptation. 

The proposed Project will incorporate nature-based solutions and habitat enhancements.  In total, the 
project will create approximately 31 acres of tidal marsh transition zone on the bayside slopes of 
multiple flood control levees.  By extending the transition zones to elevations that account for 100-year 
storm events, in addition to 3.5 feet for sea level rise adaptation, the proposed project will create long-
term, resilient, high-quality habitat and high tide refuge. The Project also proposes to enhance 
approximately 5 acres of western snowy plover breeding habitat in Pond R3 by placing oyster shells or 
pea gravel to enhance the breeding habitat of endangered bird species. 

A primary focus of the proposed project is flood protection of Pacific Gas and Electric Company’s (PG&E) 
Ravenswood Substation, which is part of critical power supply infrastructure to eight cities and nearly 
300,000 people. The substation is sited at the margin of San Francisco Bay, and is at risk of tidal flooding 
and sea-level rise. When flooded, the substation must be de-energized until flood waters recede, and 
repair and maintenance activities must be completed before re-powering the substation. Hydrologic and 
infrastructure analysis has shown that flooding of the substation would result in an interruption of 
power supply for between 5 and 15 days to the project impact area, negatively impacting many 
community lifelines that are critical for human health and safety and to economic security. 

The Project would be developed in phases. Phase 1 would include procurement of environmental and 
engineering services, public outreach, environmental permitting, and design to the 90% level. Phase 2 
would include final design, procurement for construction management and contracting services, and 
construction activities. 

The proposed Project is a significant portion of the overall SAFER Bay alignment that, when completed, 
will provide the additional benefit of protecting the communities of Menlo Park, East Palo Alto and 
others from tidal and sea level rise flooding. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

  
 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  



 

 
 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROJECT FUNDING SOURCES AND USES 
 

 

VIII.  
 
 
 



 

 
 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT C 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT D 
 

CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 
 
OAK #4877-8378-4193 v2 
08241-0003  

EXHIBIT E 
 

PROGRAMMATIC EIR TIMETABLE 
 

(Provided by SFCJPA) 
 
 

TASK ANTICIPATED DATE 

Notice of Preparation (NOP) Publication Dec ’21 

NOP Public Comment Period Dec ’21 – Jan ‘22 

Project Description Mar ’22 – Jun ‘22 

Administrative Draft EIR Jun ’22 – Jan ‘23 

Publish Draft EIR Feb ’23 

Final EIR Certified Aug ’23 

 
*These dates are subject to change as the project evolves 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 92 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

PROJECT EIR TIMETABLE 
 

(Provided by City of Menlo Park) 
 

 
TASK ANTICIPATED DATE 

Project Description Dec ’21 – Feb. ‘22 

Notice of Preparation / Scoping Feb ’22 – May ‘22 

Draft EIR May ’22 – Feb ‘23 

Final EIR Oct ’22 – Feb ‘23 

Notice of Determination Feb ’23 – Mar ‘23 

 

*These dates are subject to change as the project evolves 

 
 



 
 

Draft 2022 Board Meeting Schedule 
 

Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
Meetings are held monthly on Thursdays, beginning at 3:30 p.m. 

 
 

 
 
 
January 27, 2022     February 24, 2022 
 
 
March 24, 2022     April 28, 2022 
 
 
May 26, 2022      June 23, 2022 
 
 
July 28, 2022   August 25, 2022 

(Board recess. No meeting) 
 
 
September 22, 2022     October 27, 2022 
 
 
November 17, 2022     December 15, 2022 

 


	1_Nov 18, 2021 SFCJPA Board Meeting Agenda_final
	2_SFCJPA Nov 16 2821 Board Meeting Slides_final
	SFCJPA Regular�Board Meeting
	Agenda	��*Members of the Public may speak on any agenda item for up to three minutes*��1. ROLL CALL��2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Changes or additions to the agenda.��3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: October 20, 2021, Regular Board meeting.��4. PUBLIC COMMENT: Individuals may speak on a non-agendized topic for up to three minutes on a topic within the SFCJPA’s jurisdiction.
	� ������
	� ������
	Reach 1 – �Downstream Project���Working to finalize O&M Manual��Monitoring and Reporting contract in place for remainder of 10-year reporting period��Continue to make progress on interpretive, commemorative, and legacy signage.����������
	Reach 2 – Upstream Project��LEDPA submittal planned for late November.  Consideration of replacing existing structures could push date back��Comments on the October 25 USACE CAP 205 NEPA Scoping Meeting due November 30.�
	Reach 3 - Evaluating detention basins ��Conceptual design is anticipated  in December.��A Feasibility Technical Memorandum anticipated by end of the calendar year.�������
	� ������
	Agenda Item 6 – Information Items��6.B. Reach 2 Funding Gap Analysis�Regular Update	��~ Total Construction Cost Estimate: $50,465,900 �~ Total identified funding: $43,803,176��Significant uncertainties remain:�~ Potential additional costs �~ Confirmation and timing of $$ �~ Potential new/additional funding�����
	Agenda Item 6 – Information Items��6.C. Mid-year Operations Budget status review ����
	Budget Status Highlights
	� �Agenda Item 7.A.��Menlo Park FEMA BRIC grant Memorandum of Understanding�� ~ Discussion and comment����
	� �Agenda Item 7.A.��Board Handbook�First Edition����
	� �Agenda Item 7.B.��Review and consider acceptance of Annual Board Calendar for calendar year 2022.���
	Draft 2022 Board Meeting Schedule
	�������������
	�������

	3_Agenda Item 3_October 28, 2021 Draft SFCJPA Regular Meeting Minutes
	4_Agenda Item 5.A. Resolution AB 361 Periodic Findings
	5_Agenda Item 5.B. COVID19 Policy_1pg-Final 
	6_SFCJPA Covid 19 prevention program
	COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) for the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority
	Authority and Responsibility
	Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards
	Correction of COVID-19 Hazards
	Control of COVID-19 Hazards
	Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases
	System for Communicating
	Training and Instruction
	Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees who had a Close Contact
	Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access
	Return-to-Work Criteria

	Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards
	Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections
	Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases
	Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster
	COVID-19 Prevention Polices


	7_Agenda Item 6.A October ED Report_Final
	8_Agenda Item 6.B Reach 2 Cost and Funding Scenarios Update_final
	9_Agenda Item 6.C. budget report_final1pg 
	10_FY20212022 approved budget & actuals_Final
	FY21-22 BudgetvsActual-110921 

	11_Agenda Item 7.A. SAFER Bay BRIC MOU 1pg_draft
	12_Agenda Item 7A SAFER BRIC draft MOU
	1. Definitions.
	2. Purpose of MOU.  This MOU establishes a framework for funding, planning, permitting, designing, constructing, and operating and maintaining the Project, and establishes certain contractual obligations concerning, inter alia, commitment to pay promi...
	3. Effectiveness.  This MOU is effective (Effective Date) immediately upon mutual execution by all Parties.  The obligations of this MOU (with the exception of this Effectiveness provision) do not become legally enforceable until the date Menlo Park r...
	4. General Role of Each Party.   As more specifically described in this MOU, the general roles and responsibilities of each Party for the Project are as follows:
	(a) Menlo Park.
	(i) “Applicant” under the BRIC grant.
	(ii) “Lead Agency” for the Project EIR.
	(iii) “Lead” for certain property rights acquisition.
	(iv) “Lead” for Project design and construction, including being the “Owner” (i.e., holder) of the Project consulting, design, and construction contracts.
	(v) Subject to Section 12, responsibility for long-term Project O&M.

	(b) SFCJPA.
	(i) Provide technical support to Menlo Park under the BRIC application.
	(ii) “Lead Agency” for the Programmatic EIR.
	(iii) “Lead” for certain property rights acquisition.

	(c) PG&E.
	(i) Funding supporter of $10,000,000 when, as, and subject to applicable conditions in this MOU.
	(ii) Provider of review, comment, input and suggestions (as applicable) to whatever other aspects of the Project around the Ravenswood substation it chooses.
	(iii) Contributor (without additional cost to the Project and subject to California Public Utilities Commission approval pursuant to a Public Utilities Code Section 851 process,) of all mutually agreed upon, reasonably required and operationally feasi...
	(iv) Following Project completion (i.e., during the O&M phase), having the same rights and responsibilities of any other private landowner within the Project area, e,.g., in the event a special assessment district is formed, PG&E will be treated in th...
	(v) The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this MOU by PG&E as long as the Project proceeds, except that the obligations of this subsection will not survive if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 3.

	(d) Meta.
	(i) Funding supporter of $7,808,000 when, as, and subject to applicable conditions in this MOU.
	(ii) Provider of review, comment, input and suggestions (as applicable) to whatever other aspects of the Project it chooses.  Meta will not, however, have any obligation to provide any review, comment, input or suggestions.
	(iii) Contributor (without additional cost to the Project) of incidental easements, licenses, and/or rights of access over the Classic Campus that are reasonably required for the Project facilities to be constructed, operated and maintained, so long a...
	(iv) Following Project completion (i.e., during the O&M phase), having the same rights and responsibilities of any other private landowner within the Project area, e.g., in the event a special assessment district is formed, Meta will be treated in the...
	(v) The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this MOU by Meta, as long as the Project proceeds, except that the obligations of this subsection will not survive if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 3.

	(e) There remain subjects that the Parties may require further refinement as to their respective responsibilities, as provided in more detail in Section 7 below.
	(f) Nothing in this MOU or the Project will alter or modify any pre-existing obligations of:
	(i) PG&E to maintain the flood gate/wall in front of its Ravenswood electrical substation; and
	(ii) Meta for infrastructure on its Classic Campus under its pre-existing conditional development permit with Menlo Park; provided, however, that if the existing levees protecting Classic Campus are made obsolete by the Project, then the City agrees t...


	5. Project Description and Phases.
	(a) The current Project description is attached as Exhibit A.  Exhibit A will be revised from time to time as provided in this MOU.  The Project may not be revised in a manner that adversely impacts Meta’s property without Meta’s prior written approva...
	(b) For planning and budgeting purposes, the Project is expected to proceed in the following general Phases.  Phases may run concurrently:
	(i) Phase 1. Includes generally:
	(1) CEQA/NEPA.
	(2) Permitting.
	(3) Project budgeting.
	(4) Seeking additional funding sources.
	(5) Pre-design and preliminary design.
	(6) Initial property rights acquisition.
	(7) Initial development of mitigation and monitoring plan.
	(8) Initial development of O&M-related matters.

	(ii) Phase 2.  Includes generally:
	(1) Final property rights acquisition.
	(2) Final design.
	(3) Procurement and construction.
	(4) Construction phase mitigation and monitoring activities.
	(5) Final development of O&M-related matters.

	(iii) Phase 3.  Includes generally:
	(1) O&M.
	(2) Post-construction mitigation and monitoring activities.



	6. Funding, Budgeting and Cash Flow.
	(a) Concurrently with its approval of this MOU, the Council has adopted a Resolution accepting the BRIC grant funding.
	(b) The current Project funding sources and uses and timeline are attached hereto as Exhibit B and Exhibit C, respectively.  The Parties will update Exhibit B and Exhibit C in a mutually agreed upon manner as further information becomes available.
	(c) The current Project Cash Flow Projections are attached hereto as Exhibit D.  The Parties will update Exhibit D in a mutually agreed upon manner as further information becomes available.
	(d) PG&E and Meta will contribute their agreed $10,000,000 and $7,808,000, respectively, when and as required by the agreed Exhibit B and Exhibit C.  PG&E and Meta will contribute 20% of their agreed contributions within thirty days of the date Assura...
	(e) The City and SFCJPA or other public partners will be responsible for seeking any and all grant funding and other funding sources to be used for the Project.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and provide non-monetary support for such ...
	(f) Parties to align on engagement and outreach for this portion and future portions of the overall SAFER Bay Project.
	(g) The Parties acknowledge and agree that PG&E and Meta are not responsible for providing funding above the agreed respective $10,000,000 and $7,808,000 amounts.
	(h) If final Project costs are less than the amounts raised, the Parties will discuss uses of remaining funds for O&M and other costs.

	7. Subsequent Agreements.  As the Project progresses, the Parties anticipate developing further memoranda of understanding or agreements between some or all of them, including:
	(a) Permitting including potential timing and coordination between Programmatic EIR and Project EIR (see Section 8);
	(b) Procurement:  In-kind contributions for the Project (such as, for example, surplus soil or equipment);
	(c) Real estate acquisition:  Allocation of specific Project property rights acquisition; it is presently anticipated that SFCJPA will take the lead on initial outreach, communication, collaboration, and stakeholder coordination for property / easemen...
	(d) Responsibility, oversight and management of design and construction phases;
	(e) Responsibilities for review and approval of Project designs;
	(f) Creation of a special district(s) or other regional solution(s) to perform or pay for long-term O&M;
	(g) Ultimate ownership of Project facilities:  Identifying specific owner(s) (public or otherwise), e.g., One Shoreline, of actual Project facilities, currently anticipated to be City and/or JPA;
	(h) Agreements with other potential Project stakeholders;
	(i) Project Administration; and
	(j) Negotiation cost and design of potential relocation of existing PG&E transmission / distribution facilities (if required by Project).

	8. Environmental Review.
	(a) SFCJPA will serve as the Lead Agency for the CEQA self-mitigating programmatic EIR for the entire SAFER Bay Project (Programmatic EIR).  The current timetable for the Programmatic EIR is attached as on Exhibit E.  SFCJPA will update Exhibit E in a...
	(b) Menlo Park will serve as the Lead Agency for the CEQA Project-specific (non-programmatic) EIR (Project EIR).  The current timetable for the Project EIR is attached as Exhibit F.  Menlo Park will update Exhibit F in a mutually agreed upon manner as...

	9. Project Definition and Contracts.
	(a) The Parties intend that except for specific CEQA/NEPA or other (if any) matters for which SFCJPA is the Lead Agency, Menlo Park will hold all third-party contracts to accomplish the Phase 1 and Phase 2 portions of the Project.  As for Phase 3, the...
	(b) Subject to Section 6(g), the City and SFCJPA or other public partners will be responsible for seeking any and all grant funding and other funding sources to be used for the Project in addition to the funds contributed by Meta and PG&E pursuant to ...
	(c) Until final construction completion of the Project and for three years thereafter, City and SFCJPA shall maintain in accordance with their standard record retention procedures (and require any Contractor to maintain) all such records concerning ex...

	10. Project Permits, Entitlements and Approvals.
	(a) Subject to the specifically agreed “lead” and other responsibilities of Menlo Park and the SFCJPA (as applicable), the City and SFCJPA will cooperate to obtain and/or provide all mutually agreed upon and reasonably required entitlements, permits a...

	11. Project Design and Construction.
	(a) The City and SFCJPA will cooperate to obtain approval of all project designs and applicable construction requirements.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and provide non-monetary support for such efforts.  All Project designs for faci...

	12. Project O&M.
	(a) Concurrently with its approval of this MOU, and consistent with the BRIC grant documents, the Council has adopted a Resolution  undertaking a commitment to provide for the Project’s long term operations and maintenance expenses.
	(b) Menlo Park and SFCJPA will, with input from PG&E and Meta, have responsibility for developing a long-term O&M plan in compliance with all applicable laws and subject to approval of all AHJ’s, ideally before final design is completed and constructi...
	(c) As for O&M funding, Menlo Park and SFCJPA and other regional stakeholders will cooperate to develop other, citywide or regional-based solutions, such as a potential assessment district.  PG&E and Meta will be encouraged to provide meaningful input...
	(d) Nothing in this MOU or the Project will alter or modify any pre-existing obligations of:
	(i) PG&E to maintain the flood gate/wall adjacent to its Ravenswood electrical substation [as required or necessary based on design of project]; and
	(ii) Meta for infrastructure under its pre-existing conditional development permit for the Classic Campus (except as set forth in Section 4(f)(ii)).


	13. Term and Termination/Withdrawal.
	(a) This MOU will be effective as of the Effective Date, and will unless terminated earlier by the Parties or superseded by other agreements will be effective until five years after construction of the Project is completed and accepted.
	(b) PG&E and Meta may withdraw from this MOU (subject to Section 13(c)) upon 120 days written notice to the other Parties.
	(c) The following obligations will survive expiration or termination of this MOU or withdrawal by a party:  (i) PG&E and Meta agreements regarding their $10,000,000 and $7,808,000 contributions, respectively; and (ii) PG&E and Meta obligations under S...

	14. General Conditions.
	(a) Project Communications and Meetings.  Throughout the Project, the Parties, will reasonably communicate with each other in all matters relating to the Project.  The Parties will agree on schedule of periodic meetings to apprise the Parties and othe...
	(b) Revisions to Exhibits and Schedules.  All Exhibits and Schedules to this MOU are subject to revision and updating from time to time.  The Parties will reasonably cooperate in such revisions.
	(c) No Consequential Damages. The Parties hereby agree that, in the event of default, any damages awarded or arising under this MOU shall be exclusively limited to actual direct damages incurred and which have been demonstrated with substantial certai...

	15. Representations and Warranties.
	(a) Authority.  The Party has the legal power and authority to execute and deliver this MOU and to perform its obligations under this MOU.
	(b) Due Authorization.  The approval, execution, and delivery of this MOU, and the performance by such Party of its obligations under this MOU, have been authorized by all requisite actions of the Party.
	(c) Due Execution and Delivery.  The persons executing this MOU on behalf of the Party are duly authorized to execute and deliver this MOU on behalf of the Party.
	(d) No Conflict.  The approval, execution, delivery and performance of this MOU does not conflict with any other agreement to which the Party is a party and does not violate or require any action which has not been taken under any law, statute, rule, ...

	16. Miscellaneous.
	(a) Indemnification. Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, Menlo Park and SFCJPA agree to fully indemnify, defend, and hold the other Parties (including their appointed and elected officials, officers, employees, and agents) harmless and free fro...
	(b) Further Assurances.  The Parties shall cooperate with each other and execute such instruments or documents and take such other actions as may reasonably be requested from time to time in order to carry out, evidence or confirm their rights or obli...
	(c) Amendments. Any mutually agreed changes, modifications, revisions or amendments to this MOU shall be incorporated by written instrument, and effective when executed and signed by all Parties.
	(d) Severability. If any provision of this MOU shall be held to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
	(e) Applicable Law.  The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts executed and wholly performed within that state. The courts of the State of California s...
	(f) Construction of Agreement.  In the event of a dispute between the Parties as to the language of this MOU or any amendment to this MOU or the construction or meaning of any term contained in this MOU or any amendment to this MOU, this MOU or any am...
	(g) Notices.  All notices, demands and other formal communications hereunder shall be deemed given if: (a) delivered personally or by courier, (b) sent by overnight express delivery, (c) mailed by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested...
	(h) Entirety of Agreement.  This MOU, including Exhibits A through F, represents the entire and complete agreement among the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior negotiations, representations and agreements, wheth...
	(i) Debt Limitation.  Menlo Park and SFCJPA are subject to laws or policies which limit their ability to incur debt in future years. Nothing in this MOU shall constitute an obligation of future governing bodies of the Parties to appropriate funds for ...
	(j) Conflict of Interest.  The Parties shall undertake reasonable efforts to avoid conflicts of interest in the performance of this MOU and shall immediately notify the other Parties should a conflict of interest arise that would prohibit or impair th...
	(k) Disputes.  The Parties agree that, with regard to all disputes or disagreements arising under this MOU that are not resolved informally at the staff level after a good faith attempt, the Parties may, at their sole and mutual discretion, agree to e...
	(l) Non-Discrimination.  Each Party shall comply with its own non-discrimination policies and practices and laws applicable to it.
	(m) Counterparts.  This MOU may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which, taken together, shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.
	(n) Facsimile and Electronic Signatures.  Facsimile or electronic signatures may be used in place of original signatures on this MOU.  Each Party intends to be bound by the signatures on the facsimile or electronic document, is aware that the other Pa...
	(o) Exhibits and Schedules.  The following Exhibits and Schedules are attached and incorporated into this MOU:
	(i) Exhibit A: Project Description and Vicinity Map
	(ii) Exhibit B: Project Funding Sources and Uses
	(iii) Exhibit C: Project Timeline
	(iv) Exhibit D: Cash Flow Projections
	(v) Exhibit E: Programmatic EIR Timetable
	(vi) Exhibit F: Project EIR Timetable

	(p) Signatures. In witness whereof, the Parties, through their respective duly-authorized representatives, have executed this MOU on the days and dates set out below, and certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms and conditions ...


	13_Agenda Item 7.B. Board Handbook 1pg_Final
	14_SFCJPA Board Handbook_Final
	II. ACCESS AGREEMENT
	III. EXHIBIT A
	A. Description of the Property

	IV. EXHIBIT B
	A. Scope of Work
	B. Part 2a Investigation
	C. Part 2b Investigation

	V. EXHIBIT B-1
	A. Part 1 Investigation Areas

	VI. AMENDMENT TO ACCESS AGREEMENT
	VII. OWNER:                                                                     LICENSEE:
	1. Definitions.
	2. Purpose of MOU.  This MOU establishes a framework for funding, planning, permitting, designing, constructing, and operating and maintaining the Project, and establishes certain contractual obligations concerning, inter alia, commitment to pay promi...
	3. Effectiveness.  This MOU is effective (Effective Date) immediately upon mutual execution by all Parties.  The obligations of this MOU (with the exception of this Effectiveness provision) do not become legally enforceable until the date Menlo Park r...
	4. General Role of Each Party.   As more specifically described in this MOU, the general roles and responsibilities of each Party for the Project are as follows:
	(a) Menlo Park.
	(i) “Applicant” under the BRIC grant.
	(ii) “Lead Agency” for the Project EIR.
	(iii) “Lead” for certain property rights acquisition.
	(iv) “Lead” for Project design and construction, including being the “Owner” (i.e., holder) of the Project consulting, design, and construction contracts.
	(v) Subject to Section 12, responsibility for long-term Project O&M.

	(b) SFCJPA.
	(i) Provide technical support to Menlo Park under the BRIC application.
	(ii) “Lead Agency” for the Programmatic EIR.
	(iii) “Lead” for certain property rights acquisition.

	(c) PG&E.
	(i) Funding supporter of $10,000,000 when, as, and subject to applicable conditions in this MOU.
	(ii) Provider of review, comment, input and suggestions (as applicable) to whatever other aspects of the Project around the Ravenswood substation it chooses.
	(iii) Contributor (without additional cost to the Project and subject to California Public Utilities Commission approval pursuant to a Public Utilities Code Section 851 process,) of all mutually agreed upon, reasonably required and operationally feasi...
	(iv) Following Project completion (i.e., during the O&M phase), having the same rights and responsibilities of any other private landowner within the Project area, e,.g., in the event a special assessment district is formed, PG&E will be treated in th...
	(v) The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this MOU by PG&E as long as the Project proceeds, except that the obligations of this subsection will not survive if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 3.

	(d) Meta.
	(i) Funding supporter of $7,808,000 when, as, and subject to applicable conditions in this MOU.
	(ii) Provider of review, comment, input and suggestions (as applicable) to whatever other aspects of the Project it chooses.  Meta will not, however, have any obligation to provide any review, comment, input or suggestions.
	(iii) Contributor (without additional cost to the Project) of incidental easements, licenses, and/or rights of access over the Classic Campus that are reasonably required for the Project facilities to be constructed, operated and maintained, so long a...
	(iv) Following Project completion (i.e., during the O&M phase), having the same rights and responsibilities of any other private landowner within the Project area, e.g., in the event a special assessment district is formed, Meta will be treated in the...
	(v) The obligations of this subsection will survive any withdrawal from this MOU by Meta, as long as the Project proceeds, except that the obligations of this subsection will not survive if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 3.

	(e) There remain subjects that the Parties may require further refinement as to their respective responsibilities, as provided in more detail in Section 7 below.
	(f) Nothing in this MOU or the Project will alter or modify any pre-existing obligations of:
	(i) PG&E to maintain the flood gate/wall in front of its Ravenswood electrical substation; and
	(ii) Meta for infrastructure on its Classic Campus under its pre-existing conditional development permit with Menlo Park; provided, however, that if the existing levees protecting Classic Campus are made obsolete by the Project, then the City agrees t...


	5. Project Description and Phases.
	(a) The current Project description is attached as Exhibit A.  Exhibit A will be revised from time to time as provided in this MOU.  The Project may not be revised in a manner that adversely impacts Meta’s property without Meta’s prior written approva...
	(b) For planning and budgeting purposes, the Project is expected to proceed in the following general Phases.  Phases may run concurrently:
	(i) Phase 1. Includes generally:
	(1) CEQA/NEPA.
	(2) Permitting.
	(3) Project budgeting.
	(4) Seeking additional funding sources.
	(5) Pre-design and preliminary design.
	(6) Initial property rights acquisition.
	(7) Initial development of mitigation and monitoring plan.
	(8) Initial development of O&M-related matters.

	(ii) Phase 2.  Includes generally:
	(1) Final property rights acquisition.
	(2) Final design.
	(3) Procurement and construction.
	(4) Construction phase mitigation and monitoring activities.
	(5) Final development of O&M-related matters.

	(iii) Phase 3.  Includes generally:
	(1) O&M.
	(2) Post-construction mitigation and monitoring activities.



	6. Funding, Budgeting and Cash Flow.
	(a) Concurrently with its approval of this MOU, the Council has adopted a Resolution accepting the BRIC grant funding.
	(b) The current Project funding sources and uses and timeline are attached hereto as Exhibit B and Exhibit C, respectively.  The Parties will update Exhibit B and Exhibit C in a mutually agreed upon manner as further information becomes available.
	(c) The current Project Cash Flow Projections are attached hereto as Exhibit D.  The Parties will update Exhibit D in a mutually agreed upon manner as further information becomes available.
	(d) PG&E and Meta will contribute their agreed $10,000,000 and $7,808,000, respectively, when and as required by the agreed Exhibit B and Exhibit C.  PG&E and Meta will contribute 20% of their agreed contributions within thirty days of the date Assura...
	(e) The City and SFCJPA or other public partners will be responsible for seeking any and all grant funding and other funding sources to be used for the Project.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and provide non-monetary support for such ...
	(f) Parties to align on engagement and outreach for this portion and future portions of the overall SAFER Bay Project.
	(g) The Parties acknowledge and agree that PG&E and Meta are not responsible for providing funding above the agreed respective $10,000,000 and $7,808,000 amounts.
	(h) If final Project costs are less than the amounts raised, the Parties will discuss uses of remaining funds for O&M and other costs.

	7. Subsequent Agreements.  As the Project progresses, the Parties anticipate developing further memoranda of understanding or agreements between some or all of them, including:
	(a) Permitting including potential timing and coordination between Programmatic EIR and Project EIR (see Section 8);
	(b) Procurement:  In-kind contributions for the Project (such as, for example, surplus soil or equipment);
	(c) Real estate acquisition:  Allocation of specific Project property rights acquisition; it is presently anticipated that SFCJPA will take the lead on initial outreach, communication, collaboration, and stakeholder coordination for property / easemen...
	(d) Responsibility, oversight and management of design and construction phases;
	(e) Responsibilities for review and approval of Project designs;
	(f) Creation of a special district(s) or other regional solution(s) to perform or pay for long-term O&M;
	(g) Ultimate ownership of Project facilities:  Identifying specific owner(s) (public or otherwise), e.g., One Shoreline, of actual Project facilities, currently anticipated to be City and/or JPA;
	(h) Agreements with other potential Project stakeholders;
	(i) Project Administration; and
	(j) Negotiation cost and design of potential relocation of existing PG&E transmission / distribution facilities (if required by Project).

	8. Environmental Review.
	(a) SFCJPA will serve as the Lead Agency for the CEQA self-mitigating programmatic EIR for the entire SAFER Bay Project (Programmatic EIR).  The current timetable for the Programmatic EIR is attached as on Exhibit E.  SFCJPA will update Exhibit E in a...
	(b) Menlo Park will serve as the Lead Agency for the CEQA Project-specific (non-programmatic) EIR (Project EIR).  The current timetable for the Project EIR is attached as Exhibit F.  Menlo Park will update Exhibit F in a mutually agreed upon manner as...

	9. Project Definition and Contracts.
	(a) The Parties intend that except for specific CEQA/NEPA or other (if any) matters for which SFCJPA is the Lead Agency, Menlo Park will hold all third-party contracts to accomplish the Phase 1 and Phase 2 portions of the Project.  As for Phase 3, the...
	(b) Subject to Section 6(g), the City and SFCJPA or other public partners will be responsible for seeking any and all grant funding and other funding sources to be used for the Project in addition to the funds contributed by Meta and PG&E pursuant to ...
	(c) Until final construction completion of the Project and for three years thereafter, City and SFCJPA shall maintain in accordance with their standard record retention procedures (and require any Contractor to maintain) all such records concerning ex...

	10. Project Permits, Entitlements and Approvals.
	(a) Subject to the specifically agreed “lead” and other responsibilities of Menlo Park and the SFCJPA (as applicable), the City and SFCJPA will cooperate to obtain and/or provide all mutually agreed upon and reasonably required entitlements, permits a...

	11. Project Design and Construction.
	(a) The City and SFCJPA will cooperate to obtain approval of all project designs and applicable construction requirements.  Meta and PG&E agree to continue to collaborate and provide non-monetary support for such efforts.  All Project designs for faci...

	12. Project O&M.
	(a) Concurrently with its approval of this MOU, and consistent with the BRIC grant documents, the Council has adopted a Resolution  undertaking a commitment to provide for the Project’s long term operations and maintenance expenses.
	(b) Menlo Park and SFCJPA will, with input from PG&E and Meta, have responsibility for developing a long-term O&M plan in compliance with all applicable laws and subject to approval of all AHJ’s, ideally before final design is completed and constructi...
	(c) As for O&M funding, Menlo Park and SFCJPA and other regional stakeholders will cooperate to develop other, citywide or regional-based solutions, such as a potential assessment district.  PG&E and Meta will be encouraged to provide meaningful input...
	(d) Nothing in this MOU or the Project will alter or modify any pre-existing obligations of:
	(i) PG&E to maintain the flood gate/wall adjacent to its Ravenswood electrical substation [as required or necessary based on design of project]; and
	(ii) Meta for infrastructure under its pre-existing conditional development permit for the Classic Campus (except as set forth in Section 4(f)(ii)).


	13. Term and Termination/Withdrawal.
	(a) This MOU will be effective as of the Effective Date, and will unless terminated earlier by the Parties or superseded by other agreements will be effective until five years after construction of the Project is completed and accepted.
	(b) PG&E and Meta may withdraw from this MOU (subject to Section 13(c)) upon 120 days written notice to the other Parties.
	(c) The following obligations will survive expiration or termination of this MOU or withdrawal by a party:  (i) PG&E and Meta agreements regarding their $10,000,000 and $7,808,000 contributions, respectively; and (ii) PG&E and Meta obligations under S...

	14. General Conditions.
	(a) Project Communications and Meetings.  Throughout the Project, the Parties, will reasonably communicate with each other in all matters relating to the Project.  The Parties will agree on schedule of periodic meetings to apprise the Parties and othe...
	(b) Revisions to Exhibits and Schedules.  All Exhibits and Schedules to this MOU are subject to revision and updating from time to time.  The Parties will reasonably cooperate in such revisions.
	(c) No Consequential Damages. The Parties hereby agree that, in the event of default, any damages awarded or arising under this MOU shall be exclusively limited to actual direct damages incurred and which have been demonstrated with substantial certai...

	15. Representations and Warranties.
	(a) Authority.  The Party has the legal power and authority to execute and deliver this MOU and to perform its obligations under this MOU.
	(b) Due Authorization.  The approval, execution, and delivery of this MOU, and the performance by such Party of its obligations under this MOU, have been authorized by all requisite actions of the Party.
	(c) Due Execution and Delivery.  The persons executing this MOU on behalf of the Party are duly authorized to execute and deliver this MOU on behalf of the Party.
	(d) No Conflict.  The approval, execution, delivery and performance of this MOU does not conflict with any other agreement to which the Party is a party and does not violate or require any action which has not been taken under any law, statute, rule, ...

	16. Miscellaneous.
	(a) Indemnification. Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, Menlo Park and SFCJPA agree to fully indemnify, defend, and hold the other Parties (including their appointed and elected officials, officers, employees, and agents) harmless and free fro...
	(b) Further Assurances.  The Parties shall cooperate with each other and execute such instruments or documents and take such other actions as may reasonably be requested from time to time in order to carry out, evidence or confirm their rights or obli...
	(c) Amendments. Any mutually agreed changes, modifications, revisions or amendments to this MOU shall be incorporated by written instrument, and effective when executed and signed by all Parties.
	(d) Severability. If any provision of this MOU shall be held to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
	(e) Applicable Law.  The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts executed and wholly performed within that state. The courts of the State of California s...
	(f) Construction of Agreement.  In the event of a dispute between the Parties as to the language of this MOU or any amendment to this MOU or the construction or meaning of any term contained in this MOU or any amendment to this MOU, this MOU or any am...
	(g) Notices.  All notices, demands and other formal communications hereunder shall be deemed given if: (a) delivered personally or by courier, (b) sent by overnight express delivery, (c) mailed by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested...
	(h) Entirety of Agreement.  This MOU, including Exhibits A through F, represents the entire and complete agreement among the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior negotiations, representations and agreements, wheth...
	(i) Debt Limitation.  Menlo Park and SFCJPA are subject to laws or policies which limit their ability to incur debt in future years. Nothing in this MOU shall constitute an obligation of future governing bodies of the Parties to appropriate funds for ...
	(j) Conflict of Interest.  The Parties shall undertake reasonable efforts to avoid conflicts of interest in the performance of this MOU and shall immediately notify the other Parties should a conflict of interest arise that would prohibit or impair th...
	(k) Disputes.  The Parties agree that, with regard to all disputes or disagreements arising under this MOU that are not resolved informally at the staff level after a good faith attempt, the Parties may, at their sole and mutual discretion, agree to e...
	(l) Non-Discrimination.  Each Party shall comply with its own non-discrimination policies and practices and laws applicable to it.
	(m) Counterparts.  This MOU may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which, taken together, shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.
	(n) Facsimile and Electronic Signatures.  Facsimile or electronic signatures may be used in place of original signatures on this MOU.  Each Party intends to be bound by the signatures on the facsimile or electronic document, is aware that the other Pa...
	(o) Exhibits and Schedules.  The following Exhibits and Schedules are attached and incorporated into this MOU:
	(i) Exhibit A: Project Description and Vicinity Map
	(ii) Exhibit B: Project Funding Sources and Uses
	(iii) Exhibit C: Project Timeline
	(iv) Exhibit D: Cash Flow Projections
	(v) Exhibit E: Programmatic EIR Timetable
	(vi) Exhibit F: Project EIR Timetable

	(p) Signatures. In witness whereof, the Parties, through their respective duly-authorized representatives, have executed this MOU on the days and dates set out below, and certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms and conditions ...

	VIII.

	15_Draft 2022 Board Meeting Schedule



